
City of San Antonio

AGENDA PACKET
Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

Thursday, November 30, 2023 5:30 PM

Brady Head Start Building,
Galaxy Conference Room,

1227 Brady Blvd, San
Antonio, Texas 78207

The Community Action Advisory Board Meeting will hold its regular meeting in the Brady Head Start
Building, Galaxy Conference Room, 1227 Brady Blvd, San Antonio, Texas 78207 beginning at 5:30
PM. Once convened, the Community Action Advisory Board Meeting will take up the following items
no sooner than the designated times.

Members of the public can comment on items on the agenda. To submit comments or sign up to speak,
please go to www.sanantonio.gov/agenda and click on the eComment link for instructions. Questions
relating to these rules may be directed to the Office of the City Clerk at (210) 2077253

Once a quorum is established, the Community Action Advisory Board Meeting shall consider the
following:

I. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL & ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Approval of Minutes

1. Approval of the minutes from the Community Action Advisory Board meeting on October 19,
2023

Public Comments

Briefing and Possible Action on the following items

2. Review Community Services Block Grant Performance and Fiscal Expenditure Reports
3. Review of Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) and Texas

Association of Community Action Agencies (TACAA)
4. Review Notice of Selection of Private Organization for Community Action Advisory Board
5. Approval of Community Action Advisory Board meeting 2024 Calendar
6. Approval of 2023 Community Assessment
7. Approval of Budget Amendment for the 20232024 Head Start and Early Head Start Budget
8. Review of Head Start Beginning of the Year (BOY) Student Outcome Data
9. Review of Head Start, Early Head Start (EHS), and Early Head Start Child Care Partnership

(EHSCCP) Fiscal Report
10. Review of Head Start, EHS, and EHSCCP Monthly Program Report
11. Review of Head Start Quality Assurance Report
12. Review of EHS and EHSCCP Quality Assurance Report

Announcements/Comments

Next CAAB Meeting January 18, 2024, Brady Head Start

At any time during the meeting, the Community Action Advisory Board Meeting Committee may meet
in executive session by videoconference for consultation with the City Attorney's Office concerning
attorney client matters under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

https://sanantonio.primegov.com/content/images/org/3ad085.jpg
http://www.sanantonio.gov/agenda


City of San Antonio

AGENDA PACKET
Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

Thursday, November 30, 2023 5:30 PM

Brady Head Start Building,
Galaxy Conference Room,

1227 Brady Blvd, San
Antonio, Texas 78207

The Community Action Advisory Board Meeting will hold its regular meeting in the Brady Head Start
Building, Galaxy Conference Room, 1227 Brady Blvd, San Antonio, Texas 78207 beginning at 5:30
PM. Once convened, the Community Action Advisory Board Meeting will take up the following items
no sooner than the designated times.

Members of the public can comment on items on the agenda. To submit comments or sign up to speak,
please go to www.sanantonio.gov/agenda and click on the eComment link for instructions. Questions
relating to these rules may be directed to the Office of the City Clerk at (210) 2077253

Once a quorum is established, the Community Action Advisory Board Meeting shall consider the
following:

I. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL & ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Approval of Minutes

1. Approval of the minutes from the Community Action Advisory Board meeting on October 19,
2023

Public Comments

Briefing and Possible Action on the following items

2. Review Community Services Block Grant Performance and Fiscal Expenditure Reports
3. Review of Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) and Texas

Association of Community Action Agencies (TACAA)
4. Review Notice of Selection of Private Organization for Community Action Advisory Board
5. Approval of Community Action Advisory Board meeting 2024 Calendar
6. Approval of 2023 Community Assessment
7. Approval of Budget Amendment for the 20232024 Head Start and Early Head Start Budget
8. Review of Head Start Beginning of the Year (BOY) Student Outcome Data
9. Review of Head Start, Early Head Start (EHS), and Early Head Start Child Care Partnership

(EHSCCP) Fiscal Report
10. Review of Head Start, EHS, and EHSCCP Monthly Program Report
11. Review of Head Start Quality Assurance Report
12. Review of EHS and EHSCCP Quality Assurance Report

Announcements/Comments

Next CAAB Meeting January 18, 2024, Brady Head Start

At any time during the meeting, the Community Action Advisory Board Meeting Committee may meet
in executive session by videoconference for consultation with the City Attorney's Office concerning
attorney client matters under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.



Community Action Advisory Board
Thursday, October 19, 2023

Claude Black Community Center, 2805 E. Commerce St
5:30 PM

Mission Statement
A forum for policy on poverty and to assure that the issues of the poor are effectively heard and addressed, and to inspire self-
sufficiency in individuals and families, respecting and recognizing their desire to make a change for themselves and their families.

I.  CALL PUBLIC HEARING ORDER:  Chair, Ruben Lizalde the Open Public Hearing to order at 5:32 PM.
II. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum:  Chair Ruben Lizalde turns over to Dawn Wood, Administrative Assistant, for CAAB Roll 

Call.
Representatives of the Low Income: 
Monique Robinson, Area I
Antonio Martinez Jr., Area IV
Representatives of Organizations: 
Pastor, Abdon Garza, Northern Hills United Methodist
Hector Garza for Pastor Victor Martinez, Redeemer Presbyterian Church
Demetric Byrd, 300 Seconds, Inc
Teresa Villegas, University of the Incarnate Word
Political Representatives: 
Ryan Salts for Councilwomen Sukh Kaur (CD-1)
Ruben Lizalde for Councilwoman Phyllis Viagran (CD-3)
Christina Gutierrez for Councilwoman Teri Castillo (CD-5)
Dorian Keller for Councilwoman Marina Alderete Gavito (CD-7)
Juan Moreno for County Commissioner Rebecca Clay-Flores, PCT 1
City of San Antonio Staff: 
Minerva Hernandez, Family Support Coordinator, FAD
Dawn Wood, Administrative Assistant, FAD
Joseph Monyer, Fiscal Analyst
Kristine Duff, City Attorney
Audrey K. Jackson, Head Start Program Administrator
Priscilla Garcia, Senior Management Analyst
Stephen Gonzalez, Fiscal Manager
Wanda McMillan, Management Analyst
Pedro Ramirez, Special Projects Manger
Jonathon Martinez, Community Services Specialist
Absent: 
Representatives of the Low Income: 
Vacancy, Area II
Vacancy, Area III
Kelly Trevino, Area V
Representatives of Organizations:
Vacancy for Representative of Organizations 
Political Representatives: 

QUORUM: Chair Ruben Lizalde acknowledged Quorum was established with 11 members present.

III. Public Comment: Chair Ruben Lizalde, asks if there are any Community Member comments. Minerva Hernandez stated there are 
no Community Members signed up to speak, but we did have a guest to observe Maria Mesraje Students with UTSA,  no comments 
to be read.



V. BRIEFING AND ACTION ITEMS:
     1.   Approval of Minutes from the Community Action Advisory Board meeting on August 17, 2023: Chair Ruben Lizalde, asks if 
      everyone had an opportunity to review minutes, from August 17, 2023. Christine Gutierrez, motioned to Approve 
      Meeting  Minutes, seconded Juan Moreno. All were in favor, no opposed and no abstentions. Motion carried. The next 
      item was  presented.  There was no further question or comments. All were in favor, no opposed and no abstentions.
      Motion carried. The next item was presented. 
     2.   Review of September 2023 CSBG Budget and Expenditure Summary: Chair, Ruben Lizalde announced the next September
     2023 CSBG Budget and expenditure Presented by Joseph Monyer.  Administration Budget $301,724.00, Cumulative Expenditures
     $406,322.22, Balance -$104,598.22. TFJS- Budget $1,011,124.00, Cumulative $725,355.72, Balance $285,768.28. Emergency 
     Assistance- $548,750.00, Cumulative 327,143.18, balance $221,606.82. Financial Counseling- Budget $320,939.00, $239,750.78,
     balance $81,188.22. Vita- Budget $20,000.00, Cumulative 0, Balance $20,00.00. Total  Budget $2,202,537.00, Cumulative 
     $1,698,571.90, Balance $503,965.10.  No action items. There were no further questions or comments, and the next item
     was  presented.
     3.   Review Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Program Updates: Chair, Ruben Lizalde announced the next item, review 
     CSBG Program updates, Presented by Minerva Hernandez. No action items. There were no further questions or comments, 
     and the next item was  presented.
     4.   Review 2024 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Ordinance Packet update: Chair, Ruben Lizalde announced the 
     next  item, review 2024 CSBG Ordinance Packet update, Presented by Minerva Hernandez. 2024 CSBG Ordinance Packet will 
     go before city Council November 9, 2023. No action items. There were no further questions or comments, and the next item 
     was  presented.
     5.   Review Impact of San Antonio Independent School District (SAISD) Right Sizing Proposal on the 2024-2025 Head Start 
     Program Design: Chair, Ruben Lizalde announced the next  item, Review Impact of San Antonio Independent School District 
     (SAISD) Right Sizing Proposal on the 2024-2025 Head Start Program Design, Presented by Audrey Jackson. On Monday, 
     September 18, 2023, the SAISD Board of Trustees voted on a proposed list of schools to be closed for the 2024 – 2025 and 
     2025 – 2026 school years.   Currently DHS Head Start classrooms are located at 24 campuses including four early childhood 
     centers and 20 elementary schools. The proposed list of schools to be closed includes all four early childhood centers and
     four elementary schools where Head Start services are currently provided. No action items. There were no further questions 
     or comments, and the next item was presented.
     6.   Review of 2024-2025 Head Start/Early Head Start Grant Application: Chair, Ruben Lizalde announced the next  item, 
     Review of 2024-2025 Head Start/Early Head Start Grant Application, Presented by Audrey Jackson. Department of Health and 
     Human Services and acceptance upon award of up to $30,743,236.00 for the period of February 1, 2024, to January 31, 2025; 
     and approving a total program budget of $38,429,045.00 which includes an in-kind total match of $7,685,809.00, and personnel 
     complement of 114 positions for the Department of Human Services. No action items. There were no further questions 
     or comments, and the next item was presented.  
     7.  Review of Head Start, Early Head Start (EHS), and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) Fiscal Report: Chair, 
     Ruben Lizalde announced the next  item, Review of Head Start, Early Head Start (EHS), and Early Head Start-Child Care 
     Partnership (EHS-CCP) Fiscal Report, Presented by Stephen Gonzalez.  EHS/HS Fiscal Total Budget $37,810,619.00, 
     YTD $15,498,688.00, Variance -$172,210.00, -1.1%. Early Head Start- Total Budget $3,856,799.00, YTD $3,727,793.00. 
     Variance- $-40,403.00. Early Head Start-CCP, total Budget $4,139,106.00, YTD $267,185.00, Variance $-7,267.00.No action items.  
     There were no further questions or comments, and the next item was presented.
     8.  Review of Head Start, EHS, and EHS-CCP Monthly Program Report: Chair, Ruben Lizalde announced the next  item, Review 
     of Head Start, EHS, and EHS-CCP Monthly Program Report, Presented by Audrey Jackson.  Head Start Funded Enrollment 3020,
     Percent of Children with a disability 10%, Meals Served 70,243. Home visit 20%. Early head start, Funded enrollment 128, 9% of 
     enrolled children with a disability, 2604 meals served, 99% of 1st home visit completed. EHS-CCP 216 Funded enrollments, 13% of
     enrolled children with a disability. 6130 Meals served, 6% of 1st home visit completed. No action items. There were no further
     questions or comments, and the next item was presented.
     9.  Review of 2023-2024 Head Start/Early Head Start Certification of Health and Safety Screener: 
     Chair, Ruben Lizalde announced the next  item, Review of 2023-2024 Head Start/Early Head Start Certification of Health
     and Safety  Screener, Presented by Peter Ramirez. The Head Start/Early Head Start Certification of Health and Safety Screener
     is used to fulfill the OHS requirement that the grantee governing body submit a signed certification of compliance with all 
     applicable health and safety requirements within 75 calendar days of the start of the program or school year, or within 75 
     calendar days of the start of the five-year project period when the five-year project period begins during the program or school 
     year. The form must be submitted to OHS in the Head Start Enterprise System (HSES) immediately thereafter. The signatures on
     this form attest that an agency has completed a health and safety screening of each site where children receive Head Start  
     services,  consistent with the terms and conditions of the Notice of Award (NoA). No action items. There were no further 



  questions or  comments, and the next item was presented.
  10.  Review of 2023-2024 Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) Certification of Health and Safety Screener: Chair,
  Ruben Lizalde announced the next  item, Review of 2023-2024 Early Head- Child Care Partnership Certification of Health
  and Safety  Screener, Presented by Wanda McMillan. The EHS-CCP Certification of Health and Safety Screener is used to fulfill the
  OHS requirement that the grantee governing body submit a signed certification of compliance with all applicable health and safety
  requirements within 75 calendar days of the start of the program or school year, or within 75 calendar days of the start of the five-
  year project period when the five-year project period begins during the program or school year. The form must be submitted to
  OHS in the Head Start Enterprise System (HSES) immediately thereafter. The signatures on this form attest that an agency has 
  completed a health and safety screening of each site where children receive Early Head Start and EHS-CCP services, consistent
  with the terms and conditions of the Notice of Award (NoA). No action items. There were no further questions or comments, 
  and  the next item was presented.
  11. Review of Head Start Quality Assurance Report: Chair, Ruben Lizalde announced the next  item, Review of Head Start Quality 
  Assurance Report, Presented by, Pedro Ramirez. Projects Conducted, Governance Review, Health, and safety Screening- Classroom 
  Safety, Health and safety screening-Facilities, Health and safety screening-outdoors, Health and safety screening-education admin.
  Projects completed Human resources review and ERSEA eligibility review. Areas of Non-Compliance, Human Resources Review and
  ERSEA eligibility Review. Areas of Concern, Human Resources Review and ERSEA eligibility Review. No action items. There were no 
  further questions or comments, and  the next item was presented.
  12. Review of EHS and EHS-CCP Quality Assurance Report:  Chair, Ruben Lizalde announced the next  item, Review of Early Head 
  Start and EHS-CCP Quality Assurance Report, Presented by, Wanda McMillian.  Projects Conducted: Health and Safety Screening
  visits August 15-25, 2023, Classrooms, Playgrounds, Facilities, HR Staff Files. Areas of Non-Compliance, Health and safety screening.
  Areas of Concern, Health and safety screening, classroom and playground observations.  No action items. There were no 
  further questions or comments, and  the next item was presented.

VI.   ANNOUNCEMENTS: Christina Gutierrez made an announcement for Westside Resource Fair and Tree Giveaway Rosedale Park, 
Oct 21, No further announcements.

VII.  CAAB BOARD- NEXT MEETING:  November 16, 2023, 5:30 pm, Brady Head start Building, 1227 Brady Blvd.

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT:  Chair Ruben Lizalde, Adjournment Meeting at 6:59pm. 

“In Compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, at any time during the meeting, the (Board) may meet in executive session under 
chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, including consultation with an attorney.” 
ACCESSIBIITY STATEMENT 
This meeting site is accessible to persons with disabilities. Parking is available. Auxiliary Aids and Services are available upon request 
(interpreters for the Deaf must be requested forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. For Assistance, Call (210) 207-7268 
Voice/TTY. 
DECLARACION DE ACCESIBILIDAD 
Esta reunión es accesible a personas incapacitadas. Se Hará disponible el estacionamiento. Equipo y servicios adicionales 
(interpretes para los sordos) se harán disponibles si se pide con cuarenta y ocho (48) horas de anticipación a la reunión. Para 
asistencia llame al (210) 207-7268 por voz/servicio de TTY



City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195720

Agenda Item Number: 2

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Review Community Services Block Grant Performance and Fiscal Expenditure Reports

SUMMARY:

Review Community Services Block Grant Performance and Fiscal Expenditure Reports

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Created as part of the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964, the Community Services Block Grant 
(CSBG) Program is designed to reduce poverty, revitalize low-income communities, and empower 
low-income families to become self-sufficient.  
 

ISSUE:



Rules and regulations for the CSBG grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS) require the CAAB to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key 
responsibilities.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund because of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

 The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the CAAB. Staff recommends 
review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



TDHCA CATEGORIES  BUDGET 
 Cum Exp Bal 
prior month (-) 

 EXPENSES for 
Monthly Reporting 

(October 23) 
Cum Exp          
Y - T - D

1 PERSONNEL 1,255,122.00 1,026,570.22 111,474.56 1,138,044.78
2 FRINGES 486,658.00 382,055.65 42,810.97 424,866.62
3 TRAVEL 8,267.28 1,849.91 0.00 1,849.91
4 EQUIPMENT 9,600.00 2,682.09 752.65 3,434.74
5 SUPPLIES 4,000.00 4,013.98 1,004.00 5,017.98
6 CONTRACT 34,600.38 26,984.28 0.00 26,984.28
7 OTHER 404,289.34 254,415.77 307.95 254,723.72
8 INDIRECT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total CSBG 2,202,537.00$        1,698,571.90$   156,350.13$           1,854,922.03$               

Cumulative Expenses 1,854,922.03 

CSBG Supported 1,854,922.03$               

Percentage Spent 84.22%

*DRAFT Subject to November Adjustments

Approved for Transmission:

11/13/2023
Signature Date

Dept. of Human Services
CSBG 2023 Monthly Report

October-23

2023 COMMUNITY SERVICE BLOCK GRANT
Contract #61230003785



  Cumm Less Adjusted Transfer Cumm Previously October

GL # Description Budget Jan Feb Mar Apr APR-CORR May Jun July Aug Sept Oct OCT-CORR Nov Dec T-T-D September T-T-D Out T-T-D Reported To Bill Balance
5101010 Regular Salaries 1,255,122.00 116,067.05 101,020.03 137,896.76 107,485.94 (8,833.12) 115,464.78 118,234.21 110,123.49 108,802.72 120,314.33 111,474.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,138,050.75 15,942.54 1,153,993.29 1,153,993.29 1,026,576.19 111,474.56 101,128.71
5101020 Overtime Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5101040 Shift Differential 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.88 0.00 2.88 2.88 2.88 0.00 (2.88)
5101050 Language Skill Pay 4,800.00 0.00 400.00 400.00 350.00 (675.73) 350.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,824.27 400.00 3,224.27 3,224.27 2,424.27 400.00 1,575.73
5101070 Retiree Payout Sal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (8.85) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (8.85) 0.00 (8.85) (8.85) (8.85) 0.00 8.85
5103005 FICA & Medicare Expense 96,104.00 8,535.31 7,411.14 10,331.94 7,961.50 0.00 8,546.59 8,681.99 8,078.79 8,022.34 9,118.91 8,242.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 84,931.01 1,094.41 86,025.42 86,025.42 76,688.51 8,242.50 10,078.58
5103010 Life Insurance 1,259.00 83.10 78.99 101.07 87.67 0.00 75.57 86.30 82.17 74.70 94.97 77.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 841.56 0.00 841.56 841.56 764.54 77.02 417.44
5103035 Personal Leave Buy Back 17,638.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,155.37) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,155.37) 0.00 (1,155.37) (1,155.37) (1,155.37) 0.00 18,793.37
5103056 Transportation Allowance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,452.88) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,452.88) 0.00 (1,452.88) (1,452.88) (1,452.88) 0.00 1,452.88
5105010 Retirement Exp 156,070.00 15,336.11 13,263.10 18,089.67 14,264.00 0.00 15,260.85 15,486.30 14,512.16 14,438.18 15,465.21 14,389.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,504.69 2,076.27 152,580.96 152,580.96 136,115.58 14,389.11 3,489.04
5170040 Civln Actv Healthcr 210,787.00 20,031.84 18,829.58 20,809.47 20,376.59 0.00 18,721.15 19,880.36 19,028.54 18,022.44 12,971.03 19,702.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 188,373.34 0.00 188,373.34 188,373.34 168,671.00 19,702.34 22,413.66
5201025 Education - Classes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5201040 Fees to Prof Contr. 1,150.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,051.50 0.00 13,830.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 (13,830.36) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,051.50 0.00 1,051.50 1,051.50 1,051.50 0.00 99.31
5203040 Adv and Publications 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5203050 Membership Dues 234.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 234.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 234.00 0.00 234.00 234.00 234.00 0.00 0.00
5203060 Binding & Printing 2,000.00 1,190.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,190.40 0.00 1,190.40 1,190.40 1,190.40 0.00 809.60
5203090 Transportation Fees 2,267.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 377.28 92.02 0.00 64.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 533.49 0.00 533.49 533.49 533.49 0.00 1,733.79
5204050 Maint - Buildings 5,530.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,539.48 1,240.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,780.30 0.00 8,780.30 8,780.30 8,780.30 0.00 (3,250.30)
5204060 Cleaning Services 7,820.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,484.00 993.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,477.60 0.00 3,477.60 3,477.60 3,477.60 0.00 4,342.40
5205010 Mail and Parcel Post 2,000.00 22.61 0.00 5.12 5.86 0.00 6.73 0.00 0.00 8.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 48.85 0.00 48.85 48.85 48.85 0.00 1,951.15
5205020 Rental of Office Equipment 9,600.00 0.00 193.75 0.00 0.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,610.36 877.26 752.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,434.74 0.00 3,434.74 3,434.74 2,682.09 752.65 6,165.26
5207010 Travel-Official 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 734.00 0.00 582.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,316.42 0.00 1,316.42 1,316.42 1,316.42 0.00 4,683.58
5208530 Alarm and Security Services 17,100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,736.79 3,095.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,832.71 0.00 11,832.71 11,832.71 11,832.71 0.00 5,267.29
5302010 Office Supplies 2,000.00 836.22 287.30 481.55 (1,063.20) 0.00 56.87 3,311.23 55.16 0.00 0.00 1,004.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,969.13 0.00 4,969.13 4,969.13 3,965.13 1,004.00 (2,969.13)
5304010 Food 2,449.00 0.00 204.56 858.35 (884.73) 0.00 963.38 5.00 242.99 0.00 0.00 244.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,633.85 0.00 1,633.85 1,633.85 1,389.55 244.30 815.15
5403510 Wireless Data Comm 343.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 114.05 53.19 37.99 37.99 63.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 306.87 0.00 306.87 306.87 243.22 63.65 36.72
5404520 Software Licenses 2,999.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,842.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,842.17 0.00 1,842.17 1,842.17 1,842.17 0.00 1,157.40
5404530 Gas and Electricity 5,712.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,028.07 651.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,679.11 0.00 1,679.11 1,679.11 1,679.11 0.00 4,032.89
5404540 Water and Sewer Charges 2,550.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 569.43 134.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 703.80 0.00 703.80 703.80 703.80 0.00 1,846.20
5407032 DW Other 391,000.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 142,779.25 9,564.54 0.00 11,678.00 82,953.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 248,975.69 132,332.28 381,307.97 381,307.97 248,975.69 0.00 9,692.78
5501000 Cap<5000 - Comp Equ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 2,202,537.00 162,102.64 141,688.45 188,976.81 152,369.85 (12,125.95) 318,714.12 196,499.03 158,784.26 163,095.26 228,467.43 156,350.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,854,922.03 151,845.50 2,006,767.53 0.00 2,006,767.53 1,698,571.90 156,350.13 195,769.47

Budget Totals To-Bill Totals G/L Class Code
Personnel 1,255,122.00 111,474.56 1
Fringes 486,658.00 42,810.97 2
Travel 8,267.28 0.00 3
Equipment 9,600.00 752.65 4
Supplies 4,000.00 1,004.00 5
Contract 34,600.38 0.00 6
Other 404,289.34 307.95 7
Indirect 0.00 0.00 8

2,202,537.00 156,350.13

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - FAMILY ASSISTANCE 
2023 COMMUNITY SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

INTERNAL ORDERS 138000003489 -138000003490  -138000003491 -138000003492 -138000003493  
FUND:2206038014

Grant Period Jan 2023  thru Dec 2023



--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
|Orders: Actual/Plan/Variance            Date:  11/13/2023 10:52:01                                          |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
|Order/Group               2206038014   CSBG 2023                                                            |
|Reporting period            1 -   1 2024                                                                    |
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cost Elements Actual Plan Var.(Abs.) Var.(%) Cost Elements Act. Cum. Plan Cum. Var.(Abs.) Var.(%)
    4501000  Grants Revenue 162,102.64-  162,102.64-      4501000  Grants Revenue 1,632,207.11- 2,202,537.00- 570,329.89 25.89-
    4501101  Grants Fed Opr. Accr 212,727.83  212,727.83      4501101  Grants Fed Opr. Accr     
*     GRANT REVENUES 50,625.19  50,625.19  *     GRANT REVENUES 1,632,207.11- 2,202,537.00- 570,329.89 25.89-
    5101010  Regular Salaries 111,474.56  111,474.56      5101010  Regular Salaries 1,138,207.74 1,255,122.00 116,914.26- 9.32-
    5101040  Shift Differential         5101040  Shift Differential 2.88  2.88  
    5101050  Language Skill Pay 400.00 600.00- 1,000.00 166.67-     5101050  Language Skill Pay 3,900.00 4,800.00 900.00- 18.75-
    5103005  FICA & Medicare Expense 8,242.50  8,242.50      5103005  FICA & Medicare Expense 84,142.10 96,104.00 11,961.90- 12.45-
    5103010  Life Insurance 77.02  77.02      5103010  Life Insurance 816.92 1,259.00 442.08- 35.11-
    5103035  Personal Leave Buy Back  2,362.00- 2,362.00 100.00-     5103035  Personal Leave Buy Back  17,638.00 17,638.00- 100.00-
    5103056  Transportation Allowance  1,560.00- 1,560.00 100.00-     5103056  Transportation Allowance     
    5105010  Retirement Exp 14,389.11  14,389.11      5105010  Retirement Exp 149,360.84 156,070.00 6,709.16- 4.30-
    5170040  Civln Actv Healthcr 19,702.34  19,702.34      5170040  Civln Actv Healthcr 184,458.53 210,787.00 26,328.47- 12.49-
    5201025  Education - Classes  2,000.00- 2,000.00 100.00-     5201025  Education - Classes     
    5201040  Fees to Prof Contr.  13,849.19- 13,849.19 100.00-     5201040  Fees to Prof Contr. 1,150.81 1,150.81   
    5203050  Membership Dues  3,816.00- 3,816.00 100.00-     5203050  Membership Dues 234.00 234.00   
    5203060  Binding & Printing         5203060  Binding & Printing 1,190.40 2,000.00 809.60- 40.48-
    5203090  Transportation Fees  377.28 377.28- 100.00-     5203090  Transportation Fees 533.49 2,267.28 1,733.79- 76.47-
    5204050  Maint - Buildings         5204050  Maint - Buildings 9,805.10 5,530.00 4,275.10 77.31
    5204060  Cleaning Services         5204060  Cleaning Services 4,968.00 7,820.00 2,852.00- 36.47-
    5205010  Mail and Parcel Post         5205010  Mail and Parcel Post 50.16 2,000.00 1,949.84- 97.49-
    5205020  Rental of Office Equipment 752.65  752.65      5205020  Rental of Office Equipment 4,238.43 9,600.00 5,361.57- 55.85-
    5207010  Travel-Official         5207010  Travel-Official 1,316.42 6,000.00 4,683.58- 78.06-
    5208530  Alarm and Security Services  5,000.00- 5,000.00 100.00-     5208530  Alarm and Security Services 13,100.85 17,100.00 3,999.15- 23.39-
    5302010  Office Supplies 1,004.00 20,000.00- 21,004.00 105.02-     5302010  Office Supplies 4,969.13 2,000.00 2,969.13 148.46
    5304010  Food 244.30 949.00 704.70- 74.26-     5304010  Food 1,633.85 2,449.00 815.15- 33.29-
    5403510  Wireless Data Comm. 63.65 343.59 279.94- 81.48-     5403510  Wireless Data Comm. 343.59 343.59   
    5404520  Software Licenses  55,000.43- 55,000.43 100.00-     5404520  Software Licenses 1,842.17 2,999.57 1,157.40- 38.59-
    5404530  Gas and Electricity         5404530  Gas and Electricity 2,434.47 5,712.00 3,277.53- 57.38-
    5404540  Water and Sewer Charges         5404540  Water and Sewer Charges 1,020.08 2,550.00 1,529.92- 60.00-
    5407032  DW Other  102,517.75 102,517.75- 100.00-     5407032  DW Other 381,307.97 391,000.75 9,692.78- 2.48-
*     GRANT EXP 156,350.13  156,350.13  *     GRANT EXP 1,991,027.93 2,202,537.00 211,509.07- 9.60-
**      Costs 206,975.32  206,975.32  **      Costs 358,820.82  358,820.82  
***       Balance 206,975.32  206,975.32  ***       Balance 358,820.82  358,820.82  



--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
|Orders: Actual/Plan/Variance            Date:  11/13/2023 11:10:30                                          |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
|Order/Group               2206038014   CSBG 2023                                                            |
|Reporting period            2 -   2 2024                                                                    |
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Cost Elements Actual Plan Var.(Abs.) Var.(%) Cost Elements Act. Cum. Plan Cum. Var.(Abs.) Var.(%)
    4501000  Grants Revenue         4501000  Grants Revenue 1,632,207.11- 2,202,537.00- 570,329.89 25.89-
    4501101  Grants Fed Opr. Accr         4501101  Grants Fed Opr. Accr     
*     GRANT REVENUES     *     GRANT REVENUES 1,632,207.11- 2,202,537.00- 570,329.89 25.89-
    5101010  Regular Salaries 15,942.54  15,942.54      5101010  Regular Salaries 1,138,207.74 1,255,122.00 116,914.26- 9.32-
    5101040  Shift Differential         5101040  Shift Differential 2.88  2.88  
    5101050  Language Skill Pay 400.00  400.00      5101050  Language Skill Pay 3,900.00 4,800.00 900.00- 18.75-
    5103005  FICA & Medicare Expense 1,094.41  1,094.41      5103005  FICA & Medicare Expense 84,142.10 96,104.00 11,961.90- 12.45-
    5103010  Life Insurance         5103010  Life Insurance 816.92 1,259.00 442.08- 35.11-
    5103035  Personal Leave Buy Back         5103035  Personal Leave Buy Back  17,638.00 17,638.00- 100.00-
    5103056  Transportation Allowance         5103056  Transportation Allowance     
    5105010  Retirement Exp 2,076.27  2,076.27      5105010  Retirement Exp 149,360.84 156,070.00 6,709.16- 4.30-
    5170040  Civln Actv Healthcr         5170040  Civln Actv Healthcr 184,458.53 210,787.00 26,328.47- 12.49-
    5201025  Education - Classes         5201025  Education - Classes     
    5201040  Fees to Prof Contr.         5201040  Fees to Prof Contr. 1,150.81 1,150.81   
    5203050  Membership Dues         5203050  Membership Dues 234.00 234.00   
    5203060  Binding & Printing         5203060  Binding & Printing 1,190.40 2,000.00 809.60- 40.48-
    5203090  Transportation Fees         5203090  Transportation Fees 533.49 2,267.28 1,733.79- 76.47-
    5204050  Maint - Buildings         5204050  Maint - Buildings 9,805.10 5,530.00 4,275.10 77.31
    5204060  Cleaning Services         5204060  Cleaning Services 4,968.00 7,820.00 2,852.00- 36.47-
    5205010  Mail and Parcel Post         5205010  Mail and Parcel Post 50.16 2,000.00 1,949.84- 97.49-
    5205020  Rental of Office Equipment         5205020  Rental of Office Equipment 4,238.43 9,600.00 5,361.57- 55.85-
    5207010  Travel-Official         5207010  Travel-Official 1,316.42 6,000.00 4,683.58- 78.06-
    5208530  Alarm and Security Services         5208530  Alarm and Security Services 13,100.85 17,100.00 3,999.15- 23.39-
    5302010  Office Supplies         5302010  Office Supplies 4,969.13 2,000.00 2,969.13 148.46
    5304010  Food         5304010  Food 1,633.85 2,449.00 815.15- 33.29-
    5403510  Wireless Data Comm.         5403510  Wireless Data Comm. 343.59 343.59   
    5404520  Software Licenses         5404520  Software Licenses 1,842.17 2,999.57 1,157.40- 38.59-
    5404530  Gas and Electricity         5404530  Gas and Electricity 2,434.47 5,712.00 3,277.53- 57.38-
    5404540  Water and Sewer Charges         5404540  Water and Sewer Charges 1,020.08 2,550.00 1,529.92- 60.00-
    5407032  DW Other 132,332.28  132,332.28      5407032  DW Other 381,307.97 391,000.75 9,692.78- 2.48-
*     GRANT EXP 151,845.50  151,845.50  *     GRANT EXP 1,991,027.93 2,202,537.00 211,509.07- 9.60-
**      Costs 151,845.50  151,845.50  **      Costs 358,820.82  358,820.82  
***       Balance 151,845.50  151,845.50  ***       Balance 358,820.82  358,820.82  





146887.8









RECON

January 162,102.64       
February 141,688.45       APR Costs FEB TS JE 105797966
March 188,976.81       
April 140,243.90       152,369.85          (12,125.95)                         140,243.90          
May 318,714.12       
June 196,499.03       
July 158,784.26       
August 163,095.26       
September 228,467.43       
October 156,350.13       
TOTAL 1,854,922.03    

SAP 1,839,182.43    

* 15,739.60         Delta *Need to reduce on OCT request to TDHCA



Jan-Sept 1,682,832.30  
Oct 156,350.13     
SAP 1,839,182.43  



City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195722

Agenda Item Number: 3

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Review of Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) and Texas 
Association of Community Action Agencies (TACAA)

SUMMARY:

The Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs is the state agency responsible for 
affordable housing, community and energy assistance programs, colonia activities, and regulation 
of the state's manufactured housing industry. The Department currently administers $2 billion 
through for-profit, nonprofit, and local government partnerships to deliver local housing and 
community-based opportunities and assistance to Texans in need. The overwhelming majority of 
the Department's resources are derived from mortgage revenue bond financing and refinancing, 
federal grants, and federal tax credits.
The Texas Association of Community Action Agencies, Inc. (TACAA) was formed in 1968 to 
provide a unified voice for Community Action agencies in advocacy, policy, programmatic, and 
legislative issues affecting families and communities of Texas.  



BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

With the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964, President Lyndon B. Johnson solidified his 
commitment to forging new opportunities for the poor in the United States by mobilizing financial 
and human resources to eliminate poverty. To assist in fighting LBJ’s “War on Poverty,” local 
Community Action Agencies were created to provide a wide range of human services at the 
community level to help individuals build self-sufficiency and rise out of poverty.

ISSUE:

 Rules and regulations for the CSBG grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS) require the CAAB to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key 
responsibilities.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund because of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

 The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the CAAB. Staff recommends 
review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195721

Agenda Item Number: 4

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Review Notice of Selection of Private Organization for Community Action Advisory Board

SUMMARY:

Review Notice of Selection of Private Organization for Community Action Advisory Board

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Created as part of the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964, the Community Services Block Grant 
(CSBG) Program is designed to reduce poverty, revitalize low-income communities, and empower 
low-income families to become self-sufficient.  
The Department of Human Services, as the official Community Action Agency for San Antonio 
and Bexar County, administers the Community Action Program. The CAAB advises the 
Department of Human Services and San Antonio City Council on needs, concerns and goals of 
low-income persons, recommends policies and advises on the allocation of federal Community 
Services Block Grant (CSBG) funds. DHS/Community Action Partnership have administered 



emergency and long term case management programs for income eligible residents of Bexar 
County since 1979.

ISSUE:

 Rules and regulations for the CSBG grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS) require the CAAB to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key 
responsibilities.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund because of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

 The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the CAAB. Staff recommends 
review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



City Seeking Applicants for 5 Vacancies 
Community Action Advisory Board (CAAB) 

Representatives of Private Organizations (RPO) 
 

The Department of Human Services, as the official Community Action Agency for San Antonio and Bexar County, 
administers the Community Action Program. The CAAB advises the Department of Human Services and San 
Antonio City Council on needs, concerns and goals of low-income persons, recommends policies and advises on the 
allocation of federal Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) funds. DHS/Community Action Partnership have 
administered emergency and long term case management programs for income eligible residents of Bexar County 
since 1979. 

 
Description 
The Board is composed of 15 members: five elected public officials (four City Council Members and one County 

Commissioner), five representatives of the community’s low-income residents and five representatives from 

private groups and organizations with an interest in serving individuals and families living in poverty. Each 

representative is charged with coordinating resources to fight poverty. 

Eligibility 
The Community Action Advisory Board (CAAB) is seeking applications for 5 vacancies from Private Groups and 
Organizations interested in participating on the Advisory Board.  The private group or organization must be a legal 
entity and chartered by the State of Texas. The organization shall be one of the following: 

• Advocate organization or private foundation 

• Private, business or industry, or association representing business or industry 

• Religious organization 

• Legal association or non-partisan political organization 

• Labor, education or health organization 

• An organization of at least 25 members 

• The representative must be 18 years of age. The representative must be empowered to speak and act on 

behalf of the organization represented. 

• The five organizations will be selected by the seated Public Officials and Low Income Representatives 

within one month prior to the expiration of the term of office for the seated RPOs. 

• The selection of the private organizations will be conducted in an open meeting of the CAAB. 

Applying 
The deadline to submit applications is Friday, December 8, 2023 by 4:00 p.m. with the Office of the City Clerk. 

Those interested in applying for the available vacancy may do so online using the City’s web-based application for 

boards and commission at: http://www.sanantonio.gov/Clerk/Legislative/BoardsCommissions/Vacancies  

For additional assistance please contact Minerva Hernandez at 210-207-5231 

 

http://www.sanantonio.gov/Clerk/Legislative/BoardsCommissions


City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195725

Agenda Item Number: 5

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Approval of Community Action Advisory Board meeting 2024 Calendar

SUMMARY:

 The Department of Human Services, as the official Community Action Agency for San Antonio 
and Bexar County, administers the Community Action Program. The CAAB advises the 
Department of Human Services and San Antonio City Council on needs, concerns, and goals of 
low-income persons, recommends policies, and advises on the allocation of federal Community 
Services Block Grant (CSBG) funds. DHS/Community Action Partnership have administered 
emergency and long-term case management programs for income eligible residents of Bexar 
County since 1979.
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:



Created as part of the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964, the Community Services Block Grant 
(CSBG) Program is designed to reduce poverty, revitalize low-income communities, and empower 
low-income families to become self-sufficient.  
 The Department of Human Services, as the official Community Action Agency for San Antonio 
and Bexar County, administers the Community Action Program. The CAAB advises the 
Department of Human Services and San Antonio City Council on needs, concerns, and goals of 
low-income persons, recommends policies, and advises on the allocation of federal Community 
Services Block Grant (CSBG) funds. DHS/Community Action Partnership have administered 
emergency and long-term case management programs for income eligible residents of Bexar 
County since 1979.
 

ISSUE:

 Rules and regulations for the CSBG grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS) require the CAAB to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key 
responsibilities.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund because of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

 The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the CAAB. Staff recommends 
review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



Community Action Advisory Board Meeting
Calendar

January 18, 2024,  Brady Head Start
February 15, 2024, Claude Black
March 21, 2024, Brady Head Start
April 18, 2024, Claude Black 
May 16, 2024, Brady Head Start
June 20, 2023, Claude Black
July 18, 2023, Brady Head Start
August 15, 2023, Claude Black
September 19, 2024, Brady Head Start
October 17, 2023, Claude Black
November 21, 2023, Brady Head Start
December 19, 2023, Claude Black



City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195714

Agenda Item Number: 6

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Approval of 2023 Community Assessment 

SUMMARY:

This item presents the following from the Department of Human Services (DHS) Head Start, Early 
Head Start, and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership programs for action by the Head Start 
Policy Council.
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Head Start Performance Standards require the program to conduct a full Community Assessment 
once every five years, with annual updates. The Head Start Act requires the Governing Body to 
review and approve the Community Assessment reports annually. The Community Assessment 
includes an analysis of demographic data, disability statistics, education, health, nutrition, and 
social services needs in the local area served by the Head Start and Early Head Start programs and 



is completed by the Institute for Demographic and Socioeconomic Research (IDSER), Texas State 
Demographer at the University of Texas at San Antonio. The program uses the Community 
Assessment information in program planning and for the implementation of initiatives to connect 
children and families to needed services.

ISSUE:

Rules and regulations for the Head Start, Early Head Start, and Early Start-Child Care Partnership 
grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) require the Head 
Start Policy Council to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key responsibilities.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund as a result of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance with 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services rules and regulations for Head Start, Early Head 
Start, and Early Head Start- Child Care Partnership programs.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the HSPC Committee. Staff 
recommends review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



Approval of 2023 
Community Assessment 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Community Assessment 

Update 
City of San Antonio 

 Department of Human Services  

 Early Head Start and Head Start 

Programs 

2022-2023 

 
   



i 

Letter from the Director 
Dear Colleagues and Friends, 
 
With this Community Assessment Update, the Department of Human Services (DHS), Head Start 
program provides you with updated data on the conditions affecting children living in need of additional 
resources within the City. As you know, the Office of Head Start requires a comprehensive community 
assessment every five years with annual updates. 
 
The community assessment describes the context in which Head Start and Early Head Start Child 
Care Partnership programs operate and is useful for ensuring that the most effective services are 
provided to the most vulnerable population. This resource can assist program staff in coordinating 
their efforts to gather information required for a community assessment. The assessment paints a 
picture of the community and describes the diverse needs of families who may receive services. In 
addition, the community assessment covers the community's history, its economic scene and its 
strengths and challenges. 
 
The DHS, Head Start program serves 3,364 children ages six weeks to five years of age residing 
within the boundaries of the San Antonio and Edgewood school districts (777 in Edgewood ISD and 
2,243 in SAISD, 216 in EHS-CCP, and 128 in the New EHS Program). Generally, and compared to 
the entire City of San Antonio and Bexar County, both districts’ residents have higher needs for 
services, both educational and economic. There are many children within the two districts’ boundaries 
who are born into families with limited resources and some barriers to reaching their full potential. 
However, working with our school districts, teachers, community partners, parents, grandparents and 
so many more, DHS, Head Start provides these children and families with the tools necessary to be 
successful in life and in school.  
 
More work needs to be done to support our children and families, as this report shows, but the DHS, 
Head Start program has made positive impacts with thousands of children and their families’ lives.  
We are proud of the work we have done and proud of the progress our Head Start children and families 
continue to make even after they leave our program.  
 
I would like to thank each of you who have participated in the many DHS, Head Start planning 
sessions; I deeply appreciate your time, thoughts and willingness to further the work of ‘closing the 
gap’ for our youngest, most vulnerable citizens. Your interest in the health and wellbeing of our children 
supports the work of Head Start to improve the lives of the children and their families. 
 
For more in-depth discussion of the conditions presented, please see the entire report and to find out 
more about our program, please visit www.saheadstart.org or contact (210) 206-5500. 
 
Sincerely, 
Audrey K. Jackson 
Head Start and Early Head Start Administrator

http://www.saheadstart.org/


ii 

Disclaimer 
The information presented in this Community Update was acquired and analyzed 

according to the most recent and relevant data available. Interpretations, estimates, and analyses 

are those of the authors and may not reflect the views of the City of San Antonio Department of 

Human Services (DHS) or the National Head Start Association. Additionally, the authors arrived 

at all conclusions independent of the grantee to maintain a data-driven, theoretically sound, and 

objective assessment incorporating data from all available sources. This Community Update was 

completed and prepared by: 

  

Institute for Demographic and Socioeconomic Research (IDSER) 

The University of Texas at San Antonio 

501 W. César E. Chávez Blvd. 

San Antonio, TX  78207-4415 

(210) 458-6530 

 

Lloyd B. Potter, Ph.D. is responsible for the content in this document with assistance 

provided by Po-Chun Huang, Ph.D., and Monica Cruz, Ph.D. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



iii 

Table of Contents 
Letter from the Director ................................................................................................................ i 
List of Tables ............................................................................................................................. iv 
List of Figures ........................................................................................................................... vii 
1. Executive Summary ............................................................................................................ 1 
2. Grantee Profile ................................................................................................................... 3 

Program Overview .............................................................................................................. 4 
Geography .......................................................................................................................... 4 
Recruitment ........................................................................................................................ 4 
Service Area & Providers .................................................................................................... 5 

3. Demographic Profile of Bexar County ................................................................................. 7 
Population Growth .............................................................................................................. 7 
Immigrants .........................................................................................................................11 
Race and Ethnicity .............................................................................................................13 
Languages .........................................................................................................................20 
Household Structure ..........................................................................................................26 

4. Education, Health, Nutrition and Social Service Needs ......................................................29 
Education ...........................................................................................................................29 
Health and Nutrition ...........................................................................................................34 
Social Services ..................................................................................................................38 
Income and Poverty ...........................................................................................................39 
Employment .......................................................................................................................40 
Housing .............................................................................................................................43 
Foster Children ..................................................................................................................45 
Children with Disabilities ....................................................................................................48 
Estimated Number of Children with a Disability by Type ....................................................50 
Homeless Children.............................................................................................................52 

5. Eligibility Estimates ............................................................................................................54 
Method Used to Estimate Age and Income Eligibility .........................................................54 
U.S. Census Bureau Method .............................................................................................54 
Conclusions and Recommendations ..................................................................................54 

6. Social Services ..................................................................................................................62 
Health ................................................................................................................................62 
Nutrition .............................................................................................................................63 
Child abuse and neglect ....................................................................................................63 
Housing .............................................................................................................................64 
Homeless Population .........................................................................................................66 
Childcare ...........................................................................................................................66 
Resources and Services for Children with Disabilities ........................................................72 
Public Pre-Kindergarten and Early Education ....................................................................78 
Pre-K 4 SA .........................................................................................................................80 
Local Early Head Start and Head Start Programs in Bexar County ....................................82 

7. Strengths of the Community ..............................................................................................87 
8. Summary and Conclusion ..................................................................................................88 
 
  



iv 

List of Tables 
Table 3-1 Bexar County Population Growth Comparison between Texas and the United 

States, 2010, 2020 ............................................................................................... 7 

Table 3-2 Estimated Bexar County Components of Population Change between 2010 and 

2020..................................................................................................................... 8 

Table 3-3 Estimated Bexar County Components of Population Change between 2020 and 

2022..................................................................................................................... 8 

Table 3-4 Births Occurring by Mother’s Characteristics, Selected Geographies, 2020 .......... 11 

Table 3-5 Bexar County Foreign Born Population Comparisons for Selected School Districts, 

2017-2021.......................................................................................................... 12 

Table 3-6 Racial and Ethnic Composition Comparison, Bexar County, Texas, the United 

States, 2017-2021 .............................................................................................. 14 

Table 3-7 Racial and Ethnic Composition Comparison for Bexar, Dallas, and El Paso 

Counties, 2017-2021 .......................................................................................... 14 

Table 3-8 Racial and Ethnic Composition Comparison for Harris, Tarrant and Travis 

Counties, 2017-2021 .......................................................................................... 15 

Table 3-9 Racial and Ethnic Composition Comparison, Edgewood ISD, San Antonio ISD, City 

of San Antonio, 2017-2021 ................................................................................ 15 

Table 3-10 Ethnicity of Enrolled Head Start, Early Head Start, and EHS-CCP Children, 2022

 .......................................................................................................................... 19 

Table 3-11 Race of Enrolled Head Start, Early Head Start, and EHS-CCP Children, 2022 ... 19 

Table 3-12 Language Spoken at Home Population 5 Years and Over, Edgewood ISD,            

San Antonio ISD, City of San Antonio, 2017-2021 ............................................. 21 

Table 3-13 Language Spoken at Home Population 5 Years and Over, Bexar County, Texas 

and the United States, 2017-2021 ...................................................................... 21 

Table 3-14 Primary Language of Family at Home, 2022 ....................................................... 25 

Table 3-15 Edgewood ISD, San Antonio ISD and City of San Antonio Populations by Age, 

2017-2021.......................................................................................................... 27 

Table 3-16 United States, Texas, and Bexar County Population by Age, 2017-2021 ............ 27 

Table 3-17 Edgewood ISD, San Antonio ISD and City of San Antonio Demographic and 

Household Characteristics, 2017-2021 .............................................................. 27 

Table 3-18 Bexar County, Texas and United States Demographic and Household 

Characteristics, 2017-2021 ................................................................................ 28 

Table 3-19 Number and Percentage of Single and Two Parent Homes, 2022 ...................... 28 

Table 4-1 Educational Attainment among Persons Aged 25 Years and Older, Edgewood ISD, 

San Antonio ISD and San Antonio, 2017-2021 .................................................. 30 



v 

Table 4-2 Educational Attainment among Persons Aged 25 Years and Older, Bexar County, 

Texas, the United States, 2017-2021 ................................................................. 30 

Table 4-3 School Enrollment by Level of School for the Population 3 Years and Over, 

Edgewood ISD, San Antonio ISD and San Antonio, 2017-2021 ......................... 31 

Table 4-4 School Enrollment by Level of School for the Population 3 Years and Over, Bexar 

County, Texas, the United States, 2017-2021 .................................................... 32 

Table 4-5 Percent of Public Assistance Received by Residents of DHS Head Start Service 

Area, San Antonio, and Texas, 2012-2016......................................................... 35 

Table 4-6 Percent of Public Assistance Received by Residents of DHS Head Start Service 

Area, San Antonio, and Texas, 2017-2021......................................................... 35 

Table 4-7 Percent of Public Assistance Received by Children 0-17 or 0-4 Years of Age, 

Bexar County, Texas, 2015-2021 ....................................................................... 36 

Table 4-8 Social Services Utilized by DHS Head Start Families, 2022 .................................. 37 

Table 4-9 Confirmed Victims of Child Abuse/Neglect for Bexar County, FY 2012-2022 ........ 38 

Table 4-10 Income and Poverty in Selected Geographies, 2017-2021 ................................. 39 

Table 4-11 Employment Characteristics in Selected School Districts and City of San Antonio, 

2017-2021.......................................................................................................... 40 

Table 4-12 Employment Characteristics in Bexar County, Texas, and the United States, 

2017-2021.......................................................................................................... 40 

Table 4-13 Means of Transportation to Work in Selected School Districts, 2017-2021 ......... 41 

Table 4-14 Means of Transportation to Work in Bexar County, Texas, and the United States, 

2017-2021.......................................................................................................... 41 

Table 4-15 Type of Occupation in Selected School Districts and City of San Antonio, 2017-

2021................................................................................................................... 42 

Table 4-16 Type of Occupation in Bexar County, Texas, and the United States, 2017-2021 43 

Table 4-17 Housing Characteristics for Selected School Districts, City of San Antonio, Bexar 

County, Texas, and the United States, 2017-2021 ............................................. 44 

Table 4-18 Monthly Average of Children in Paid Foster Care (0-17 Years), Bexar County, 

2018-2022.......................................................................................................... 45 

Table 4-19 Number of Children (Under 18) by Relationship to Head of Household, Selected 

School Districts and City of San Antonio, 2017-2021 ......................................... 45 

Table 4-20 Number of Children (Under 18) by Relationship to Head of Household, Selected 

School Districts, 2017-2021 ............................................................................... 46 

Table 4-21 Children’s Relationship to the Household, Selected School Districts and City of 

San Antonio, 2017-2021 .................................................................................... 47 

Table 4-22 Children’s Realtionship to the Household by Type of Household, Bexar County, 

Texas, and United States, 2017-2021 ................................................................ 47 



vi 

Table 4-23 Foster Care Students, Selected Districts, 2022-2023 .......................................... 47 

Table 4-24 ECI Enrollment for Bexar County and Texas*, FY 2021 ...................................... 48 

Table 4-25 Number of Children Served by DHS Head Start by Disability, 2022 .................... 49 

Table 4-26 Disability Counts by School District, 2022-2023 .................................................. 51 

Table 4-27 Estimated Number of Age-Eligible Children with Disabilities by School District, 

Bexar County, 2022-2023 .................................................................................. 51 

Table 4-28 Enrolled Families Experiencing Homelessness, 2022 ......................................... 52 

Table 4-29 Enrolled Families Experiencing Homelessness in Bexar County, 2022 ............... 52 

Table 4-30 Enrolled Families Experiencing Homelessness in Texas, 2022 ........................... 53 

Table 4-31 Homeless Students in DHS Head Start Service Area and Texas, 2022-2023 ..... 53 

Table 5-1 Estimates of Age and Income Eligible Children by Zipcode for Children 0-2 Years 

of Age, Program Year 2022 ............................................................................... 56 

Table 5-2 Estimates of Age and Income Eligible Children by District for Children 3-4 Years of 

Age, Program Year 2022 ................................................................................... 57 

Table 5-3 Estimates of Age and Income Eligible Children by District, Children 0-2 Years, 

2021................................................................................................................... 58 

Table 5-4 Estimates of Age and Income Eligible Children by District, Children 3-4 Years, 

2021................................................................................................................... 59 

Table 5-5 Projected Bexar County Population, by Race:  Ages 0-2 Years, 2022-2032 ......... 60 

Table 5-6 Projected Bexar County Population, by Race:  Ages 3-4 Years, 2022-2032 ......... 60 

Table 5-7 Projected Number of Bexar County Age- and Income-Eligible Children: 0-2 and 3-4 

Years Old, Bexar County, 2022-2032 ................................................................. 61 

Table 6-1 Childcare Capacity and Child Population Aged 0 to 2 Years by School District, 

2023................................................................................................................... 71 

Table 6-2 Childcare Capacity and Child Population Aged 3 and 4 Years by School District, 

2023................................................................................................................... 71 

Table 6-3 Capacity of Childcare Facilities Accepting Children with Special Needs and 

Estimates of Children Aged 0 to 2 with Disabilities, 2023 ................................... 77 

Table 6-4 Capacity of Childcare Facilities Accepting Children with Special Needs and 

Estimates of Children Aged 3 and 4 with Disabilities, 2023 ................................ 77 

Table 6-5 Childcare Capacity in Public Pre-Kindergarten and Early Education Classes in 

Participating San Antonio Districts, 2022-2023 .................................................. 79 

Table 6-6 Pre-K 4 SA Enrollment by District, 2020-2021 ...................................................... 82 

Table 6-7 Enrollment Characteristics for select Bexar County Head Start Providers, 2022 ... 83 

Table 6-8 Service Characteristics for Early Head Start and Head Start Programs, select 

Bexar County Providers, 2022 ........................................................................... 84 



vii 

Table 6-9 Children’s characteristics for Combined Early Head Start and Head Start 

Programs, select Bexar County Providers, 2022 ................................................ 85 

Table 6-10 Service Characteristics for Combined Early Head Start and Head Start Programs, 

select Bexar County Providers, 2022 ................................................................. 86 

 

List of Figures 
Figure 2-1 School Districts Serviced by the City of San Antonio, DHS Head Start Program, 

2022-2023............................................................................................................ 6 

Figure 3-1 Bexar County Projected Growth by Race and Ethnicity, 2023-2050....................... 9 

Figure 3-2 Births per ZIP Code in Bexar County, 2020 ......................................................... 10 

Figure 3-3 Percent of the Minority Population by Census Tract, Bexar County, 2017-2021 .. 16 

Figure 3-4 Percent of the Hispanic Population by Census Tract, Bexar County, 2017-2021 . 17 

Figure 3-5  Percent of the Non-Hispanic Black Population by Census Tract, Bexar County, 

2017-2021.......................................................................................................... 18 

Figure 3-6  Percent of Persons Aged 5 and Older that Speak Spanish at Home by Census 

Tract, Bexar County, 2017-2021 ........................................................................ 22 

Figure 3-7 Percent of Students Participating in Bilingual or ESL Programs for School Districts 

in Bexar County, 2022-2023 .............................................................................. 24 

Figure 3-8 Percent Bilingual/ESL Enrollment, by School District, 2022-2023 ........................ 25 

Figure 4-1 Percent of Adults 25 Years and Older with High School Diploma or Greater and 

with Bachelor’s Degree or Greater, 2017-2021 .................................................. 33 

Figure 6-1 Licensed Childcare Facilities that Accept Children Aged 0 to 2 by Capacity, ....... 67 

Figure 6-2 Licensed Childcare Facilities that Accept Children Aged 3 to 4 by Capacity, ....... 68 

Figure 6-3  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Children Aged 0 to 2 by Capacity, ........ 69 

Figure 6-4  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Children Aged 3 and 4 by Capacity,...... 70 

Figure 6-5  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Special Needs Children Aged 0 to 2 

Years by Capacity, Bexar County, 2023 ............................................................. 73 

Figure 6-6  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Special Needs Children Aged 3 to 4 

Years by Capacity, Bexar County, 2023 ............................................................. 74 

Figure 6-7  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Special Needs Children Aged 0 to 2 by 

Capacity, Bexar County, 2023............................................................................ 75 

Figure 6-8 Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Special Needs Children Aged 3 to 4 by 

Capacity, Bexar County, 2023............................................................................ 76 

Figure 6-9 Map of Pre-K for San Antonio Centers, 2023 ....................................................... 81 



1 

1. Executive Summary 
 

The City of San Antonio’s Department of Human Services (DHS) is a grantee of the U.S 

Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and Families (ACF) division 

and, in collaboration with local partners, provides high-quality education, disability, dental, health, 

safety, mental health, and nutrition services to eligible children residing in Edgewood and San 

Antonio Independent School Districts (ISDs). Head Start grantees are required to conduct 

community assessments every five years, and community assessment updates annually, to better 

assess and meet local need for Early Head Start and Head Start services. The following 

community assessment update provides updated information on the population of Edgewood and 

San Antonio ISDs, including demographics, estimates of age and income eligible children for 

Early Head Start and Head Start, information about other childcare and child development 

resources, and an overview of the community’s strengths.   

Many residents of central San Antonio, which contains Edgewood Independent School 

District (EISD) and San Antonio Independent School District (SAISD), live below the federal 

poverty threshold. San Antonio and Bexar County residents are younger, on average, than the 

Texas and U.S. populations; they are also more likely to be foreign born, a racial or ethnic minority, 

and living below the federal poverty threshold with related children compared to the state and 

national populations. Larger proportions of City and County residents speak Spanish at home, 

come from single-parent households, and live in larger households compared to these other 

geographies. Educational attainment tends to be lower, the unemployment rate is higher, reliance 

upon public assistance is greater, and high-skilled jobs are less common in the City and County, 

in comparison to the State and Nation. Compared to San Antonio and Bexar County, the 

proportions of EISD and SAISD residents with these characteristics are even greater. There are 

many children in the service area who are born into families with limited resources and notable 

barriers to reaching their full potential.   

 An assessment of the number of age-and-income eligible children in the service area and 

the children currently served by the City of San Antonio Department of Human Services (DHS) 

Early Head Start- (EHS) and Head Start (HS) Programs indicates that approximately 4,188 age-

and-income eligible children are not being served by the programs (1,511 for HS and 2,677 for 

EHS). Local resources such as childcare facilities, public schools, and other programs are serving 

a majority of the children that are age-and-income eligible for Head Start. However, it is unlikely 

children that are age-and-income eligible for Early Head Start Program are adequately served by 

these same resources.  



2 

A projected increase in the number of age-eligible children indicates that the need for Early 

Head Start-Child Care Partnership and Head Start services in Bexar County will likely become 

larger each year, at least through 2032. Adding to this need for services is the expanding number 

of children who will be diagnosed with disabilities. Assuming the rate of disabilities remains 

constant, and taking into account the projected growth of age-eligible children, an increase in 

required services through 2032 is expected.   

There are many services and resources in San Antonio that address the needs of families 

living in poverty in Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs. However, capacity to address the 

comprehensive needs of children living in poverty in these areas falls short at present. 

 

Please refer any questions or comments regarding the content or methods to 

Lloyd.Potter@utsa.edu, phone number: (210) 458-6530. 



3 

2. Grantee Profile 
     

As a grantee of the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services (HHS) for over almost 40 

years, the City of San Antonio, Department of Human Services (DHS), is responsible for the 

program administration, operational oversight, and management of funds for the local Early Head 

Start-Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) and Head Start Program. DHS has established a shared 

governance system, which allows program stakeholders at all levels to participate in the policy 

formation process. The structure includes the City of San Antonio Council, the Community Health 

and Equity Committee (CHEC) at the City level, the Head Start Policy Council (HSPC) at the 

program level, and the Parent Connection Committees (PCC) at the center level.  

 

  

Vision Statement:  
For every child and every family the best Head Start services every day. 
 
 
 

Source: City of San Antonio, Department of Human Services Head Start 2017-2023 Strategic Planning: Goals and Objectives  

Goals of the DHS Head Start Program: 
• Prepare children to succeed in school and life 

• Promote well-being of families to enable them to support their children’s learning and 

development  

• Children are healthy and ready to learn  

• Support the care of children by creating safe environments 

• Recruit and retain highly qualified staff  
 

Source: City of San Antonio, Department of Human Services Head Start 2017-2023 5-Year Strategic Planning: Goals and Objectives  

 

Mission Statement:  
Preparing children and engaging families for school readiness and life-long success. 

 
 

Source: City of San Antonio, Department of Human Services Head Start, 2017-2023 Strategic Planning: Goals and Objectives  



4 

Program Overview 

DHS’s Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership and Head Start Programs provide high-

quality early childhood education, disability, dental, health and safety, mental health, and nutrition 

services to qualified children and their families in the EISD and SAISD service areas. In addition, 

these programs offer family support services which include transportation, assistance accessing 

community resources, parent engagement activities, promotion of cultural diversity and self-

sufficiency, and opportunities for parent engagement and leadership. The Head Start program 

operates on the same schedule as a normal school year. 

Geography  

San Antonio is the seat of Bexar County and is located in South Central Texas, south of 

Austin and north of Laredo. The County is well-populated and houses 2.06 million of Texas’ total 

30 million residents. San Antonio is the County’s largest city and contained 1.43 million (69.6%) 

of the County’s residents in 2022 (Census Population Estimates Vintage 2022).  

Recruitment 

DHS Head Start Programs actively seek out and recruit families most in need of Head Start 

and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership services. Recruitment efforts begin in the spring and 

continue throughout the year to include publicizing in the EISD and SAISD service areas to 

enhance the likelihood eligible families and children will apply for the programs. The strategies 

involve a multimedia campaign, canvassing neighborhoods, billboards, social media, and 

referrals with other agencies.  Recruitment plans are developed and approved annually by the 

Governing Body and the Head Start Policy Council. The Head Start Programs utilize a selection 

criteria point matrix system which weighs vulnerability factors such as income, homelessness, 

involvement with the foster care system, disability status, and usage of public assistance. A 

minimum 10% of the programs’ annual enrollment needs to be comprised of children with 

disabilities and the program frequently exceeds this amount.  

  



5 

Service Area & Providers 

During the 2022-2023 school year, the DHS, Head Start Program served 3,387 children 

(Office of Head Start, 2022 Program Information Report, Cumulative Enrollment) at 22 school 

campuses throughout EISD and SAISD (3 in EISD and 19 in SAISD) and six Early Childhood 

Education Centers (Head Start ECKLC, Head Start Locator, Custom Search, 2023). The 

cumulative enrollment for Head Start was 3,046 children, and 341 children for the Early Head 

Start and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership Program. The funded enrollment during the 

same year was 3,364 children: the Head Start Program served 2,243 children in SAISD and 777 

children in EISD; 216 children were enrolled in the combined six centers in the Early Head Start-

Child Care Partnership Program (EHS-CCP); and the remaining 128 children were enrolled in the 

new Head Start Program. 

Services at these sites are provided through contractual partnerships with two education 

service providers and two health support service providers (DHS, Head Start, 2018 Services). 

EISD and SAISD collaborate with DHS to operate 25 school campuses in both districts. The San 

Antonio Metropolitan Health District, and University of the Incarnate Word, work with the programs 

to provide medical, dental, and health services, to include referrals to The Center for Health Care 

Services for mental wellness services to enrolled children and their families. Health services 

include on-site dental exams with a fluoride varnish, medical services include lead and 

hemoglobin screenings, nutrition consultations, and parent education classes.   

DHS was awarded an Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) grant and began 

to serve up to 216 children in the summer of 2015. Enrollees are provided services at six EHS-

CCP locations. These centers are located in four zip codes -- 78202, 78207, 78210, and 78237--

all of which are within EISD and SAISD, the City’s existing service areas.  However, please note 

children outside of these zip codes may also receive services from the EHS-CCP Program.  The 

zip codes where EHS-CCP centers are located are highlighted in green in Figure 2-1, and the 

Head Start service areas of SAISD and EISD are highlighted in blue.  

 



6 

 
Figure 2-1 School Districts Serviced by the City of San Antonio, DHS Head Start Program, 2022-2023 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2020 Tigerline Boundary Files 
  



7 

3. Demographic Profile of Bexar County 
 

Population Growth 

In 2010, Bexar County had a total population of just over 1.7 million (U.S. Census Bureau, 

2010 Census). Between 2010 and 2020, Bexar County grew 17.2% to an estimated 2.01 million 

residents. In comparison, Texas and the U.S. have only grown 15.9% and 7.4% during the same 

period (see Table 3-1), indicating Bexar County’s population grew faster than the populations of 

both Texas and the United States in the past decade (2010-2020). 

As Table 3-2 shows, Bexar County’s population growth over the past decade was mostly 

attributable to net migration (accounting for 53.9% of Bexar County’s population growth) rather 

than natural increase (46.1%). In addition, of the 167,751 who migrated into Bexar County, 

123,922 were from domestic migration. This is similar to Texas’ rates where the majority of the 

increase in population is due to net migration (51.7% of Texas’ population growth), and domestic 

migration was the major driver of Texas’ migration gain (1.3 million out of 2.2 million). By contrast, 

the nation’s population growth in the same time period was primarily due to natural increase 

(59.1% of the nation’s population growth).  

Between 2020 and 2022, as Bexar County, Texas, and the U.S. have begun to recover from 

the COVID-19 pandemic, they continued to see steady population growths, as illustrated in Table 

3-3. However, compared to the previous decade, net migration has accounted for a significantly 

greater proportion of the total population growth in Bexar County, Texas, and the U.S. (72.3%, 

74.7%, and 80.5%, respectively) during this time period.  

 

 

Table 3-1 Bexar County Population Growth Comparison between Texas and the United States, 
2010, 2020 

 
2010 2020 

Change 
Numeric Percent 

Bexar County 1,714,773 2,009,324 294,551 17.2% 

Texas 25,145,561 29,145,505 3,999,944 15.9% 

United States 308,745,538 331,449,281 22,703,743 7.4% 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 and 2020 Census Counts 

  



8 

Table 3-2 Estimated Bexar County Components of Population Change between 2010 and 2020 
 

2010 Census Count* 2020  
Estimate** 

Population 
Change 2010-2020** 

Natural 
Increase** 

Net Migration 

Total Foreign 
Migration** 

Domestic 
Migration** 

Bexar County 1,714,773 2,026,823 312,042 
(100.0%) 

143,219 
(46.1%) 

167,751 
(53.9%) 

43,829 123,922 

Texas 
25,145,561 29,360,759 4,214,687 

(100.0%) 
2,027,414 

(48.3%) 
2,173,519 

(51.7%) 
869,640 1,303,879 

U.S. 308,745,538 331,511,512 20,726,018 
(100.0%) 

12,257,668 
(59.1%) 

8,468,350 
(40.9%) 

8,468,350 0 

Source: *Decennial Census Count, US Census Bureau, 2010.  
            **Current Estimates of the Population, U. S. Census Bureau, 2020 Vintage.  
Note: This data reflects the estimated population change between April 1, 2010 to July 1, 2020.  
          Components may not add to total as residual is not presented in this table.  

 
 
  
Table 3-3 Estimated Bexar County Components of Population Change between 2020 and 2022 

 

2020 Census Count* 2022  
Estimate** 

Population 
Change 2020-2022** 

Natural 
Increase** 

Net Migration 

Total Foreign 
Migration** 

Domestic 
Migration** 

Bexar County 2,009,324 2,059,530 28,635 
(100.0%) 

7,957 
(27.7%) 

20,816 
(72.3%) 

5,263 15,553 

Texas 
29,145,505 30,029,572 470,708 

(100.0%) 
118,159 
(25.3%) 

349,575 
(74.7%) 

118,614 230,961 

U.S. 331,449,281 333,287,557 1,256,003 
(100.0%) 

245,080 
(19.5%) 

1,010,923 
(80.5%) 

1,010,923 0 

Source: *Decennial Census Count, US Census Bureau, 2020.  
            **Current Estimates of the Population, U. S. Census Bureau, 2022 Vintage.  
Note: This data reflects the estimated population change between April 1, 2020 to July 1, 2022.  
          Components may not add to total as residual is not presented in this table.  



9 

According to the Census 2010 population count for Bexar County, the non-Hispanic white 

population made up 30.3% of the total population in 2010 (2010 Census). In 2020, this percentage 

has declined to 26.7% (2020 Census P.L. 94-171 Summary File), and by 2050 non-Hispanic 

whites are projected to comprise 19.6% of all Bexar County residents (Texas Demographic 

Center, 2018). Meanwhile, the County’s share of minorities, especially Hispanics, will increase 

dramatically in the same time period (see Figure 3-1).   

 

 
Figure 3-1 Bexar County Projected Growth by Race and Ethnicity, 2023-2050 
Source: Texas Demographic Center Population Projections, 2018 

By further examining the geographic pattern of the natural increase in Bexar County, we can 

see that many of the births were concentrated in central Bexar County (see Figure 3-2). According 

to the Texas Vital Statistics (VSTAT) 2005-2020 as shown in Table 3-4, overall, COSA DHS Head 

Start service area appears to have larger shares of births to teenage mothers (8.1%), births to 

single mothers (62.8%), mothers with less than a high school education (22.0%), and births with 

low or very low birth weight (9.3%), when compared to Bexar County and the State. Among the 

zipcodes, 78207 and 78220 both have the highest share of births to teenage mothers (12.1%); 

78208 has the highest share of births to single mothers (75.5%); 78207 has the highest share of 

births to mothers without a high school/GED degree (32.1%); 78220 has the highest share of 

births with low or very low birthweight (12.8%) 

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

Total Pop

Hispanic

NH White

NH Black

NH Asian

NH Other



10 

 
Figure 3-2 Births per ZIP Code in Bexar County, 2020 
Note: White zip codes did not report any birth information between 2005-2020.  
Source: Texas Vital Statistics (VSTAT), 2005-2020. 
 

 



11 

Table 3-4 Births Occurring by Mother’s Characteristics, Selected Geographies, 2020 

 
 
Immigrants 

During 2017-2021, foreign born residents made up 13.1% of Bexar County’s population (see 

Table 3-5). Edgewood (18.8%) and San Antonio ISDs (15.2%) were estimated to have some of 

the greatest shares of foreign born among all Bexar County. Only Harlandale (16.1%) and South 

San Antonio ISDs (17.5%) had greater shares of foreign born population than SAISD. In contrast, 

Lackland ISD (4.5%) had the lowest proportion of foreign born residents.  

Among the foreign born population, the percentage of Hispanic foreign-born residents ranged 

from a low (15.1%) in Randolph Field ISD to a high (99.0%) in Harlandale ISD. The total foreign-

born population of Edgewood ISD (97.9%) and San Antonio ISD (92.5%) is almost entirely 

Hispanic, which is significantly higher than it is in the Country (71.7%) and in the State (64.3%).  

Geography Total 
Births 

Percent 
births to 

mothers aged 
15-19 years 

Percent of 
births to 
single 

mothers 

Percent of births 
to mothers with 

less than 
HS/GED 

Percent of 
births with low 

or very low 
birthweight 

Bexar County 25,247 5.9% 45.0% 12.0% 8.6% 
Texas 368,272 5.9% 41.5% 14.4% 8.2% 
All Zipcodes in 
the Service Area 4,970 8.1% 62.8% 22.0% 9.3% 

78201 490 5.5% 58.4% 19.2% 9.2% 
78202 199 8.0% 71.4% 30.7% 6.5% 
78203 87 0.0% 67.8% 23.0% 11.5% 
78204 139 0.0% 59.0% 11.5% 10.8% 
78205 11 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
78207 766 12.1% 70.0% 32.1% 9.4% 
78208 53 0.0% 75.5% 0.0% 0.0% 
78210 429 10.5% 58.7% 25.4% 11.0% 
78212 243 5.8% 46.1% 12.8% 8.6% 
78215 30 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
78219 266 5.6% 60.9% 16.9% 11.7% 
78220 297 12.1% 68.7% 24.9% 12.8% 
78222 365 6.3% 57.3% 16.7% 11.2% 
78225 165 8.5% 62.4% 21.8% 12.1% 
78226 109 0.0% 75.2% 28.4% 0.0% 
78228 695 8.6% 62.4% 17.3% 9.5% 
78235 34 0.0% 55.9% 0.0% 0.0% 
78237 592 9.8% 67.1% 25.5% 7.4% 

Note: 1. The table shows zipcodes that are within the COSA DHS Head Start service area boundaries.  
2. The highlighted zipcodes are COSA DHS Early Head Start service areas. 

Source: Texas Vital Statistics (VSTAT), 2005-2020. 



12 

Table 3-5 Bexar County Foreign Born Population Comparisons for Selected School Districts, 
2017-2021 

School 
District 

Total Population Foreign Born Population 
Estimate Percent 

Hispanic 
Estimate Percent 

of Total 
Population 

Percent 
Non-Hispanic 
White 

Percent 
Hispanic 

Alamo Heights 31,018 29.7 2,958 9.5 28.2 45.5 

East Central 60,146 59.7 5,105 8.5 5.1 84.1 

Edgewood 59,930 94.5 11,261 18.8 1.2 97.9 

Ft. Sam 4,655 21.8 232 5.0 20.7 39.2 

Harlandale 61,681 90.2 9,950 16.1 0.3 99.0 

Judson 140,437 45.3 16,727 11.9 9.1 67.2 

Lackland 9,287 12.7 417 4.5 1.9 28.1 

North East 426,221 47.7 53,492 12.6 11.0 63.0 

Northside 661,125 58.3 83,111 12.6 13.8 55.1 

Randolph Field 1,851 18.9 86 4.6 4.7 15.1 

San Antonio 304,696 79.2 46,462 15.2 3.7 92.5 
Schertz-
Cibolo-Univ. 
City 

81,978 33.1 5,345 6.5 12.4 52.0 

South San 
Antonio 47,098 89.6 8,223 17.5 1.1 96.9 

Somerset 16,134 82.4 1,815 11.2 1.0 96.9 

Southside 29,486 85.1 4,644 15.7 2.3 92.8 

Southwest 69,032 79.4 10,304 14.9 2.2 90.7 

Bexar County 1,990,522 60.9 261,127 13.1 9.0 71.7 

Texas 28,862,581 39.8 4,904,169 17.0 8.5 64.3 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP02, DP05 and Derived from B05003H & B05003I 

 

  



13 

Race and Ethnicity 

Racial/ethnic minorities (including Hispanic, Non-Hispanic Black, Non-Hispanic Asian, and 

Non-Hispanic Other) make up a greater proportion of the population in the City of San Antonio 

(76.9%) and Bexar County (73.5%) compared to the State (59.3%) and Nation (40.6%) 

(calculated from Table 3-6 and 3-9) and most other comparable counties, except El Paso County 

(88.5%) (calculated from Table 3-7 and 3-8). In comparison, even greater percentages of 

minorities reside in Edgewood (96.7%) and San Antonio (87.3%) ISDs than the City, County, 

State or Nation (calculated from Table 3-9).  

Minorities comprise more than 70% of Bexar County’s population, with non-Hispanic Whites 

comprising only 27% of the overall population. Specifically, Bexar county’s minority population 

includes 61% Hispanic residents, 7% Black or African-American residents, 3% Asian residents, 

and 3% of residents with another race (see Table 3-6). In comparison, more than one-third of 

Texas population are non-Hispanic Whites (41%) and more than half of the Nation’s population 

was non-Hispanic White (59%).  

The majority of EISD and SAISD populations were comprised of minority groups. Only 3% 

and 13% of Edgewood and San Antonio ISD residents were non-Hispanic White, respectively. 

Hispanics were the largest racial/ethnic group in these areas, accounting for 95% and 79% of 

each district’s residents, respectively (see Table 3-9).  

Figure 3-3 highlights the distribution of racial/ethnic minority group across Bexar County. 

Minorities are heavily concentrated within the Interstate 410 Loop and the southern part of the 

County. Neighborhoods characterized by larger percentages of Hispanics are located in central 

San Antonio and extend southwards, much like the pattern seen for the distribution of minorities 

(see Figure 3-4). In contrast, neighborhoods with greater shares of non-Hispanic Blacks are 

clustered in eastern and scattered portions of western Bexar County (see Figure 3-5). These 

neighborhoods, which are composed of higher concentrations of minority populations, are among 

some of the most densely populated and oldest neighborhoods in San Antonio, making up the 

urban core of the County and the City of San Antonio. Edgewood and San Antonio ISD boundaries 

encompass the central part of San Antonio, where higher proportions of Hispanic population are 

concentrated.  

  



14 

Table 3-6 Racial and Ethnic Composition Comparison, Bexar County, Texas, the United States, 
2017-2021 

 

Table 3-7 Racial and Ethnic Composition Comparison for Bexar, Dallas, and El Paso Counties, 
2017-2021 

 
 

 

  

 Bexar County Texas United States 
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 

Total 1,990,522 100 28,862,581 100 329,725,481 100 

Hispanic  
(any race) 1,211,997 60.9 11,479,932 39.8 60,806,969 18.4 

White  
(non-Hispanic) 528,230 26.5 11,745,032 40.7 196,010,370 59.4 

Black  
(non-Hispanic) 139,101 7.0 3,401,742 11.8 40,196,302 12.2 

Asian  
(non-Hispanic) 57,230 2.9 1,433,683 5.0 18,554,697 5.6 

Other  
(non-Hispanic) 53,964 2.7 802,192 2.9 14,157,143 4.4 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP05 & derived from DP05. 

 Bexar Dallas El Paso 

Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 

Total 1,990,522 100 2,604,722 100 860,485 100 

Hispanic  
(any race) 1,211,997 60.9 1,060,847 40.7 713,245 82.9 

White  
(non-Hispanic) 528,230 26.5 727,315 27.9 98,627 11.5 

Black  
(non-Hispanic) 139,101 7.0 577,977 22.2 24,593 2.9 

Asian  
(non-Hispanic) 57,230 2.9 170,330 6.5 9,084 1.1 

Other  
(non-Hispanic) 53,964 2.7 68,253 2.5 14,936 1.7 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP05 & derived from DP05. 



15 

Table 3-8 Racial and Ethnic Composition Comparison for Harris, Tarrant and Travis Counties, 
2017-2021 

 
 

Table 3-9 Racial and Ethnic Composition Comparison, Edgewood ISD, San Antonio ISD, City of 
San Antonio, 2017-2021 

 Harris Tarrant Travis 
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 

Total 4,697,957 100 2,091,953 100 1,267,795 100 

Hispanic  
(any race) 2,049,914 43.6 617,233 29.5 426,399 33.6 

White  
(non-Hispanic) 1,327,632 28.3 937,492 44.8 609,580 48.1 

Black  
(non-Hispanic) 868,262 18.5 347,638 16.6 99,855 7.9 

Asian  
(non-Hispanic) 327,705 7.0 117,095 5.6 87,994 6.9 

Other  
(non-Hispanic) 124,444 2.6 72,495 3.5 43,967 3.4 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP05 & derived from DP05. 

 Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 

Total 59,930 100 304,696 100 1,434,540 100 

Hispanic  
(any race) 56,613 94.5 241,218 79.2 942,637 65.7 

White  
(non-Hispanic) 1,952 3.3 38,633 12.7 331,546 23.1 

Black  
(non-Hispanic) 988 1.6 18,479 6.1 86,293 6.0 

Asian  
(non-Hispanic) 83 0.1 1,886 0.6 40,709 2.8 

Other  
(non-Hispanic) 294 0.5 4,480 1.5 33,355 2.3 

Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP05 & derived from DP05. 



16 

 
Figure 3-3 Percent of the Minority Population by Census Tract, Bexar County, 2017-2021 
Source: American Community Survey, Five-year Sample, DP05, 2017-2021 

 

  



17 

 
Figure 3-4 Percent of the Hispanic Population by Census Tract, Bexar County, 2017-2021 
Source: American Community Survey, Five-year Sample, DP05, 2017-2021 

 

 

  



18 

 
Figure 3-5  Percent of the Non-Hispanic Black Population by Census Tract, Bexar County, 2017-2021 
Source: American Community Survey, Five-year Sample, DP05, 2017-2021 

 

 

 
 
  



19 

The racial/ethnic composition of children enrolled in the Head Start, Early Head Start, and 

EHS-CCP Programs reflects the composition of San Antonio and Bexar County. Enrollees 

typically belong to a minority group and although there is a large share of Whites (85.6%) (see 

Tables 3-11), Black (10.9%) and Biracial/Multiracial (3.1%) children make up the next largest 

racial groups. However, it is important to note that most of the children identified racially as White 

are of Hispanic ethnicity (Table 3-10 and 3-11) given that approximately 90% of the City’s HS and 

EHS-CCP Program enrollees are Hispanic. 

 

 
Table 3-10 Ethnicity of Enrolled Head Start, Early Head Start, and EHS-CCP Children, 2022 

Ethnicity 
Children Enrolled 

Total Percent (%) 

Hispanic (any Race) 2,564 89.9% 
Non-Hispanic (any Race) 289 10.1% 
Total Cumulative Enrollment 2,853 100.0% 
Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Summary Report, 2022 

 

Table 3-11 Race of Enrolled Head Start, Early Head Start, and EHS-CCP Children, 2022 

Race 
Children Enrolled 

Total Percent (%) 
White 2,442 85.6% 

NH Whites 42 1.5% 
Black or African American 310 10.9% 
Asian 4 0.1% 
American Indian or Alaska Native 7 0.2% 
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 1 0.0% 
Biracial/Multi-Racial 89 3.1% 
Other 0 0.0% 
Unspecified 0 0.0% 
Total Cumulative Enrollment 2,853 100.0% 
Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Summary Report, 2022 

  



20 

Languages  

About 38% of Bexar County residents speak a language other than English, compared to 

35% of State residents, and 22% of the Nation’s residents (see Table 3-13). Among all the foreign 

languages, Spanish is the most widely spoken foreign language in Bexar County (34% of County 

residents speak Spanish).   

A substantial proportion of foreign language users have limited English proficiency. An 

estimated 11.3% of Bexar County residents speak English less than “very well.” Spanish speakers 

comprise the majority of residents with limited English proficiency in the County (88%, 184,100 

out of 209,373 residents). In addition, 1.4% of Bexar County residents who speak a language 

other than English and Spanish is estimated to have difficulty speaking English.  

Speaking Spanish at home is especially prevalent in the central and southern portions of the 

County (see Figure 3-6). These areas of higher Spanish utilization overlap with districts served 

by the COSA DHS Head Start, EHS, and EHS-CCP Programs. The remaining foreign language 

speakers come from a number of different origins and make up less than 4% of the population. 

Other than Spanish, Chinese, Vietnamese, Korean, and Japanese make up roughly half the 

remaining foreign languages spoken in the County.  

 A larger proportion of Edgewood and San Antonio ISD residents speak Spanish than the 

City, County, State, or Nation’s residents (see Tables 3-12 and 3-13). About 66% of EISD 

residents and 51% of SAISD residents speak a language other than English, in comparison to 

42% of San Antonio, 38% of Bexar County, 35% of Texas, and 22% of U.S. residents. Among 

foreign language speakers, this language was overwhelmingly Spanish for EISD (99%, 36,577 

out of 36,774) and SAISD (97%, 140,300 out of 144,288) residents—more so than for residents 

of the City (91%), County (90%), State (82%) or Nation (61%). 

 The proportion of Edgewood ISD (25%) and San Antonio ISD (16%) residents who spoke 

Spanish with limited English proficiency (who reported speaking English less than “very well”) is 

higher than the proportion of the city (11%), county (10%), state (11%), and the nation (5%). This 

implies that large portions of Edgewood and San Antonio ISD populations may require services 

in Spanish. Very few residents spoke a language other than English or Spanish at home in either 

district (EISD 0.4% and SAISD 1.4%). Those speaking a language other than English or Spanish 

and reported spoke English less than “very well accounted for 0.2% and 0.4% of EISD and 

SAISD’s residents, respectively. 

  



21 

Table 3-12 Language Spoken at Home Population 5 Years and Over, Edgewood ISD,            
San Antonio ISD, City of San Antonio, 2017-2021 
 Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 

Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 
Population 5 and up 55,525 100.0 284,717 100.0 1,338,970 100.0 
English only 18,751 33.8 140,429 49.3 779,970 58.3 
Language other 
than English 36,774 66.2 144,288 50.7 559,000 41.7 

Speak English less  
than "very well" 13,846 24.9 47,884 16.8 169,963 12.7 

Spanish 36,577 65.9 140,300 49.3 507,235 37.9 
Speak English less 
than "very well" 13,751 24.8 46,671 16.4 150,998 11.3 

Language other than  
English and Spanish 197 0.4 3,988 1.4 51,765 3.9 

Speak English less  
than "very well" 95 0.2 1,213 0.4 18,965 1.4 

Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.   
         The two main categories of language speakers are English and Language Other than English speakers. The Language  
         Other than English category is further divided into those who speak Spanish or those who speak a Language other than     
         English and Spanish.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP02 

 
 
Table 3-13 Language Spoken at Home Population 5 Years and Over, Bexar County, Texas and 
the United States, 2017-2021 
 Bexar County Texas United States 

Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 
Population 5 and up 1,854,261 100.0 26,903,358 100.0 310,302,360 100.0 
English only 1,144,351 61.7 17,460,783 64.9 243,098,950 78.3 
Language other 
than English 709,910 38.3 9,442,575 35.1 67,203,410 21.7 

Speak English less  
than "very well" 209,373 11.3 3,532,172 13.1 25,535,259 8.2 

Spanish 638,131 34.4 7,717,053 28.7 41,157,140 13.3 
Speak English less 
than "very well" 184,100 9.9 2,955,978 11.0 16,079,944 5.2 

Language other than  
English and Spanish 71,779 3.9 1,725,522 6.4 26,046,270 8.4 

Speak English less  
than "very well" 25,273 1.4 576,194 2.1 9,455,315 3.0 

Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.   
         The two main categories of language speakers are English and Language Other than English speakers. The Language  
         Other than English category is further divided into those who speak Spanish or those who speak a Language other than     
         English and Spanish.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP02 

 



22 

 
Figure 3-6  Percent of Persons Aged 5 and Older that Speak Spanish at Home by Census Tract, 
Bexar County, 2017-2021 
Source: American Community Survey, 5 Year Sample, DP02, 2017-2021 

 

  



23 

Texas Education Agency enrollment data for all of Bexar County’s independent school 

districts was used to help identify the approximate geographic location of Spanish speakers (TEA, 

Student Program Reports, 2022-2023). The density of students enrolled in bilingual or English as 

a Second Language (ESL) education is highest in the county center and extends southward and 

northward (see Figure 3-7). Edgewood ISD and San Antonio ISD were among the independent 

school districts with the greatest proportion of students participating in these programs. 

Specifically, EISD (17%) and SAISD (23%) have greater percentages of enrolled bilingual and/or 

ESL students than either the County (15%) or the State (19%) (see Figure 3-8).  

These data give valuable information about families and Spanish language use in Bexar 

County. The need for Spanish language services rises in areas of prevalent bilingual instructions. 

These areas overlap with the Hispanic neighborhoods in San Antonio, which leads to the 

assumption the families of bilingual students are mostly Spanish speakers. Edgewood and San 

Antonio ISDs, whose boundaries cover areas of high concentration of Hispanic population and 

bilingual/ESL students, will likely need to cater services to both Spanish speakers and English 

learners.  

  



24 

 
Figure 3-7 Percent of Students Participating in Bilingual or ESL Programs for School Districts in 
Bexar County, 2022-2023 
Source: Texas Education Agency, Student Program Reports, 2022-2023 
 
 

 



25 

 
Figure 3-8 Percent Bilingual/ESL Enrollment, by School District, 2022-2023 
Source: Texas Education Agency, Student Program Reports, 2022-2023 
 

 

Among enrolled children, English is the language most commonly spoken at home 

(75.2%). About one-fifth of families speak Spanish as their primary language, and less than 1% 

of families spoke a language other than English or Spanish at home (see Table 3-14). In 

comparison to the City (38%) and County (34%) average (see Table 3-12 and 3-13), a smaller 

percentage of enrollees spoke Spanish at home (22%). More than twice the proportion of EISD 

(66%) and SAISD (49%) residents spoke Spanish at home, when compared to enrolled children 

(22%) (see Table 3-12 and 3-14).  

 

Table 3-14 Primary Language of Family at Home, 2022 

Language Head Start Children Enrolled 
Number Percent (%) 

English 2,213 75.2% 
Spanish 632 21.5% 
Other Languages 8 0.3% 
Total Cumulative Enrollment 2,942 100.0% 
Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Summary Report, 2022 

  

19.2

14.7

22.6

17.1

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0

TEXAS

BEXAR COUNTY

San Antonio ISD

Edgewood ISD

% of Students Enrolled in Bilingual/ESL Programs 

Ge
og

ra
ph

y
Percent of Students Enrolled in Bilingual/ESL Programs 



26 

The prevalence of multi-language speakers in San Antonio and Bexar County suggests that 

a substantial portion of enrollees speak other languages. However, data from the DHS Early Head 

Start-Child Care Partnership and Head Start Programs indicates that enrollees rely less on 

Spanish than the rest of the City and County. The concentration of Hispanics and Spanish 

speakers in EISD and SAISD indicates that services may be best provided in Spanish, as well as 

English. However, the number of services offered in Spanish should be proportional to the 

relatively smaller portion of enrolled families that rely on this language rather than the proportion 

suggested at the City and County levels. 

 

Household Structure  

In 2022, Bexar County was the fourth most populous county in Texas (behinds Harris, Dallas, 

and Tarrant counties) and had a total population of 2.06 million people (Census Population 

Estimates Vintage 2022). Most of the County’s residents live in City of San Antonio (1.43 million), 

which contained an estimated 69.6% of the County’s 2022 population.  

The City of San Antonio, Bexar County, and State of Texas shared similar age structures 

between 2017 and 2021. The population of all three geographies is younger, when compared to 

the Nation. City of San Antonio and Bexar County have a median age of 33.9 and 34.0, compared 

to Texas’ median age of 35.0, and the Nation’s median age of 38.4 (see Tables 3-15 and 3-16). 

In comparison to City of San Antonio, the residents of EISD (33.6) are slightly younger whereas 

residents of SAISD (35.2) are slightly older. Overall, EISD (7.4%), SAISD (6.6%), and City of San 

Antonio (6.7%) all have greater shares of children under 5 years old than the Nation (5.9%). These 

younger age structures, when compared to the Nation, indicate a greater-than-national need for 

services targeted towards the youngest members of the population.  

With regard to types of households, Table 3-17 and 3-18 indicate that single parent families 

make up a larger proportion of EISD (13.5%) and SAISD (10.0%) households when compared 

with the City (8.8%), County (7.1%), State (6.3%), or Nation (5.1%). The average household size 

in EISD (3.13) is larger than the State (2.76) and the Nation (2.60), whereas the average 

household size in SAISD (2.57) is slightly smaller than the State and the Nation.   

  



27 

Table 3-15 Edgewood ISD, San Antonio ISD and City of San Antonio Populations by Age, 2017-2021 
  Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 

Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 
Total  59,930 100.0 304,696 100.0 1,434,540 100.0 

Under 5 years 4,405 7.4 19,979 6.6 95,570 6.7 
18 years and older   42,681 71.2 232,941 76.5 1,081,681 75.4 
65 years and older 8,094 13.5 42,874 14.1 179,646 12.5 

Median age 33.6 - 35.2 - 33.9 - 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, S0101. 

 
 
Table 3-16 United States, Texas, and Bexar County Population by Age, 2017-2021 

  Bexar County Texas United States 
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 

Total  1,990,522 100.0 28,862,581 100.0 329,725,481 100.0 
Under 5 years 136,261 6.8 1,959,223 6.8 19,423,121 5.9 
18 years and older   1,481,866 74.4 21,416,405 74.2 255,491,406 77.5 
65 years and older 239,878 12.1 3,620,798 12.5 52,888,621 16.0 

Median age 34.0 - 35.0 - 38.4 - 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, S0101. 

 
 
Table 3-17 Edgewood ISD, San Antonio ISD and City of San Antonio Demographic and 
Household Characteristics, 2017-2021 

  
  

Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 

Total Population  59,930 100.0 304,696 100.0 1,434,540 100.0 
Population under 5 4,405 7.4 19,979 6.6 95,570 6.7 

Total households 19,056 100.0 114,560 100.0 535,610 100.0 
Single Parent Families 
with Children Under 
18 Years 

2,564 13.5 11,400 10.0 47,177 8.8 

Average household size 3.13 - 2.57 - 2.64 - 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, S0101 and derived from DP02. 

 
 
  



28 

Table 3-18 Bexar County, Texas and United States Demographic and Household 
Characteristics, 2017-2021 

  
  

Bexar County Texas United States 
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 

Total Population  1,990,522 100.0 28,862,581 100.0 329,725,481 100.0 
Population under 5 136,261 6.8 1,959,223 6.8 19,423,121 5.9 

Total households 717,124 100.0 10,239,341 100.0 124,010,992 100.0 
Single Parent Families 
with Children Under 
18 Years* 

50,637 7.1 640,866 6.3 6,374,132 5.1 

Average household size 2.73 - 2.76 - 2.60 - 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, S0101 and derived from DP02. 

 

 

Substantially more enrolled children reside in single-parent, rather than two-parent 

households (see Tables 3-19). Two-thirds of Head Start households were single-parent families, 

compared to about one-tenth of EISD and SAISD families in the Census data (see Tables 3-17). 

DHS enrollees have a much greater proportion of single-parent families (67%) than is estimated 

for EISD (14%), SAISD (10%), the City (9%), County (7%), State (6%), or Nation (5%) (see Table 

3-17 and 3-18). Thus, the DHS Early Head Start, EHS-Child Care Partnership, and Head Start 

Programs may need to target more resources towards single-parent families given their large 

proportion among enrolled families.  

 

Table 3-19 Number and Percentage of Single and Two Parent Homes, 2022 

 

  

Family Type 
Head Start Families 

Number Percent 
Two Parent Family 869 33.16 
Single Parent Family  1,752 66.84 
Total Number of Families at Enrollment 2,621 100.00 
Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Summary Report, 2022 



29 

4. Education, Health, Nutrition and Social Service Needs 
 

Education 

San Antonio offers a number of opportunities for higher education to its residents. In 2022, 

there were 48 colleges and technical schools located within Bexar County (National Center for 

Education Statistics, Custom College Navigator Search, 2023). Of these institutions, 19 were less-

than-two-year programs, 11 were two-year programs, and 18 were four-or-greater year programs. 

These institutions include not-for-profit universities and accredited community colleges.  

Educational attainment of the City of San Antonio is similar to the attainment of Bexar County, 

but slightly different from the State. The most numerous category is those with some college 

experience, followed by those with a Bachelor’s degree or greater education, those with high 

school diplomas or GED’s, and those with less than a HS diploma (see Tables 4-1 and 4-2). Texas 

has the largest share of individuals with a Bachelor's degree (31.5%), when compared to the City 

(27.3%) and County (30.0%). However, the proportion of population with at least a high school 

degree/GED is lower in the City (83.3%), County (85.4%), and State (84.8%) than the Nation 

(88.9%).  

The educational attainment of Edgewood and San Antonio ISD residents is less than the 

educational attainment of the City, County, State, and Nation. EISD and SAISD reported double 

the percentage of residents with less than a high school diploma. Almost 40% of the population 

of EISD (38.3%), and over 25% of SAISD residents (26.7%), have not completed a high school 

diploma. Only 5% of EISD residents and 16% of SAISD residents had earned at least a Bachelor’s 

degree, compared to San Antonio (27.3%), Bexar County (30.0%), Texas (31.5%), and U.S. 

residents (33.7%). In contrast to these other areas, larger shares of EISD (35.2%) and SAISD 

(30.8%) residents have a high school diploma than the City (25.5%), County (24.4%), State 

(24.5%), or nation (26.5%). However, smaller percentages of EISD (21.5%) and SAISD (26.4%) 

residents have some college experience when compared to the City, County, State, and Nation 

(ranges from 28.7% to 31.0%).  

Figure 4-1 highlights the proportion of adults with a high school diploma or greater, and with 

a Bachelor’s degree or greater for Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs, the City, State, and Nation. 

A smaller share of EISD and SAISD adults have at least a high school diploma, in comparison to 

other geographies. The proportion of adults with at least a high school diploma ranges from a 

61.7% in EISD to 73.3% in SAISD. Similarly, the percentage of adults with a college diploma or 

greater is also lowest in EISD (5.0%) and SAISD (16.2%), when compared to the City (27.3%), 

County (30.0%), State (31.5%), and Nation (33.7%). The lower educational attainment of EISD 



30 

and SAISD residents, and the parallel between parental and child educational attainment, 

suggests that the children of these parents will have a much greater need of support to be 

successful in school.  

Many of the children living in the service area participate in public school (see Tables 4-3 and 

4-4). Estimates of school enrollment from the American Community Survey (ACS) suggest that 

846 children in EISD, 4,236 children in SAISD, 20,527 children in San Antonio, and 29,341 

children in Bexar County are enrolled in nursery school or preschool. Thus, there is a substantial 

portion of young children residing in these areas who are estimated to use public school as a 

resource for early childhood education.  

 

Table 4-1 Educational Attainment among Persons Aged 25 Years and Older, Edgewood ISD, 
San Antonio ISD and San Antonio, 2017-2021 

  
Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San 

Antonio 
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 

People 25 years and over 36,839 100.0 200,519 100.0 928,765 100.0 
  No high school diploma 14,096 38.3 53,524 26.7 155,408 16.7 
  High school graduate or equiv.* 12,981 35.2 61,740 30.8 236,773 25.5 
  Some college, no Bachelor's** 7,934 21.5 52,840 26.4 282,630 30.4 
  Bachelor's degree or higher 1,828 5.0 32,415 16.2 253,954 27.3 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, B16010 and derived from B16010. 
Notes: *Includes people who earn a GED. 
          **Includes people with an Associate’s degree, but not a Bachelor’s degree. 
Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 

 
 
Table 4-2 Educational Attainment among Persons Aged 25 Years and Older, Bexar County, 
Texas, the United States, 2017-2021 

  
Bexar County Texas United States 

Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 
People 25 years and over 1,278,847 100.0 18,619,469 100.0 225,152,317 100.0 
  No high school diploma 187,071 14.6 2,826,181 15.2 25,050,356 11.1 
  High school graduate or equiv.* 311,876 24.4 4,563,619 24.5 59,636,386 26.5 
  Some college, no Bachelor's** 396,349 31.0 5,358,474 28.8 64,656,741 28.7 
  Bachelor's degree or higher 383,551 30.0 5,871,195 31.5 75,808,834 33.7 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, B16010 and derived from B16010. 
Notes: *Includes people who earn a GED. 
          **Includes people with an Associate’s degree, but not a Bachelor’s degree. 
Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 

 



31 

Table 4-3 School Enrollment by Level of School for the Population 3 Years and Over, 
Edgewood ISD, San Antonio ISD and San Antonio, 2017-2021 

  
Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 

People 3 and over 57,326 100.0 293,494 100.0 1,381,444 100.0 
Enrolled in school: 16,009 27.9 75,655 25.8 380,669 27.6 

Enrolled in nursery 
school, preschool 846 1.5 4,236 1.4 20,527 1.5 

Enrolled in 
kindergarten 1,217 2.1 4,677 1.6 20,503 1.5 

Enrolled in grade 1 to 
grade 4 4,380 7.6 16,369 5.6 79,397 5.7 

Enrolled in grade 5 to 
grade 8 3,664 6.4 15,934 5.4 78,826 5.7 

Enrolled in grade 9 to 
grade 12 3,872 6.8 15,243 5.2 79,339 5.7 

Enrolled in college, 
undergraduate years 1,830 3.2 16,097 5.5 82,265 6.0 

Graduate or 
professional school 200 0.3 3,099 1.1 19,812 1.4 

Not enrolled in school 41,317 72.1 217,839 74.2 1,000,775 72.4 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, B14001 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 

 
  



32 

Table 4-4 School Enrollment by Level of School for the Population 3 Years and Over, Bexar 
County, Texas, the United States, 2017-2021 

  
Bexar County Texas United States 

Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent 
People 3 and over 1,914,077 100.0 27,720,714 100.0 318,402,496 100.0 

Enrolled in school: 540,630 28.2 7,752,643 28.0 81,076,829 25.5 
Enrolled in nursery 
school, preschool 29,341 1.5 435,637 1.6 4,744,776 1.5 

Enrolled in 
kindergarten 28,702 1.5 413,772 1.5 4,050,752 1.3 

Enrolled in grade 1 to 
grade 4 114,290 6.0 1,635,589 5.9 16,067,988 5.0 

Enrolled in grade 5 to 
grade 8 115,688 6.0 1,713,746 6.2 17,002,367 5.3 

Enrolled in grade 9 to 
grade 12 112,598 5.9 1,692,163 6.1 17,256,453 5.4 

Enrolled in college, 
undergraduate years 111,026 5.8 1,506,511 5.4 17,528,870 5.5 

Graduate or 
professional school 28,985 1.5 355,225 1.3 4,425,623 1.4 

Not enrolled in school 1,373,447 71.8 19,968,071 72.0 237,325,667 74.5 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, B14001 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 

  



33 

 
Figure 4-1 Percent of Adults 25 Years and Older with High School Diploma or Greater and with 
Bachelor’s Degree or Greater, 2017-2021 
 
Source: US Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 5-Year Sample, 2017-2021, B16010 

  

61.7

73.3

83.3 85.4 84.8
88.9

5.0

16.2

27.3 30.0 31.5 33.7

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

EISD SAISD San Antonio
City

Bexar County Texas U.S.

Pe
rc

en
t

Percentage with High School Diploma or Greater Percentage with Bachelor's Degree or Greater



34 

Health and Nutrition 

Food insecurity is a substantial issue affecting Bexar County families and their children. One 

indicator of food insecurity is the percentage of residents participating in programs like cash public 

assistance (e.g., Temporary Assistance for Needy Families; TANF), Supplemental Nutrition 

Assistance Program (SNAP), and Women, Infants and Children (WIC). Tables 4-5 through 4-7 

provide information about the percentage of children and households that participate in these 

federal assistance programs.  

Households in Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs rely on public assistance more than 

residents of the City or State. According to Table 4-5 and Table 4-6 usage of all food assistance 

programs increased in EISD (from 32.9% to 38.9%) but slightly decreased in SAISD (from 25.8% 

to 25.0%) between 2016 and 2021. SNAP was the most utilized form of assistance, followed by 

Supplemental Security Income (SSI), and then cash public assistance. During 2017-2021, over 

one-third of EISD households and one-quarter of SAISD households used SNAP, compared to 

15.8% of City of San Antonio and 11.5% of Texas households. About 11.3% of EISD and 10.0% 

of SAISD households rely upon SSI, compared to only 6.4% of San Antonio and 4.6% of Texas 

households. Cash public assistance is used at more comparable rates between geographies, but 

greater shares of EISD (3.9%) and SAISD (3.1%) households used this resource when compared 

to the City (2.6%) and State (1.9%).  

The Kids Count Data Center (Annie E. Casey Foundation Project) also produces statistics 

for public assistance use, but specifically for children aged 0 to 17 years (See Table 4-7). Based 

on the available data, a smaller proportion of children in Bexar County relied on TANF (0.4%) 

than did children in the State of Texas (0.6%) in 2019. By contrast, a larger proportion of children 

in Bexar County relied on SNAP (26.0%) than Texas children (23.1%) in 2021. In addition, number 

of children aged under 5 who received WIC decreased by 23% for Bexar County and 29% for the 

State, respectively, between 2015 and 2021.  

 

  



35 

Table 4-5 Percent of Public Assistance Received by Residents of DHS Head Start Service Area, San Antonio, and Texas, 2012-2016 

 
 
 
 
Table 4-6 Percent of Public Assistance Received by Residents of DHS Head Start Service Area, San Antonio, and Texas, 2017-2021 

 
  

Program 
2011-2015 

Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio Texas 
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Total Households 17,644 100.0 107,056 100.0 491,636 100.0 9,289,554 100.0 
Supplemental Security Income (SSI) 2,959 16.8 11,812 11.0 33,735 6.9 452,536 4.9 
Cash public assistance* 459 2.6 2,691 2.5 8,943 1.8 147,100 1.6 
Food stamps (SNAP) 5,808 32.9 27,568 25.8 79,163 16.1 1,220,336 13.1 

Note: This data reflects households earning public assistance income and does not reflect age-eligible children alone.  
 Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
*Cash public assistance includes TANF. 
 
Source: US Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 5-Year Estimates, 2012-2016, DP03 

Program 
2016-2020 

Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio Texas 
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Total Households 19,056 100.0 114,560 100.0 535,610 100.0 10,239,341 100.0 
Supplemental Security Income (SSI) 2,150 11.3 11,471 10.0 34,479 6.4 467,082 4.6 
Cash public assistance* 747 3.9 3,580 3.1 13,942 2.6 196,678 1.9 
Food stamps (SNAP) 7,421 38.9 28,658 25.0 84,757 15.8 1,178,059 11.5 

Note: This data reflects households earning public assistance income and does not reflect age-eligible children alone.  
 Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
*Cash public assistance includes TANF. 
 
Source: US Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 5-Year Estimates, 2017-2021., DP03 



36 

Table 4-7 Percent of Public Assistance Received by Children 0-17 or 0-4 Years of Age, Bexar County, Texas, 2015-2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Program Bexar County Texas 
 2015 2017 2019 2020 2021 2015 2017 2019 2020 2021 

Percent of Child Receiving 
TANF* 0.50% 0.50% 0.40% - - 0.80% 0.70% 0.60% - - 

Percent of Children Receiving 
Supplemental Nutrition 
Assistance (SNAP, formerly 
Food Stamps) 

32.10% 31.30% 28.00% 29.60% 25.99% 28.90% 28.90% 24.80% 26.30% 23.06% 

Number of Children Receiving 
WIC   
(0-4 years)* 

45,896 - 36,107 36,043 35,319 680,545 - 494,688 307,026 486,476 

* data for 2020-2021 TANF and 2017 WIC are not available 
Source: Annie E. Casey Foundation, KIDS COUNT, 2015-2021 



37 

Some types of public assistance programs are more commonly used by the DHS Head 

Start families than households in EISD, SAISD, San Antonio or Texas (see Table 4-8, compared 

to Table 4-6). Enrolled families most often used SNAP (56.0%) and least often used TANF (0.9%). 

41.4% of families participated in WIC and 6.1% participated in SSI. 

A substantial proportion of Bexar County households and their children rely on public 

assistance programs like SNAP, TANF and WIC. Reliance on some of these programs is even 

greater among enrolled families at the DHS Head Start Program provided by the City of San 

Antonio. Dependence on these forms of assistance suggests that food and food-related 

assistance is an important resource for Bexar County residents, especially families residing in the 

COSA DHS Head Start service area. However, these percentages represent those who are 

eligible, maintain their eligibility, and who apply for and receive these benefits. These figures do 

not reflect the potentially substantial number of children and families who are eligible for these 

programs who do not apply to receive benefits. 

 

 
Table 4-8 Social Services Utilized by DHS Head Start Families, 2022 

  
  

DHS Head Start Families 
Total Percent 

TANF  21 0.8 
SSI 160 6.1 
WIC 1,084 41.4 
SNAP 1,469 56.0 
Total Cumulative Enrolled Families 2,621 100.0 
Note: Families may receive assistance from more than one program so totals do not add to 100%.  
Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Summary Report, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



38 

Social Services 

The prevalence of child abuse and neglect is another factor that affects the overall quality of 

life for San Antonio and Bexar County residents. The number and rate of child abuse cases can 

serve as an indicator of the need for social services. Between 2012 and 2022, the rate of 

confirmed victims has steadily decreased in Bexar County (see Table 4-9). The rate of confirmed 

victims per 1,000 children decreased from 13.1 to 9.0 in Bexar County. Similarly, the rate 

decreased from 9.2 to 7.4 for Texas during the same time period. This local decline in child 

abuse/neglect seemed to most benefit Bexar County children aged 3 to 5, whose confirmed cases 

dropped substantially during this time period (from around 1,400 to under 1,000). The decline in 

child abuse/neglect may indicate an increasingly better quality of life for Bexar County and Texas 

families. Alternatively, this decline may be the result of a reduction in reporting instances of child 

abuse/neglect.  

 

Table 4-9 Confirmed Victims of Child Abuse/Neglect for Bexar County, FY 2012-2022 
 FY 

2012 
FY 

2017 
FY 

2022 
Bexar 
County Texas Bexar 

County Texas Bexar 
County Texas 

Age 0-2 2,029 20,192 2,011 21,739 1,805 19,224 
Age 3-5 1,384 14,508 1,046 12,804 956 11,201 
Age 6-8 1,030 10,777 866 10,323 711 8,243 

 
Total Confirmed 
Victims  6,205 64,366 5,588 63,644 4,971 56,934 

Rate of 
Confirmed 
Victims per 
1,000 Children 

13.1 9.2 11.0 8.7 9.0 7.4 

Source: Texas Department of Family and Protective Services, 2012, 2017 & 2022. 
Note: The rate of confirmed victims per 1,000 children is the same by gender and race/ethnicity. Thus, these sections 
were removed from the chart this year.  

 

  



39 

Income and Poverty 

On average, residents living in Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs had lower household 

income and per capita than the City, County, and State (Table 4-10). A larger percentage of EISD 

(11.9%) and SAISD (13.0%) households make less than $10,000 when compared to other areas 

(ranges from 2.4% to 7.6%). Also, fewer households in the EISD (0.8%) and SAISD (2.6%) service 

areas made high incomes in comparison to the city (4.6%), county (6.4%), and state (8.7%).  

The median household income was also lower in Edgewood and San Antonio school 

districted than comparable geographies. The median income was $34,440 in EISD and $38,449 

in SAISD, in comparison to $55,084 in the City of San Antonio, $62,169 in Bexar County, and 

$67,321 in Texas. Per capita income was also lower in EISD ($15,898) and SAISD ($22,598) than 

in the City of San Antonio ($28,579), Bexar County ($31,233), and the State ($34,255). Both 

districts also had relatively higher percentages of families with children under 5 years which were 

below the poverty threshold (EISD 43.7%; SAISD 43.8%) than other school districts (ranges from 

0% to 31.0%), the City (27.6%), County (23.1%), and State (21.4%). 

Table 4-10 Income and Poverty in Selected Geographies, 2017-2021 

Geography 

Percent of 
households 

with less 
than 

$ 10,000 
income 

Percent of 
households 
with more 

than 
$ 200,000 

income 

Median 
household 

income 

Per capita 
income 

Percent of all 
families with 

related children 
under 5 whose 

income is below 
poverty level 

Alamo Heights ISD 4.0 24.5 83,858 73,450 0.0 
East Central ISD 6.9 4.5 67,885 27,869 24.5 
Edgewood ISD 11.9 0.8 34,440 15,898 43.7 
Fort Sam Houston ISD 2.0 7.1 82,466 24,192 20.2 
Judson ISD 2.6 3.6 67,453 29,374 15.6 
Lackland ISD 5.9 5.7 74,038 22,468 10.7 
North East ISD 5.3 8.2 66,667 36,720 22.7 
Northside ISD 5.0 7.1 71,874 34,100 14.3 
Randolph Field ISD 2.5 7.4 108,333 30,241 0.0 
San Antonio ISD 13.0 2.6 38,449 22,598 43.8 
South San Antonio ISD 7.6 0.5 41,533 17,083 31.0 
Somerset ISD 3.1 3.5 62,139 23,569 20.8 
Southside ISD 5.8 1.0 48,991 20,422 29.5 
Southwest ISD 4.3 2.1 60,115 21,159 26.6 

City of San Antonio 7.6 4.6 55,084 28,579 27.6 
Bexar County, Texas 6.4 6.4 62,169 31,233 23.1 
Texas 5.7 8.7 67,321 34,255 21.4 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP03. 

 



40 

Employment 

The American Community Survey (ACS) provides some insight into the work and 

employment characteristics of the population residing in Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs (see 

Tables 4-11 and 4-12). More than half of EISD (55.3%) and SAISD (58.0%) residents are in the 

labor force, meaning that they are either employed or unemployed and looking for a job. In 

comparison, more than 60% of San Antonio (65.5%), Bexar County (66.1%), Texas (65.1%) and 

U.S. (63.6%) residents are currently in the labor force. These statistics suggest that a slightly 

larger part of the service area’s residents is not in the labor force, when compared to the 

population of these other geographies. The unemployment rate in EISD (8.1%) and SAISD (6.8%) 

were slightly higher than the unemployment rate in the County (5.6%), State (5.4%), or Nation 

(5.5%). Less than 1% of EISD and SAISD residents are part of the armed forces. 

Table 4-11 Employment Characteristics in Selected School Districts and City of San Antonio, 
2017-2021 
 Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Population 16 years and over 44,770 100.0 240,851 100.0 1,122,211 100.0 

In Labor Force 24,774 55.3 139,646 58.0 734,718 65.5 
Civilian Labor Force 24,713 55.2 138,721 57.6 725,625 64.7 

Employed 22,700 50.7 129,277 53.7 683,174 60.9 
Unemployed 2,013 4.5 9,444 3.9 42,451 3.8 

Armed Forces 61 0.1 925 0.4 9,093 0.8 
Not in Labor Force 19,996 44.7 101,205 42.0 387,493 34.5 

Own Children under 6 years, 
all parents in labor force 5,996 55.4 28,145 63.8 151,608 68.0 

Unemployment Rate 8.1 - 6.8 - 5.9 - 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP03 

 
Table 4-12 Employment Characteristics in Bexar County, Texas, and the United States, 2017-
2021 
 Bexar County Texas United States 

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Population 16 years and 
over 1,539,033 100.0 22,261,181 100.0 264,087,642 100.0 

In Labor Force 1,016,560 66.1 14,492,816 65.1 167,869,126 63.6 
Civilian Labor Force 995,114 64.7 14,390,216 64.6 166,672,597 63.1 

Employed 939,296 61.0 13,618,630 61.2 157,510,982 59.6 
Unemployed 55,818 3.6 771,586 3.5 9,161,615 3.5 

Armed Forces 21,446 1.4 102,600 0.5 1,196,529 0.5 
Not in Labor Force 522,473 33.9 7,768,365 34.9 96,218,516 36.4 

Own Children under 6 years, 
all parents in labor force 221,430 68.4 3,270,611 67.9 34,480,760 71.9 

Unemployment Rate 5.6 - 5.4 - 5.5 - 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP03 



41 

 As shown in Tables 4-13 and 4-14, workers residing in Edgewood (72.8%) and San 

Antonio (71.6%) ISDs appear to be less likely to drive alone to work, when compared to the City 

(74.6%), County (74.8%), State (77.0%), and the nation (73.2%). In contrast, greater percentages 

of the EISD and SAISD labor forces carpooled or used public transportation than other 

geographies (except public transportation in the nation). Working at home workers accounted for 

smaller proportion of the workforce in EISD (3.9%) and SAISD (5.8%) than the proportion at the 

City (8.0%), County (8.8%), State (9.1%), and national (9.7%) levels. However, regardless of the 

primary means of transportation, the labor force in all areas traveled an average of 23-27 minutes 

to work.  

 

 
Table 4-13 Means of Transportation to Work in Selected School Districts, 2017-2021 
 Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Workers 16 Years and Older 22,043 100.0 127,811 100.0 678,361 100.0 

Drove Alone 16,052 72.8 91,537 71.6 506,006 74.6 
Carpooled 3,758 17.0 16,601 13.0 79,721 11.8 
Public Transportation 782 3.5 5,238 4.1 14,551 2.1 
Walked 245 1.1 3,988 3.1 12,136 1.8 
Other Means 352 1.6 3,019 2.4 11,917 1.8 
Worked at Home 854 3.9 7,428 5.8 54,030 8.0 

Travel Time to Work 26.1 - 22.5 - 24.3 - 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP03 

 

Table 4-14 Means of Transportation to Work in Bexar County, Texas, and the United States, 
2017-2021 
 Bexar County Texas United States 

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Workers 16 Years and Older 941,932 100.0 13,464,482 100.0 155,284,955 100.0 

Drove Alone 704,766 74.8 10,362,598 77.0 113,724,271 73.2 
Carpooled 106,170 11.3 1,305,734 9.7 13,340,838 8.6 
Public Transportation 16,180 1.7 152,475 1.1 6,472,373 4.2 
Walked 16,341 1.7 196,328 1.5 3,849,557 2.5 
Other Means 15,439 1.6 216,514 1.6 2,836,232 1.8 
Worked at Home 83,036 8.8 1,230,833 9.1 15,061,684 9.7 

Travel Time to Work 25.6 - 26.6 - 26.8 - 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP03 

  



42 

Most employees living in Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs worked in service occupations 

(see Tables 4-15). A greater proportion of EISD (27.9%) and SAISD (25.0%) workers held service 

occupations, when compared to City (20.1%), County (18.6%), State (16.6%) or Nation (17.0%). 

The percentage of sales and office occupations was similar across all geographies (ranges from 

20.2% to 23.6%). Reletively smaller shares of EISD and SAISD workers are employed in 

management, business, science, and arts occupations (15.0% and 26.4%, respectively) 

compared to the City (34.8%), County (37.4%), State (38.5%) and Nation (40.3%). Occupations 

that involve natural resources, construction, and maintenance occupations made up a larger 

proportion of employees in EISD (22.1%) and SAISD (14.4%) when compared to the other 

geographies (between 8.7% and 10.5%). Production, transportation, and material moving 

occupations also accounted for a greater percentage of the jobs in EISD (14.8%) and SAISD 

(13.0%), in comparison to the City (11.4%), County (11.2%), State (12.9%) and Nation (13.1%).  

In review, relatively low-skilled occupations comprised larger shares of EISD and SAISD 

jobs than in the other areas, whereas higher-skilled jobs, which often have more benefits and less 

associated risks, made up a greater proportion of the occupations in the City, County, State and 

Nation. A potential reason for the abundance of low-skilled work in EISD and SAISD is an unmet 

need for education and job training among residents. Providing assistance with education, job 

training, and job acquisition may help to qualify more EISD and SAISD workers for higher-skilled 

jobs, which would bring greater income and associated benefits into their households.  

 
Table 4-15 Type of Occupation in Selected School Districts and City of San Antonio, 2017-2021 

 Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Civilian employed 
population 16 years and 
over 

22,700 100.0 129,277 100.0 683,174 100.0 

Management, business, 
science, and arts 
occupations 

3,415 15.0 34,115 26.4 237,972 34.8 

Service occupations 6,323 27.9 32,258 25.0 137,186 20.1 

Sales and office 
occupations 4,589 20.2 27,523 21.3 161,209 23.6 

Natural resources, 
construction, and 
maintenance occupations 

5,015 22.1 18,567 14.4 69,126 10.1 

Production, 
transportation, and 
material moving 
occupations 

3,358 14.8 16,814 13.0 77,681 11.4 

Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP03 



43 

Table 4-16 Type of Occupation in Bexar County, Texas, and the United States, 2017-2021 

 

 
Housing  

The housing stock in the City of San Antonio (10.4%), Bexar County (15.2%), and Texas 

(14.5%) consists a relatively higher share of new single family homes (homes built after 2010), 

when compared to the nation (7.5%). By contrast, as shown in Table 4-17, the housing stock in 

the DHS, Head Start service areas is composed of a smaller share of new single family homes 

(4.0% in EISD and 7.3% in SAISD). Similarly, SAISD had the largest share (19.8%) of old housing 

stock (homes built before 1940), compared to all the other geographies. Additionally, more of the 

housing stock in Edgewood (9.1%) and San Antonio ISDs (12.4%) was vacant, compared to the 

City (8.5%) and County (7.8%).  

Home owners in Edgewood ISD (3.1) and San Antonio ISD (2.8) had larger average 

household sizes when compared to home owners in all the other geographies (ranges from 2.7 

to 2.9). Similarly, renters in Edgewood ISD had a larger average household size (3.1) when 

compared to renters in all the other geographies (ranges from 2.3 to 2.5). The percent of housing 

units with no vehicle available was highest in San Antonio ISD (14.3%), followed by Edgewood 

ISD (12.4%), City of San Antonio (7.9%), Bexar County (6.5%), and the State (5.2%). The percent 

of housing units with more than 1.5 occupants per room was also highest in EISD (2.1%) and 

SAISD (2.1%), followed by the City (1.6%), County (1.5%), State (1.5%), and Nation (1.1%). 

 Bexar County Texas United States 
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Civilian employed 
population 16 years and 
over 

939,296 100.0 13,618,630 100.0 157,510,982 100.0 

Management, business, 
science, and arts 
occupations 

351,124 37.4 5,245,369 38.5 63,469,480 40.3 

Service occupations 175,031 18.6 2,262,556 16.6 26,826,595 17.0 

Sales and office 
occupations 217,890 23.2 2,927,917 21.5 32,862,044 20.9 

Natural resources, 
construction, and 
maintenance occupations 

90,130 9.6 1,429,514 10.5 13,719,271 8.7 

Production, 
transportation, and 
material moving 
occupations 

105,121 11.2 1,753,274 12.9 20,633,592 13.1 

Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP03 



44 

Median home value was lowest in SAISD ($79,800) and EISD ($80,000), followed by the City 

($167,700), County ($187,300), State ($202,600), and nation ($244,900). Overall, the distribution 

of housing characteristics tends to mirror patterns of the distribution of socioeconomic 

characteristics of the population. 

 

Table 4-17 Housing Characteristics for Selected School Districts, City of San Antonio, Bexar 
County, Texas, and the United States, 2017-2021 

  Edgewood 
ISD 

San Antonio 
ISD 

City of 
San 

Antonio 

Bexar 
County Texas United 

States 

Percent of 
Housing Units 
Vacant 

9.1 12.4 8.5 7.8 10.4 11.2 

Percent of 
Housing Units 
Built After 2010 

4.0 7.3 10.4 15.2 14.5 7.5 

Percent of 
Housing Units 
Built Before 
1940 

3.3 19.8 5.4 4.5 3.3 12.2 

Percent of 
Housing Units 
Renter-occupied 

41.5 51.9 47.7 41.3 37.6 35.4 

Average 
Household Size 
of Owner-
occupied Units 

3.1 2.8 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.7 

Average 
Household Size 
of Renter-
occupied Units 

3.1 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.4 

Percent of 
Housing Units 
with No Vehicles 
Available 

12.4 14.3 7.9 6.5 5.2 8.3 

Percent of 
Housing Units 
with More than 
1.5 Occupants 
per Room 

2.1 2.1 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.1 

Median Home 
Value $80,000 $79,800 $167,700 $187,300 $202,600 $244,900 

Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, DP04 



 

45 

Foster Children 

Foster children do not account for a substantial portion of Bexar County’s residents. The 

number of children in foster care, and the rate of children in foster care per 1,000 children, has 

steadily decreased over the past five years (see Table 4-18). There was an average of 2,012 

foster children living in Bexar County covered by paid foster care between fiscal year 2018 and 

2022. On the other hand, an estimated 249 (1.4%) foster children lived in EISD, 1,123 (1.6%) 

lived in SAISD, 6,295 (1.8%) lived in City of San Antonio, and 9,220 (1.8%) lived in Bexar County 

(see Table 4-19 and 4-20). These numbers, however, reflect all foster children 0-17 years rather 

than foster children (and other unrelated children) who are age-eligible for Early Head Start-Child 

Care Partnership or the Head Start Program.  

 

 

Table 4-18 Monthly Average of Children in Paid Foster Care (0-17 Years), Bexar County, 2018-
2022 

 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 5-Year 
Average 

Number of Children in Foster 
Care (0-17 Years)* 2,143 2,115 2,073 2,039 1,690 2,012 

Number of Children** 506,083 506,594 506,086 503,610 506,417 505,758 

Rate per 1,000 children ages  
0-17 4.23 4.17 4.10 4.05 3.34 3.98 
Note: The number and rate per 1,000 of children, ages 0-17, in foster care. 
Source: *Texas Department of Family and Protective Services. 
            ** Census Bureau Population Estimate – 2022 Vintage. 
Footnotes: The term foster care refers to care given to children under the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services' (DFPS) 
legal responsibility who are placed in foster homes, foster group homes, institutions, residential treatment facilities, juvenile facilities, and 
who are in a placement paid by DFPS or some other public facility. 

 
 

Table 4-19 Number of Children (Under 18) by Relationship to Head of Household, Selected 
School Districts and City of San Antonio, 2017-2021 

Geography 
Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Total 17,242 100.0 71,379 100.0 351,790 100.0 

Own child 12,402 71.9 55,024 77.1 292,343 83.1 
Grandchild 3,579 20.8 12,614 17.7 42,592 12.1 
Other relatives 1,012 5.9 2,618 3.7 10,560 3.0 
Foster child or other 
unrelated child 249 1.4 1,123 1.6 6,295 1.8 

Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, B09018 

 
  



 

46 

Table 4-20 Number of Children (Under 18) by Relationship to Head of Household, Selected 
School Districts, 2017-2021 

Geography 
Bexar County Texas United States 

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 
Total 507,467 100.0 7,428,662 100.0 74,008,972 100.0 

Own child 428,994 84.5 6,473,025 87.1 64,900,280 87.7 
Grandchild 55,381 10.9 658,018 8.9 5,950,690 8.0 
Other relatives 13,872 2.7 199,567 2.7 1,832,155 2.5 
Foster child or other 
unrelated child 9,220 1.8 98,052 1.3 1,325,847 1.8 

Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table.  
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, B09018 

 

 

During 2017-2021, foster children (regardless of age) made up 0.03% (in Edgewood ISD) and 

0.07% (in San Antonio ISD) of the household population (see Table 4-21). Shares of foster 

children in EISD and SAISD were smaller than the proportion in the City (0.12%), County (0.10%), 

State (0.07%), and Nation (0.09%) (see Table 4-21 and 4-22). Data from the Texas Education 

Agency (TEA) Fiscal Year 2022-2023 indicated that Approximately 65 foster children were 

estimated to live in San Antonio ISD, and 10 foster children were living in EISD (see Table 4-23). 

Both EISD and SAISD have a smaller share of foster students (0.11% and 0.14%, respectively), 

when compared to the State (0.22%) (see Table 4-23). In general, the TEA data show less than 

one percent of enrolled students in the service areas are in the foster care system, which is 

consistent with the Census ACS date in Table 4-19 and Table 4-20 (combining foster children 

and other unrelated children).  

 

  



 

47 

Table 4-21 Children’s Relationship to the Household, Selected School Districts and City of San 
Antonio, 2017-2021 

Geography  Edgewood ISD San Antonio ISD City of San Antonio 
Total Population 59,930 304,696 1,434,540 

In households 59,650 294,049 1,414,365 
     Child: 21,668 90,709 445,089 

Biological child 20,830 85,505 414,882 
Adopted child 306 1,943 10,031 
Stepchild 532 3,261 20,176 
Grandchild 4,469 16,722 54,562 

      Nonrelatives: Foster child 19 210 1,651 
      Foster child % 0.03% 0.07% 0.12% 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2016-2020 American Community Survey, B09019 

 

Table 4-22 Children’s Realtionship to the Household by Type of Household, Bexar County, 
Texas, and United States, 2017-2021 

Geography  Bexar County Texas United States 
Total Population 1,990,522 28,862,581 329,725,481 

In households 1,960,094 28,293,548 321,899,278 
     Child: 636,088 9,218,381 95,603,152 

Biological child 589,591 8,604,119 89,507,476 
Adopted child 15,434 192,371 2,137,155 
Stepchild 31,063 421,891 3,958,521 
Grandchild 70,419 833,942 7,831,254 

      Nonrelatives: Foster child 1,909 21,126 279,800 
      Foster child % 0.10% 0.07% 0.09% 
Note: Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, B09019 

 

Table 4-23 Foster Care Students, Selected Districts, 2022-2023 

District Total Foster 
Care Students 

Total 
Enrollment 

Percent Foster 
Students 

EISD 10 8,177 0.11 
SAISD 65 45,255 0.14 
Texas 12,265 5,518,432 0.22 
Source: Texas Education Agency, Student Program Reports, 2022-2023 

 
 

 



 

48 

Children with Disabilities 

The Texas Department of Assistive and Rehabilitative Services (DARS) operates with the 

Early Childhood Intervention (ECI) programs for Texas families with children age 0-3 years old 

with disabilities and developmental delays (Texas Department of Assistive and Rehabilitative 

Services, 2021). Three ECI programs operate in Bexar County and served 7,042 children (5.47% 

of the total population of 0-3 year olds) in FY 2021 (see Table 4-24). This proportion is greater 

than the share of served 0-3 year olds in the state (3.53%), indicating a greater need for, and 

reliance upon, special needs services for children 0-3 years in the Bexar County.  

 

Table 4-24 ECI Enrollment for Bexar County and Texas*, FY 2021 

 

 

  

Geography Birth-to-3 Population Total Children 
Served 

Percent of Population 
Served 

Bexar County 128,662 7,042 5.47% 
Texas 1,733,788 61,240 3.53% 
*Note: Bexar County area is serviced by three Early Childhood Intervention (ECI) centers, which are the Easter Seals 
Rehabilitation Center, the Center for Health Care Services, and the Brighton Center.  
Source: Texas Department of Assistive and Rehabilitative Services, Early Childhood Intervention, 2021. 



 

49 

In the 2022 program year, about 455 children served by the COSA DHS Head Start Programs 

were determined to have a disability. Among these children, speech and language impairments 

were the most common disabilities (252 children, 8.8%). The next most common disabilities 

among enrolled children were non-categorical developmental delays (105 children, 3.7%), and 

autism (65 children, 2.3%) (see Table 4-25). All enrolled children determined to have a primary 

disability received special services through the DHS Head Start Programs.  

 

 

Table 4-25 Number of Children Served by DHS Head Start by Disability, 2022 

Disability Number 
with 

Disability 

Percent with 
Disability 

Number 
Receiving 
Special 

Services 

Percent 
Receiving 
Special 

Services 
Health Impairment  18 0.63% 18 0.63% 
Emotional Disturbance  0 0.00% 0 0.00% 
Speech Impairment  252 8.83% 252 8.83% 
Intellectual Disabilities  4 0.14% 4 0.14% 
Hearing Impairment  6 0.21% 6 0.21% 
Orthopedic Impairment  4 0.14% 4 0.14% 
Visual Impairment  1 0.04% 1 0.04% 
Specific Learning Disabilities  0 0.00% 0 0.00% 
Autism  65 2.28% 65 2.28% 
Traumatic Brain Injury  0 0.00% 0 0.00% 
Non-Categorical/ 
Developmental Delay  105 3.68% 105 3.68% 

Multiple Disabilities (excluding 
Deaf-blind)  0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

Deaf-blind 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 
Total Cumulative Enrollment 2,853 100.00% 2,853 100.00% 

Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Summary Report, 2022 

 
  



 

50 

Estimated Number of Children with a Disability by Type 

The Texas Education Agency (TEA) provides data about the number of school-age children 

enrolled in special education (see Table 4-26). The most prevalent disabilities reported by 

Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs were other health impairment, learning disability, and speech 

impairment during the 2022-2023 school year. These three disabilities make up more than two 

thirds (697 out of 1,045 for EISD and 4,607 out of 6,589 for SAISD) of the primary disabilities in 

these two independent school districts served by the DHS Head Start Programs. Some caveats 

of these numbers are that they reflect primary disability only and include counts for children of all 

ages, rather than those children age-eligible for EHS-CCP or Head Start alone.   

Breakouts of age-specific disability rates were produced to clarify the needs of children under 

the age of five. Rates of children enrolled in special education (all ages) were applied to the 2017-

2021 estimate of children aged 0 to 2, and 3 and 4, years of age (see Table 4-27). The need for 

special services among Early Head Start and Head Start age-eligible children is clear. 

Approximately 1,971 EHS-aged children and 1,514 HS-aged children were estimated to have 

special needs and reside in Edgewood or San Antonio ISD (total of 3,485s). Note in this table, 

that the number of children with disabilities is likely an overestimate. Disability rates for older 

children tend to be higher because disabilities and identified and become diagnosed as children 

age and become more engaged in learning.  

 

 



 

51 

Table 4-26 Disability Counts by School District, 2022-2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Table 4-27 Estimated Number of Age-Eligible Children with Disabilities by School District, Bexar County, 2022-2023

 
 

1 Total refers to an estimate number of students with at least one disability and FERPA masked values are added as 2.  

School District 

O
rth

op
ed

ic
 

Im
pa

irm
en

t 

O
th

er
 H

ea
lth

 
Im

pa
irm

en
t 

Au
di

to
ry

 
Im

pa
irm

en
t 

Vi
su

al
 

Im
pa

irm
en

t 

D
ea

f/B
lin

d 

In
te

lle
ct

ua
l 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 

Em
ot

io
na

l 
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 
D

is
ab

ilit
y 

Sp
ee

ch
 

Im
pa

irm
en

t 

Au
tis

m
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l 

D
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

Tr
au

m
at

ic
 

Br
ai

n 
In

ju
ry

 
N

on
-

ca
te

go
ric

al
 

Ea
rly

 
C

hi
ld

ho
od

 

To
ta

l1  

Edgewood ISD 2* 247 2* 2* 0 169 42 224 226 98 0 2* 23 1045 
San Antonio ISD 28 783 40 22 2* 559 449 2,697 1,127 733 0 2* 147 6,589 
Note: *Indicates numbers that have been masked to comply with FERPA. 
Source: Texas Education Agency, PEIMS Standard Reports, Special Education Reports, 2022-2023 

District 

Enrolled 
Students 

2022-2023* 

Students with 
Disabilities 
2022-2023* 

Percent of 
Population 

that is 
Disabled 

Children Aged 0 
to 2 Years, 

2017-2021** 

Estimated 
Number of 0 
to 2 Year Old 
Children with 
Disabilities 

Children Aged 
3 and 4 

Years, 2017-
2021** 

Estimated 
Number of 3 
and 4 Year 

Old Children 
with 

Disabilities 
Edgewood ISD 8,393 1,045 12.5 2,604 324 1,801 224 

San Antonio ISD 44,710 6,589 14.7 11,174 1,647 8,754 1,290 
 1,971   1,514 

Source: *Texas Education Agency, Student Program Reports, 2022-2023. 
            **U.S. Census Bureau, 2017-2021 American Community Survey, B09001. 
Note: Estimated Number of Children is calculated by multiplying the exact, unrounded percentage of disability with the number of age-eligible children provided by the ACS.   



 

52 

Homeless Children 

Less information is available for homelessness than for other types of high-risk status among 

children. The available data show that 259 families (202 for HS and 57 for EHS) served by the 

COSA DHS Head Start Program  experienced homelessness in 2022. Approximately 9.9% of the 

families (8.7% for HS and 19.5% for EHS) served by the DHS program experienced 

homelessness, compared to the 4.8% of families (3.6% for HS and 7.8% for EHS) served by Head 

Start Programs in Bexar County, excluding the COSA DHS Head Start Program, and 5.1% of 

served families (4.5% for HS and 7.1% for EHS) across the State (see Tables 4-28, 4-29, and 4-

30). Thus, the COSA DHS Head Start Program served a larger share of homeless families than 

the average of Head Start Programs in Bexar County and Texas.  

Data from the Texas Education Agency (TEA) shows 1.4% of enrolled students in Edgewood 

ISD and 2.6% of enrolled students in San Antonio ISDs experience homelessness, which is 

greater than the State proportion of 1.3% (see Table 4-33). Although this share is likely higher 

because it includes all children 0-17, the numbers suggest a portion of homeless students in the 

service are age-and-income eligible for the DHS Head Start programs.  

 

 

Table 4-28 Enrolled Families Experiencing Homelessness, 2022 
 Head Start Early Head Start 

Number Percent Number Percent 
Total Number of Families 2,328 100.0 293 100.0 

Number of Families Experiencing Homelessness 
Served 202 8.7 57 19.5 

Families Experiencing Homelessness that 
Acquired Housing 43 21.3 6 10.5 

Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Performance Indicator Report (PIR), 2022 

 
 
Table 4-29 Enrolled Families Experiencing Homelessness in Bexar County, 2022 

 Head Start Early Head Start 
Number Percent Number Percent 

Total Number of Families 2,835 100.0 1,137 100.0 
Number of Families Experiencing Homelessness 
Served 103 3.6 89 7.8 

Families Experiencing Homelessness that 
Acquired Housing 20 19.4 31 34.8 

Note: These numbers include counts from local Head Start providers in Bexar County, excluding the City of San Antonio. 
Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Performance Indicator Report (PIR), 2022 

  



 

53 

Table 4-30 Enrolled Families Experiencing Homelessness in Texas, 2022 
 Head Start Early Head Start 

Number Percent Number Percent 
Total Number of Families 49,326 100.0 14,775 100.0 

Number of Families Experiencing Homelessness 
Served 2,211 4.5 1,047 7.1 

Families Experiencing Homelessness that 
Acquired Housing 432 21.3 250 23.9 

Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Performance Indicator Report (PIR), 2022 

 
 
 
Table 4-31 Homeless Students in DHS Head Start Service Area and Texas, 2022-2023 

District Total Homeless 
Students 

Total 
Enrollment 

% of Homeless 
Students 

Edgewood ISD 118 8,177 1.4 
San Antonio ISD 1,188 45,255 2.6 
Combined School Districts 1,306 53,432 2.4 
Texas 72,654 5,518,432 1.3 
Source: Texas Education Agency, Student Program Reports, 2022-2023 



 

54 

5. Eligibility Estimates  
 

Method Used to Estimate Age and Income Eligibility 

The population of children who were eligible for COSA DHS, Early Head Start-Child Care 

Partnership (EHS-CCP), Early Head Start (EHS), and Head Start (HS) in the Edgewood and San 

Antonio ISDs were previously estimated for each area using two different methods. The first 

method used was based on the U.S. Census Bureau estimates and the second used vital statistics 

(births and deaths). In this report, due to the discontinuance of the sub-county level vital statistics 

published by San Antonio Metropolitan Health District, it was decided that the Vital Statistics 

Method would not to be used to conduct eligibility estimates in the COSA DHS EHS/HS service 

area. Instead, age-income eligibility estimates in this report are based on the U.S. Census Bureau 

American Community Survey data.  

 

U.S. Census Bureau Method 
For the age-income eligibility estimates, the population under 5 years old in 2021 come from 

the U.S. Census Bureau’s 2021 American Community Survey (ACS) 5-Year estimates. The 

number of children aged 0 to 2 years, and 3 to 4 years was derived from the specific ACS table 

(B09001) for each geography. Estimates of the percent of children aged under 5 years living under 

poverty also come from the ACS (2017-2021 5-year sample) and this percent is assumed to be 

the same for 0-2 and 3-4 year-old children. This percent is applied to the estimates of 0-2 and 3-

4 year-old children to estimate the number of children who were age-and-income eligible for both 

the Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership and Head Start programs. 

 

Conclusions and Recommendations 

Tables 5-1 and 5-2 present the estimates of Early Head Start and Head Start age-and-

income eligible children, based on the U.S. Census Bureau method. Estimates suggested a deficit 

of 2,677 slots for EHS (a total of 3,018 age and income eligible children and only 341 children 

enrolled in EHS or EHS-CCP). The U.S. Census Bureau method also indicated there is a deficit 

of approximately 1,511 slots in the area served by the DHS Head Start program (a total of 4,557 

age and income eligible children and funded enrollment of 3,046 children in HS). Tables 5-3 and 

5-4 provide the number of age-and-income eligible in EISD and SAISD along with surrounding 

school districts for reference. 

Not all families who have age- and income-eligible children in the DHS Head Start Program 

service area will enroll their children in DHS Head Start Program for a number of reasons. Thus, 

the number of DHS Head Start slots may be adequate for the population targeted (deficit of 2,677 



 

55 

EHS and 1,511 HS eligible children). Specifically, San Antonio school districts provided pre-

kindergarten and early education for over 19,000 children (847 in EISD and 4,294 in SAISD) 

during the 2022-2023 school year (see Table 6-5). Furthermore, between 2022 and 2023, 

childcare facility capacity within the COSA DHS service area for children aged 0 to 2 and 3 to 4 

was 7,513 and 10,837, respectively (see Table 6-1 and 6-2). In addition, Pre-K 4 SA enrollment 

(394 enrolled children were from EISD and SAISD combined, see Table 6-6) may also account 

for some of these age- and income-eligible children. Local Head Start Programs in Bexar County 

(excluding the COSA DHS Head Start Program) also provided services to Head Start-aged 

children, with a combined cumulative enrollment of over 1,287 Early Head Start and 3,046 Head 

Start children (see Table 6-7). Therefore, children aged 3-4 years may be adequately served by 

the DHS, Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership and Head Start programs and other area 

resources.     

However, it appears there may be need for additional Early Head Start slots in the area 

(deficit of 2,677 children), compared to the Head Start Program (deficit of 1,511 children). In fact, 

additional slots were created for the EHS-CCP Expansion grant a few years ago, which has 

helped to alleviate some of the demand. However, fewer resources serve children aged 0-2 years 

when compared to children 3-4 years and older, in general. Early Education is not widely available 

and tends to have few enrollees; additionally, many families may not be aware this program is 

available to them. Likewise, many families may not be able to afford the cost of local childcare. 

With about 2,677 age and income eligible children (Table 5-1) not being served, it appears the 

program may need to further expand to address the existing need for children aged 0-2 years 

living in the service area.  

  



 

56 

Table 5-1 Estimates of Age and Income Eligible Children by Zipcode for Children 0-2 Years of Age, Program Year 2022  
Population 
of 0 to 2 
Year Old 
Children* 

Estimated % of 
Children Under 5 
Years Old Living 
Below Poverty* 

Estimated 
Number of 

Children 0 to 2 
Years Old 

Living Below 
Poverty 

Funded 
Enrollment by 

ISD  
(2022)** 

Estimated 
% of 0 to 2 
Year Old 
Children 

Enrolled in 
EHS 

Estimated % 
of Income 

Eligible 0 to 
2 Year Olds 
Enrolled in 

EHS 

Estimated 
Number of 

Income Eligible 0 
to 2 Year Olds 

Not Being Served 
by EHS 

EHS Service Area 6,237 48.5 3,018 341 5.5 11.3 2,677 
     78202 246 51.7 127 

 

     78203 260 33.2 86 
     78204 410 15.9 65 
     78205 8 48.5 4 
     78207 2,235 63.2 1,412 
     78208 236 60.4 142 
     78210 1,340 45.0 603 
     78237 1,502 38.5 578 
 *American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample B09001 & B17001 
** Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Summary Report, 2022 



 

57 

Table 5-2 Estimates of Age and Income Eligible Children by District for Children 3-4 Years of Age, Program Year 2022  
Population 
of 3 and 4 
Year Old 
Children* 

Estimated % of 
Children Under 5 
Years Old Living 
Below Poverty* 

Estimated 
Number of 3 

and 4 Year Old 
Children Living 
Under Poverty 

Funded 
Enrollment by 

ISD  
(2022)** 

Estimated 
% of 3 and 
4 Year Old 
Children 

Enrolled in 
HS 

Estimated % of 
Income Eligible 
3 and 4 Year 
Old Children 

Enrolled in HS 

Estimated 
Number of 

Income Eligible 3 
and 4 Year Olds 

Not Being 
Served by HS 

Edgewood ISD 1,801 42.7 769 777 43.1 101.0 -8 
San Antonio ISD 8,754 43.3 3,788 2,269 25.9 59.9 1,519 
Total  11,903 43.2 4,557 3,046 25.6 66.8 1,511 
*American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample B09001 & B17001 
**Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Summary Report, 2022 



 

58 

Table 5-3 Estimates of Age and Income Eligible Children by District, Children 0-2 Years, 2021 

 
 

  

School Districts 
Population of 0 
to 2 Year Old 

Children* 

Estimated % of 
Children Under 5 

Years Old Living Below 
Poverty** 

Estimated Number of 0 
to 2 Year Old Children 
Living Under Poverty 

Alamo Heights ISD 678 0.0 0 
East Central ISD 2,497 23.6 590 
Edgewood ISD 2,604 42.7 1,112 
Fort Sam Houston ISD 261 19.5 51 
Harlandale ISD 2,169 35.3 765 
Judson ISD 5,936 15.2 901 
Lackland ISD 187 10.7 20 
North East ISD 15,101 22.3 3,374 
Northside ISD 26,218 14.2 3,720 
Randolph Field ISD 75 0.0 0 
San Antonio ISD 11,174 43.3 4,835 
South San Antonio 1,803 30.8 556 
Somerset ISD 618 20.7 128 
Southside ISD 1,357 29.5 400 
Southwest ISD 2,625 25.3 665 
* American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample, B09001 
** American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample, B17001 



 

59 

Table 5-4 Estimates of Age and Income Eligible Children by District, Children 3-4 Years, 2021 

 

 

School Districts 
Population of 3 
and 4 Year Old 

Children* 

Estimated % of 
Children Under 5 
Years Old Living 
Below Poverty** 

Estimated Number of 3 
and 4 Year Old 

Children Living Under 
Poverty 

Alamo Heights ISD 797 0.0 0 
East Central ISD 1,743 23.6 411 
Edgewood ISD 1,801 42.7 769 
Fort Sam Houston ISD 196 19.5 38 
Harlandale ISD 1,615 35.3 570 
Judson ISD 4,429 15.2 672 
Lackland ISD 121 10.7 13 
North East ISD 12,155 22.3 2,715 
Northside ISD 20,578 14.2 2,920 
Randolph Field ISD 85 0.0 0 
San Antonio ISD 8,754 43.3 3,788 
South San Antonio 1,673 30.8 516 
Somerset ISD 385 20.7 80 
Southside ISD 829 29.5 244 
Southwest ISD 2,534 25.3 642 
* American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample, B09001 
** American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample, B17001 



 

60 

Projections produced by the Texas Demographic Center indicate that the need for Early 

Head Start and Head Start services in Bexar County will continue to grow through 2032. The 

share of minorities in Bexar County will continue to increase, as will the corresponding share of 

EHS and HS age-eligible children, during this same time period (see Tables 5-5 and 5-6). As 

shown in Table 5-7, the need for Early Head Start services will be especially important to meet 

going forward, based on the number of age- and income-eligible children residing in Bexar County 

by 2032.  

 

Table 5-5 Projected Bexar County Population, by Race:  Ages 0-2 Years, 2022-2032 
Year Total % NH White % NH Black % Hispanic % NH Asian % NH Other 
2022 97,397 19.2 6.1 69.0 2.8 2.9 
2023 98,774 18.9 6.1 69.0 2.9 3.0 
2024 100,062 18.7 6.2 69.1 3.0 3.0 
2025 101,275 18.5 6.2 69.1 3.1 3.1 
2026 102,407 18.2 6.3 69.1 3.2 3.1 
2027 103,460 18.0 6.3 69.2 3.3 3.2 
2028 104,439 17.8 6.4 69.2 3.4 3.2 
2029 105,356 17.5 6.4 69.2 3.6 3.3 
2030 106,236 17.3 6.4 69.2 3.7 3.3 
2031 107,114 17.1 6.5 69.2 3.8 3.4 
2032 108,009 17.0 6.5 69.2 3.9 3.4 
Source: Texas State Data Center, Texas Population Projections for 2010-2050, 2018 

 

Table 5-6 Projected Bexar County Population, by Race:  Ages 3-4 Years, 2022-2032 
Year Total % NH White % NH Black % Hispanic % NH Asian % NH Other 
2022 64,088 19.9 6.1 68.2 2.9 2.8 
2023 65,098 19.7 6.1 68.3 3.0 2.9 
2024 66,080 19.5 6.2 68.3 3.1 2.9 
2025 67,021 19.2 6.2 68.3 3.2 3.0 
2026 67,914 19.0 6.3 68.4 3.3 3.0 
2027 68,748 18.8 6.3 68.4 3.4 3.1 
2028 69,521 18.5 6.4 68.5 3.5 3.1 
2029 70,241 18.3 6.4 68.5 3.6 3.2 
2030 70,917 18.0 6.4 68.5 3.8 3.2 
2031 71,540 17.8 6.5 68.5 3.9 3.3 
2032 72,123 17.6 6.5 68.5 4.0 3.3 
Source: Texas State Data Center, Texas Population Projections for 2010-2050, 2018 



 

61 

Table 5-7 Projected Number of Bexar County Age- and Income-Eligible Children: 0-2 and 3-4 
Years Old, Bexar County, 2022-2032 

Year 
Projected number 
of 0 to 2 years old 

Children 

Projected number of 
age and income 

eligible children for 
Early Head Start 

Projected 
number of 3 to 

4 years old 
Children 

Projected number 
of age and income 
eligible children for 

Head Start 
2022 97,397 22,158 64,088 14,580 

2023 98,774 22,471 65,098 14,810 
2024 100,062 22,764 66,080 15,033 
2025 101,275 23,040 67,021 15,247 
2026 102,407 23,297 67,914 15,450 
2027 103,460 23,537 68,748 15,640 
2028 104,439 23,760 69,521 15,816 
2029 105,356 23,968 70,241 15,980 
2030 106,236 24,169 70,917 16,134 
2031 107,114 24,368 71,540 16,275 
2032 108,009 24,572 72,123 16,408 

Note: The Bexar County poverty rate for Related Children Under 5 Years is 22.7% (5-Year American Community Survey, 2017-
2021, B09001 & B17001. 
Estimates from survey data have associated sampling error not presented in this table. 
Source: Texas Demographic Center, Texas Population Projections for 2010-2050, 2018 

 

 



 

62 

6. Social Services 
 

Health 

San Antonio Metropolitan Health District's (Metro Health) Immunization Division utilizes the 

Immunization Outreach, Education, and Partnership program (IOEP) to reduce missed vaccine 

opportunities, increase vaccinations rates, and decrease the rate of vaccine preventable diseases 

in the community (Metropolitan Health District, Outreach & Education, 2019). All activities are 

designed to provide educational presentations to the community and local schools, attend 

community health/ resource fairs, and participate in community conferences and lectures. The 

IOEP Program targets under-immunized communities through the Texas Vaccines for Children 

and Adult Safety Net programs and works to form new and different partnerships throughout the 

city to help bring vaccine awareness and increase the vaccination rate in underserved 

communities. The IOEP Program also facilitates the Immunize San Antonio (IZSA) Coalition, 

which promotes immunizations in diverse populations across the lifespan through collaboration 

and education, striving for a community where all residents are protected from vaccine 

preventable diseases. Education and services are provided via three outreach and education 

programs: Infant/Childhood, Adolescent/Adult, and the Immunization/Women Infant and Children 

(WIC) Linkage. Additionally, the WIC Linkage is designed to increase immunization coverage 

levels among all WIC clients and children birth through five years of age using immunization 

assessments, reminder/recall, provider referrals, and targeted education efforts. The program 

provides reminder/recall activities for all WIC clients assessed as behind in their immunizations. 

Metro Health has also created the Healthy Neighborhoods Program, which targets inner city 

neighborhoods with the goal of reducing health disparities in these areas (COSA Healthy 

Neighborhoods 2019). A health worker/promotora works in each of the eleven neighborhoods and 

identifies community resident leadership within the neighborhood. Resident leadership teams are 

formed in each neighborhood and trained by a community health worker to co-facilitate community 

asset mapping. These community asset mappings identify their neighborhood resources, which 

would include individuals, agencies, and physical assets and thus help local health workers to 

develop custom health asset assessment and action plans for each neighborhood. Residents who 

are passionate about healthy eating and active living will be supported with resources from Metro 

Health to plan and initiate evidence-based childhood obesity prevention strategies at their 

neighborhood level.  

The Miles of Smiles (MOS) program provides dental evaluations, fluoride and sealants at 

local elementary schools (COSA Dental Services, 2019). This program is part of Metro Health’s 



 

63 

dental projects and is meant to address unmet dental needs among children, especially those 

who are uninsured or underinsured for required care.  

In addition, the Dental Program provides oral health assessments for various community 

groups, conducts oral health educational fairs, but most importantly links those who need urgent 

care without a dental home to providers who can provide the necessary services to them at little 

or no cost. 

Bexar County manages a discount prescription drug card program, called the Bexar County 

Rx Card Program (Bexar County Website, Community Health, 2018). This program allows County 

residents to access prescriptions for a reduced cost. The program is free and does not have 

expiration dates or annual restrictions.  

 

Nutrition 

The San Antonio Food Bank (SAFB) provides food and grocery products to more than 500 

non-profit organization partners in 29 county service areas throughout Southwest Texas and 

distributed to over 100,000 individuals each week (San Antonio Food Bank, 2022). In FY 2021, 

SAFB provided more than 91 million pounds of food. The mission of the SAFB is to fight hunger 

in Southwest Texas through food distribution programs, education, and advocacy. The SAFB has 

indicated that about 35% of their clients were children under the age of 18 years old; most of their 

senior clients had to choose between food and medicine due to limited income; 46% of 

households served by them had at least one working adult; single parents, veterans, as well as 

homeless people are the most needed groups among their clients. 

The City of San Antonio’s Fit City program, SA.com has been working to improve the health 

and fitness of San Antonian’s (Fit City SA, About US, 2018). One of the major initiatives has been 

the Healthy School Meals Initiative, which is focused on improving nutrition and physical activity 

in schools throughout San Antonio. A school committee is developed to discuss school districts’ 

training, tools, and resources regarding healthy school meals. The focus includes innovative 

techniques for nutritious school meals and increased access to fruits and vegetables. Research 

has shown school children significantly increase their consumption of fruits and vegetables when 

they have a school salad bar.  

 

Child abuse and neglect 

Texas Child Protective Services (CPS) becomes involved with children and families when 

they are referred by the Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS) Investigations 

division, which investigates allegations of child abuse and neglect.  It also provides services to 



 

64 

children and families in their own homes, places children in foster care, provides services to help 

youth in foster care successfully transition to adulthood, and helps children get adopted. Child 

Protective Investigations (CPI) examines reports of child abuse or neglect to determine if any child 

in the family has been abused or neglected. It also investigates allegations of child abuse and 

neglect, works with law enforcement on joint investigations, takes custody of children who are 

unsafe, refers children to community resources that promote their safety and well-being and 

assists in the fight against human trafficking.  

Family Violence Prevention Services, Inc. (FVPS)/ Battered Women and Children’s Shelter 

(BWCS) in San Antonio has been helping victims of domestic violence in San Antonio since 1977 

(Family Violence Prevention Services, Inc., About Us, 2020). FVPS began as an emergency 

shelter for women and children and now offers a complete array of shelter, transitional housing, 

counseling, children’s and legal services to help individuals and families recover from the pain 

and long-term effects of domestic violence. A 24-hour, 365-day, hotline to provide immediate 

assistance to victims of family violence is also available through these programs. Crisis calls 

include an assessment of critical needs, crisis intervention, education, information and referrals. 

Comprehensive case management and individual counseling, emergency food and clothing, legal 

advocacy and referrals, and primary medical and dental care services are also provided to 

families in need. 

ChildSafe is a children’s advocacy center located in Bexar County (ChildSafe, About Us, 

2020). The program is geared towards helping child victims of abuse and/or neglect. ChildSafe 

has a diverse team of law enforcement, health, and CPS professionals that work together to 

coordinate strategies for each child. The services provided by ChildSafe include medical referrals, 

family support specialists, and counseling services.  

 

Housing  

There are multiple housing assistance programs serving San Antonio and Bexar County. The 

San Antonio Housing Authority (SAHA) currently provides housing assistance to over 57,000 

adults, children, and senior citizens, almost one-half (48%) of the individuals served are under 

the age of 18 and more than one-half (53%) of the clients heads of households are elderly or 

disabled. Families in SAHA’s federally-funded rental assistance program earn an average income 

of less than $12,500 annually. SAHA owns and manages 6,062 public housing units at 70 

properties, provided 14,162 vouchers, and provides an additional 3,644 mixed-income units at 27 

properties through their non-profit entities and partnerships. (San Antonio Housing Authority, 

About Us, 2020). 



 

65 

The Housing Authority of Bexar County (HABC) provides three distinct programs including 

the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program, Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program, and The 

HUD-Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (HUD-VASH) Program (Housing Authority of Bexar 

County, Housing Authority of Bexar County (HABC Programs, 2018).  

The HCV Program is the government’s primary program to assist income-eligible households 

with the opportunity to afford decent, safe, and sanitary housing. Eligibility is determined based 

on the total annual income and family size of the household. Annual income cannot exceed 50% 

of the area median income for Bexar County. Family assets are also taken into consideration 

when determining eligibility.  

The Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program is a voluntary five-year incentive program that 

allows Housing Choice Vouchers and Public Housing residents to accrue money in an escrow 

account as their earned income increases, allowing participants to become self-sufficient. Upon 

graduation from the FSS Program, families may access the escrow account and use it for any 

purpose; the FSS Program does not affect eligibility for continued housing. Finally, the HUD-

VASH Program for homeless veterans combines Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) rental 

assistance with case management and clinical services provided by the Department of Veterans 

Affairs (VA) at VA medical centers and community-based outreach clinics. Homeless veterans 

are screened by the VA and referred to HABC.  

Bexar County’s Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program is designed to identify sheltered 

and unsheltered homeless persons, as well as those at risk for homelessness, and provide the 

services necessary to help those persons regain stability in permanent housing after experiencing 

a housing crisis and/ or homelessness (Bexar County, Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG), 2017). 

The ESG program provides funds for essential services to shelter residents, rapidly re-house 

homeless individuals and families, and prevent families and individuals from becoming homeless 

(Bexar County, Emergency Solutions Grant Program Overview, 2017). The program is also 

intended to curb a rise in homelessness through the funding of preventive programs and services.  

Bexar County also offers the HOME Investment Partnership Program created under the 

National Affordable Housing Act of 1990. The purpose of HOME funds is to expand the supply of 

affordable housing stock for low or very-low income families and individuals (Bexar County, 

HOME Program Overview, 2018). Funds under this program construct new housing for rent or 

home ownership, rehabilitate rental or owner-occupied housing; and improve sites for HOME-

assisted development.  

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program is a federally funded program 

through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The CDBG program 

works to ensure decent affordable housing, to provide services to the most vulnerable in our 



 

66 

communities, and to create jobs through the expansion and retention of businesses. CDBG is an 

important tool for helping local governments tackle serious challenges facing their communities 

(Bexar County, Community Development Block Grant, 2017). 

 

Homeless Population 

Services for the homeless are centralized and coordinated through Haven for Hope, located 

in downtown San Antonio. Haven for Hope works to address root causes of homelessness 

through education, job training, and behavioral health services. It has 184 partners (67 on-campus 

partners; 87 referral partners; 30 community) that provide access to over 300 services, including 

counseling, education programs, life skills, and legal services (Haven for Hope, Partner Spotlight, 

2018; Haven for Hope Fact Sheet, 2017). The Haven’s campus was completed in early 2010 and 

in April of 2010, the very first residents moved onto the campus. The Haven served 2,599 

individuals in 2017, including 852 family members and 544 children (Haven for Hope, Custom 

Report, 2018). Families stayed for an average of 4.5 months, whereas single residents stayed for 

an average of 5 months. The average age of children living at Haven is 6 years old.   

The San Antonio Housing Authority reports there has been significant growth in programs to 

reduce homelessness in San Antonio. SAHA’s Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program includes 

special programs such as the Homeless Services Voucher (HSV) Program), which is targeted 

towards special groups like the homeless. The HCV Program provides 13,417 rental vouchers 

annually and in 2016 served approximately 1,578 homeless and veteran residents (San Antonio 

Housing Authority Annual Report, 2016).  

 

Childcare 

There were at least 601 licensed childcare facilities that serve children aged 0 to 2 and 3 to 

4 in Bexar County in 2023. Most of the area’s childcare capacity is concentrated in the northern 

part of the county, with comparably fewer centers in central, southern, and eastern areas (see 

Figures 6-1 and 6-2). The supply of childcare in the north appears to exceed the demand, whereas 

the demand appears to exceed the supply in other parts of the county. This is especially true for 

school districts located in central San Antonio, where less capacity is available (see Figures 6-3 

and 6-4).  

 
  



 

67 

 
Figure 6-1 Licensed Childcare Facilities that Accept Children Aged 0 to 2 by Capacity,  
Bexar County, 2023 
Source: Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
 
 
 
  



 

68 

 
Figure 6-2 Licensed Childcare Facilities that Accept Children Aged 3 to 4 by Capacity,  
Bexar County, 2023 
Source: Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
 

 

 

  



 

69 

 
Figure 6-3  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Children Aged 0 to 2 by Capacity,  
COSA DHS Early Head Start Service Area, 2023 
Note – capacity refers to the total capacity of the facility, not necessarily for children aged 0 to 2. 
Source: Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
  



 

70 

 
Figure 6-4  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Children Aged 3 and 4 by Capacity,  
COSA DHS Head Start Service Area, 2023 
Note – capacity refers to the total capacity of the facility, not necessarily for children aged 3 and 4. 
Source: Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
 
  



 

71 

In Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs, there are 97 facilities that serve children 0-2 years of 

age and 117 facilities that serve children 3-4 years of age. The difference between capacities and 

the demand of these facilities is especially pronounced for infants (aged 0 to 17 months) and 

toddlers (18 months to 2 years) in the COSA DHS Early Head Start service area (see Table 6-1). 

Although some of these children are likely to be served by other resources, there is unmet need 

for infant and toddler childcare in Edgewood ISD (a deficit of 1,003 slots) and San Antonio ISD (a 

deficit of 5,262 slots). Similarly, as shown in Table 6-2, there is unmet need for pre-kindergarten 

age children (3 to 4 years) in San Antonio ISD (a deficit of 108 slots). By contrast, the total capacity 

of childcare facilities in Edgewood ISD (a surplus of 390 slots) appears to exceed the actual 

demand in the ISD (see Table 6-2). Overall, children aged 3 to 4 appear to be more adequately 

served by the DHS Head Start Program and other area resources, compared to children aged 0 

to 2. However, many families may not be aware that these resources are available to them. 

Likewise, families may not be able to afford the cost of local childcare. The possibility of some 

families not knowing available resources, families unable to afford child care services, and the 

large age-income eligible population in the service area suggest that promoting services provided 

by the DHS Head Start Program is necessary to address existing need for childcare among 

children 3-4 years of age as well. 

 

Table 6-1 Childcare Capacity and Child Population Aged 0 to 2 Years by School District, 2023 

 
Table 6-2 Childcare Capacity and Child Population Aged 3 and 4 Years by School District, 2023 
 Childcare Capacity in 

Facilities with  
Pre-School Programs* 

Number of 
children aged 3 

to 4 years** 

Difference 
in Capacity and 3 to 4 
years old population 

Edgewood ISD  
(19 facilities) 

2,191 
(mean capacity = 115) 1,801 390 

San Antonio ISD 
(98 facilities) 

8,646 
(mean capacity = 88) 8,754 -108 

Total 
(117 facilities)  

10,837 
(mean capacity = 93) 10,555 282 

Source: * Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
            ** American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample, B09001 

 Childcare Capacity in Facilities 
with Pre-School Programs* 

Number of 
children aged 0 

to 2 years** 

Difference in Capacity 
and 0 to 2 years old 

population 
Edgewood ISD  
(17 facilities) 

1,601 
(mean capacity = 94) 2,604 -1,003 

San Antonio ISD 
(80 facilities) 

5,912 
(mean capacity = 79) 11,174 -5,262 

Total 
(97 facilities) 

7,513 
(mean capacity = 81) 13,778 -6,265 

Source: * Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
            ** American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample, B09001 



 

72 

Resources and Services for Children with Disabilities 

On September 1, 2016, the Early Childhood Intervention (ECI) Program, a division of the 

Texas Department of Assistive and Rehabilitative Services (DARS), was transferred by the Texas 

Legislature to the Texas Health and Human Services Commission. The ECI programs are for 

Texas families with children age 0-3 years old with disabilities and developmental delays (Health 

and Human Services Commission, 2021). This program is funded through the Individuals With 

Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and the State of Texas and provides evaluations, assessments, 

and services at little or no cost to families. Children over the age of 3 years are not eligible to 

receive services through ECI but are referred to their local school district for assistance. Local 

school districts have Early Education classes for children with a disability ages 3 years and up. 

The three ECI programs that operate in Bexar County served 7,042 children (5.47% of the total 

population of 0-3 year olds) in FY 2021.   

In 2020, United Way San Antonio was affiliated with 137 programs at 69 partner agencies 

(United Way, About Us, 2020). Approximately 56% (39 total agencies) provide services to children 

or families with children; 3% of all agencies (2 total agencies) state that they serve as a resource 

for children with disabilities. These agencies provide counseling, outpatient services, nutritional 

and fitness activities, prepare young children for life, help students succeed, foster self-sufficiency 

for individuals and families, and support people in crisis. 

There were 601 licensed general childcare facilities in Bexar County in 2023, 187 of which 

(31%) accepted age-eligible children with special needs (Texas Health and Human Services, 

Search Texas Child Care, 2023). Similar to the distribution of general childcare, many special 

needs facilities are concentrated in northern parts of Bexar County (see Figures 6-5 & 6-6). In 

2023, there were a total of 52 childcare facilities in the Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs and 

served children 0-4 years of age with special needs. Of this number, 45 facilities within the DHS 

Head Start Service Area provided care to special needs children aged 0-2 years and 52 provided 

care to special needs children aged 3-4 years (see Figures 6-7 and 6-8). Tables 6-3 and 6-4 

suggest the total capacity of these facilities appears to exceed the actual demand in the DHS 

Head Start Service Area for both EHS and HS age-eligible special needs children (i.e., more slots 

than eligible children with special needs). However, the facility capacity is stated in terms of total 

capacity, not age-eligible children, or age-eligible children with a disability. In other words, the 

total capacity includes children with and without special needs.  



 

73 

 
Figure 6-5  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Special Needs Children Aged 0 to 2 Years by 
Capacity, Bexar County, 2023 
Source: Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 

 

 
  



 

74 

 
Figure 6-6  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Special Needs Children Aged 3 to 4 Years by 
Capacity, Bexar County, 2023 
Source: Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
  



 

75 

 
Figure 6-7  Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Special Needs Children Aged 0 to 2 by 
Capacity, Bexar County, 2023 
Source: Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
 
  



 

76 

 
Figure 6-8 Licensed Childcare Facilities Accepting Special Needs Children Aged 3 to 4 by 
Capacity, Bexar County, 2023 
Source: Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
  



 

77 

Table 6-3 Capacity of Childcare Facilities Accepting Children with Special Needs and Estimates 
of Children Aged 0 to 2 with Disabilities, 2023 

 
 
 
Table 6-4 Capacity of Childcare Facilities Accepting Children with Special Needs and Estimates 
of Children Aged 3 and 4 with Disabilities, 2023  

 Childcare Capacity 
in Facilities Accepting Children 

with Special Needs* 

Estimated 
Number 

of 0 to 2 Year Old 
Children with 
Disabilities** 

Difference in 
Capacity and 0 
to 2 Year Old 
Children with 
Disabilities 

Edgewood ISD  
(8 facilities) 

718 
(mean capacity = 90) 333 385 

San Antonio ISD 
(37 facilities) 

2,946 
(mean capacity = 80) 1,627 1,319 

Total 
(45 facilities) 

3,664 
(mean capacity = 81) 1,960 1,704 

Source: * Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
           **Derived from multiplying American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample, B09001 of 0 and 2 years old children 

by the disability ratio established in Table 4-27 

 Childcare Capacity 
in Facilities Accepting Children 

with Special Needs* 

Estimated 
Number 

of 3 and 4 Year 
Old Children 

with Disabilities* 

Difference in 
Capacity of 3 

and 4 Year Old 
Children with 
Disabilities 

Edgewood ISD  
(9 facilities) 

1,268 
(mean capacity = 141) 230 1,038 

San Antonio ISD 
(43 facilities) 

4,072 
(mean capacity = 95) 1,119 2,953 

Total 
(52 facilities) 

5,340 
(mean capacity = 103) 1,349 3,991 

Source: * Texas Department of Health and Human Services, Custom Childcare Search, 2023 
           **Derived from multiplying American Community Survey, 2017-2021, 5-Year Sample, B09001 of 3 and 4 years old 

children by the disability ratio established in Table 4-27 



 

78 

Public Pre-Kindergarten and Early Education 

Local school districts offer Pre-Kindergarten (PK) and Early Childhood Education (ECE) for 

San Antonio children. According to the Texas Education Agency (TEA), PK enrollment includes 

any students three to four years of age that are enrolled in a state- or locally-funded PK program 

within the district’s boundaries. Their pre-kindergarten programs also extend to special needs 

children aged three through five years old, in a program called Preschool Program for Children 

with Disabilities (PPCD). In PPCD, students must have 2 hours of instruction per day to be a 

member of the program. On the other hand, early education is a more comprehensive category. 

Students in early education may be between the ages of birth and five years old, but must not be 

enrolled in pre-kindergarten or kindergarten. Thus, the Early Education program includes special 

needs children who do not meet PPCD requirements, Head Start children who are not eligible to 

receive state funds, and children taught by PPCD teachers in licensed child care facilities working 

with school districts.  

Public school is readily utilized by families living in the DHS Head Start Service Area (EISD 

and SAISD). Percent of student enrollment in pre-kindergarten and early education was greater 

in the EISD (10.4%) and SAISD (9.5%) than in the State at 4.9% (see Table 6-5). The greater-

than-State enrollment in these grades indicates that larger shares of San Antonio families enroll 

their children in EE & PK/PPCD compared to all Texas families. Almost all San Antonio school 

districts utilized pre-kindergarten and early education public school services more readily than the 

state. Enrollment varied slightly among districts, from a low in Randolph ISD (2.6%) to a high in 

Judson ISD (10.8%).   

San Antonio’s utilization of pre-kindergarten and early education resources indicates there is 

a solid demand for early childhood education in the City. This demand appears to be especially 

strong in central San Antonio districts, where young children make up much larger shares of total 

enrollment when compared to the State.   



 

79 

Table 6-5 Childcare Capacity in Public Pre-Kindergarten and Early Education Classes in 
Participating San Antonio Districts, 2022-2023 

District Pre-
Kindergarten 

Early 
Education 

Total 
Enrollment 

% Enrolled in PK, 
PPCD  & EE 

Alamo Heights ISD 53 76 4,762 2.7% 
East Central  ISD 34 591 10,617 5.9% 
Edgewood ISD 9 838 8,177 10.4% 
Fort Sam Houston ISD 9 105 1,627 7.0% 
Harlandale ISD 9 881 12,174 7.3% 
Judson ISD 62 2,730 25,871 10.8% 
Lackland ISD 9 85 968 9.7% 
North East ISD 237 2,006 59,007 3.8% 
Northside ISD 1,070 3,721 102,719 4.7% 
Randolph Field ISD 9 29 1,462 2.6% 
San Antonio ISD 25 4,269 45,255 9.5% 
Somerset ISD 9 262 4,147 6.5% 
South San Antonio ISD 26 536 7,872 7.1% 
Southside ISD 11 574 5,965 9.8% 
Southwest ISD 75 684 13,747 5.5% 
Bexar County 1,611 19,154 352,882 5.9% 
Texas 25,110 244,284 5,518,432 4.9% 
Source: Texas Education Agency, Student Enrollment Reports, 2022-2023 
Note:  

• Cells containing in original data were suppressed if there were five or fewer students because of FERPA regulations. 
These cells contain fewer than 10 students, so the value 9 was used to help estimate the number of children served in 
these districts.  

• PPCD enrollment has been rolled into the Pre-Kindergarten enrollment column 
• Not all ISDs contain Pre-Kindergarten and/or Early Education Programs. 

 
  



 

80 

Pre-K 4 SA 

Pre-K 4 SA is an education-based initiative, which provides pre-kindergarten education to 

young children living in San Antonio (Pre-K 4 SA, About the Program, 2020). Four-year-old 

children may be enrolled at one of four centers (North, South, East and West Education Centers) 

for a full-day program, including meals, educational enrichment, and transportation, if necessary 

(see Figure 6-9). Bilingual instruction is also available at each of the centers.  

The program began in 2013 and has a few cohorts of students to date. In the 2020-2021 

school year, Pre-K 4 SA had a total of 2,005 enrolled children. Most of the enrolled children are 

in Northside ISD (588), followed by San antonio ISD (296), and North East (274) ISDs (see Table 

6-6). Districts in the DHS Head Start Service Area, Edgewood (98 enrolled) and San Antonio 

(296) accounted for almost one-fifth (19.7%) of the total enrollment of the Pre-K 4 SA students 

live in San Antonio. Currently, the program is accepting applications for the 2022-2023 school 

year.  

Eligibility is primarily determined by age. Although all San Antonio families may send their 

four-year-old children to Pre-K 4 SA, some residents are eligible for free service. Free service is 

provided when the child and/or their family meets one or more of the following criteria: eligible for 

National Free and Reduced Lunch Program or receives SNAP or TANF benefits; unable to speak 

or comprehend English; homeless; child of active duty military; child of member of armed forces 

who was injured or killed during active duty; or is or has been in the conservatorship of the 

Department of Family and Protective Services. This makes Pre-K 4 SA a valuable early childhood 

education resource for at-risk children residing in San Antonio, and one who’s potential is not yet 

fully tapped. It should be noted, however, that Pre-K 4 SA and Head Start offer similar services 

to children.  

Both Pre-K 4 SA and DHS Head Start programs offer full-day early childhood education 

programs with certified teachers, family engagement components, and meals to children. In 

addition, DHS Head Start offers access to educational services for families and their children aged 

3-5 years of age. As it is, Pre-K 4 SA and DHS Head Start offer similar services but to different 

populations of children based on age and income. The Pre-K 4 SA program is a feasible 

alternative to Head Start, but only for families whose children are age-eligible, who can afford 

tuition if they do not qualify for free service, and are not in need of the additional supportive 

services DHS Head Start provides particularly to families with children with disabilities.  

 



 

81 

 

Figure 6-9 Map of Pre-K for San Antonio Centers, 2023 

 

 



 

82 
 

Table 6-6 Pre-K 4 SA Enrollment by District, 2020-2021 

School District Allocated 
Slots** 

Number of Enrolled 
Children 

Percentage of 
Enrolled Children 

East Central 100 66 3.3 
Edgewood 124 98 4.9 
New Frontiers - 64 3.2 
Harlandale 120 50 2.5 
North East 259 274 13.7 
Northside 564 588 29.3 
San Antonio 572 296 14.8 
Southside 61 15 0.8 
Southwest 100 48 2.4 

DHS Service Area 696 394 19.7 
Scholarship 50 130 6.5 
Tuition 50 376 18.8 
Total  2,000 2,005 100 
Source: Pre-K 4 SA Evaluation Report, Year 7 (https://prek4sa.com/community/program-results/) 
**Pre-K 4 SA has a number of slots that they allocate to eligible children living in each of the school 
districts that they serve. Each enrolled child is one less remaining slot for Pre-K 4 SA. However, 
enrollment may be greater than the number of allocated slots when parents pay tuition for their 
children (who were ineligible for free services) to attend these centers. 

 
Local Early Head Start and Head Start Programs in Bexar County 

Multiple San Antonio organizations in addition to the COSA DHS Head Start Program 

have received grants from the Office of Head Start (OHS). In Bexar County, there are eight 

grantees running 102 centers within five miles of county boundary (OHS, Head Start Center 

Locator, 2023). These grantees are: City of San Antonio, AVANCE-San Antonio, South San 

Antonio ISD, Parent Child Incorporated (PCI), Family Service Association of San Antonio, Inc. 

(FSA), Lutheran Social Services of the South, Inc. dba Upbring (Upbring), Ascension DePaul 

Services, and the Educational Service Center (Region 20). These grantees provide Early Head 

Start and Head Start services throughout San Antonio. The following discussion evaluates the 

characteristics of other local Head Start programs and their enrollees. The following tables detail 

the available grant-based information provided by these programs.  

Overall, there are eight Head Start and nine Early Head Start Programs operating in Bexar 

County (including the City of San Antonio’s DHS Programs). Most enrollments were center-based 

and provided on a full-day basis. Approximately 491 classes were offered by the combined 

programs, which were run by approximately 2,466 staff and 3,376 volunteers (Head Start 

Enterprise System, Grantee Summary Report, 2022).  

  

https://prek4sa.com/community/program-results/


 

83 
 

Table 6-7 Enrollment Characteristics for select Bexar County Head Start Providers, 2022 

 
Table 6-7 shows there were 1,287 Early Head Start enrollees and 3,046 Head Start 

enrollees in the combined non-COSA DHS Head Start programs between 2022-2023 in Bexar 

County. Most Early Head Start enrollees received services from AVANCE-San Antonio (515) and 

most Head Start enrollees were serviced by the Family Service Association, San Antonio (1,138). 

In comparison, COSA DHS Head Start provided cumulative enrollment services to 341 Early 

Head Start (including Ealey Head Start-Child Care Partnership) children and 2,512 Head Start 

children.  

About 1,628 families participated in Early Head Start and 5,558 families participated in 

Head Start programs in Bexar County (see Table 6-8). Compared to Head Start, a larger 

proportion of Early Head Start children were enrolled for multiple years, enrolled for less than 45 

days, left the program and did not enroll, and being qualified for enrollment because of an 

Individual Family Service Plan (IFSP) or Individual Education Plan (IEP). Approximately 86% of 

EHS families received at least one family service, compared to nearly 84% of HS families. 

 
  

Program Name 
Cumulative Enrollment 

Early Head Start Head Start 

Ascension 48 51 
AVANCE-San Antonio 515 552 
Education Service Center, Region 20 - 389 
Family Service Association, San Antonio 331 1,138 
Parent & Child Incorporated 355 587 
South San Antonio ISD - 329 
Upbring 38 - 
Non-COSA Total Enrollment  1,287 3,046 

COSA Total Enrollment 341 2,512 
Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Performance Indicator Report (PIR), 2022 



 

84 
 

Table 6-8 Service Characteristics for Early Head Start and Head Start Programs, select Bexar 
County Providers, 2022 

 

 

Children enrolled in the combined COSA DHS, Early Head Start and Head Start programs 

were generally (approximately 72.0%) three or four years of age (see Table 6-9). Most children 

qualified for Early Head Start or Head Start because their family was below the poverty threshold 

(68.9%), were within 100-130% of the poverty threshold (9.6%), or were homeless (8.0%). 5.6% 

of the children were over income, but still received services through Early Head Start or Head 

Start.   

In the 2022 Program Year, 996 children were eligible to receive special education services 

(see Table 6-10). About 768 of these children were eligible because they had an IEP (13.8%) and 

228 were eligible because they had an IFSP (14.0%). The most common primary disabilities were 

speech or language impairments (9.4%), Non-categorical/Developmental Delay (2.2%), and 

autism (1.4%).  

  

 
Combined Head 

Start 
Combined Early 

Head Start 
Service Level Characteristics (PIR) Number Percent Number Percent 
Cumulative Enrollment 5,558 100.0% 1,628 100.0% 

Enrolled for Multiple Years 1,514 27.2% 612 37.6% 
Enrolled Less than 45 Days 364 6.5% 123 7.6% 
Left the Program & Did Not Re-Enroll 884 15.9% 678 40.7% 
With an IFSP or IEP 768 13.8% 228 14.0% 

Number of Families 5,163 100.0% 1,430 100.0% 
Received at Least One Family Service 4,421 85.6% 1,198 83.8% 
Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Performance Indicator Report (PIR), 2022 



 

85 
 

Table 6-9 Children’s characteristics for Combined Early Head Start and Head Start Programs, 
select Bexar County Providers, 2022 

 

 

Summary Characteristics Combined Programs 
Age Number Percent 

< 1 390 5.4% 
1 492 6.8% 
2 1,121 15.6% 
3 2,842 39.5% 
4 2,334 32.5% 

5+ 7 0.1% 
Eligibility Reason 

Below Poverty  4,981 68.9% 
Public Assistance 402 5.6% 

Foster 168 2.3% 
Homeless 581 8.0% 

Over Income 402 5.6% 
100-130% Poverty Line 691 9.6% 

Subsidized Childcare 41 0.6% 
*Note. Age and eligibility breakdowns reflect cumulative enrollment numbers.  
Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Summary Report, 2022 



 

86 
 

Table 6-10 Service Characteristics for Combined Early Head Start and Head Start Programs, select Bexar County Providers, 2022 
 

Combined 
Programs 

 
Number Percent 

Total Funded Enrollment 7,624 100 

Disability Characteristics 

Have Individualized Education Program (IEP) and are eligible by LEA to receive special education services 768 13.82% 

Have Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) and are eligible by Part C Agency to receive early 
intervention services under the Individuals with Disabilities Act 228 14.00% 

Diagnosed Primary Disability 
Health Impairment 20 0.36% 

Emotional Disturbance 0 0.00% 
Speech or Language Impairments 521 9.37% 

Intellectual Disabilities 5 0.09% 
Hearing Impairment, including Deafness 9 0.16% 

Orthopedic Impairment 4 0.07% 
Visual Impairment, including Blindness 1 0.02% 

Specific Learning Disability 1 0.02% 
Autism 77 1.39% 

Traumatic Brain Injury 0 0.00% 
Non-categorical/Developmental Delay 124 2.23% 

Multiple Disabilities (excluding Deaf-Blind) 0 0.00% 
Multiple Disabilities (including Deaf-Blind) 0 0.00% 

Source: Head Start Enterprise System, Grantee Program Disability Report, 2022 



 

87 
 

7. Strengths of the Community 
 

On average, residents of Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs tend to have characteristics 

that make them vulnerable to poor outcomes. A larger proportion of EISD and SAISD residents 

are minorities, have less income, have older and less valuable housing, and belong to single-

parent households when compared to the City, County, State, or Nation. However, EISD and 

SAISD residents have access to the many resources available in San Antonio. The number and 

variety of resources available to eligible San Antonian’s are the major strength of the community.  

San Antonio offers a plethora of health, nutrition, housing, childcare, and other resources 

to its residents. Because poverty is concentrated in the City’s core, most of these resources are 

already targeted to residents of central San Antonio (which includes EISD and SAISD residents). 

As previously mentioned, EISD and SAISD residents frequently use these resources to 

supplement their own income. Public assistance utilization is much greater among Edgewood and 

San Antonio ISD households than among households at the City, County, State, and national 

levels. Thus, many households in the service area already benefit from public assistance and 

other resources that target low-income families. However, this evaluation suggests that families 

residing in EISD and SAISD may still have unmet needs for financial, educational, and job 

assistance. Families served by the Department of Human Services Early Head Start and Head 

Start Programs may benefit from additional assistance in these domains.  

  



 

88 
 

8. Summary and Conclusion 
 

This assessment of the social and economic characteristics of the population in the 

Edgewood and San Antonio ISDs indicates a need for additional Early Head Start-Child Care 

Partnership and Head Start services. The residents of these areas are typically poorer, less well-

educated, and belong to a minority group or are foreign-born, compared to residents of the 

County, State, or Nation. Residents living in these areas, on average, also have a lower median 

household income and per capita income, live below the poverty threshold, belong to a single 

parent family, and have a larger average family size, than residents of the other geographies. 

Providing an opportunity for children from homes with fewer resources to participate in enriched 

learning environments will ultimately help at-risk children to improve their education, 

socioeconomic status, and quality of living.  

A comparison of the estimated population of age and income eligible children to the number 

of slots available indicates that only some of the need for services is being met. Approximately 

1,511 children who are age-and-income eligible for HS and 2,677 children (Table 5-1 and 5-2) 

who are age-and-income eligible children for EHS are not being served by the City of San 

Antonio’s DHS Head Start program. Local resources, such as childcare facilities, public schools, 

Pre-K 4 SA, and other EHS and HS programs help meet the need for Head Start; it is unlikely the 

need for EHS is met by these resources.  

The population of children who have a disability in EISD and SAISD is difficult to determine 

in a manner comparable to the Head Start criteria for disability. The estimated number of disabled 

children derived from the Texas Education Agency (TEA) and the American Community Survey 

(1,971 children 0-2 years old and 1,514 children 3-4 years old, see Table 4-27) suggests the DHS, 

Early Head Start and Head Start Program served only a small proportion of disabled children 

during the 2022-2023 school year (3,485 estimated children with disabilities under five years). 

However, this result may be influenced by differences in disability definitions between the 

American Community Survey, Texas Education Agency, and Head Start. Additionally, some of 

this need is likely met by other resources in the area, such as special needs childcare, local school 

districts, Pre-K 4 SA, and the Early Childhood Intervention Program.  

In conclusion, City of San Antonio offers many services meant to target the needs of 

individuals and families living in poverty and those with disabilities. However, the needs of all 

families and children are not met by these community resources. This is especially true in areas 

where poverty is concentrated. Addressing these needs and the future needs of rapidly-growing 

San Antonio will become vital for ensuring the future success of children living in these areas. 



City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195715

Agenda Item Number: 7

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Approval of Budget Amendment for the 2023-2024 Head Start and Early Head Start Budget

SUMMARY:

This item presents the following from the Department of Human Services (DHS) Head Start, Early 
Head Start, and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership programs for action by the Head Start 
Policy Council.
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Head Start grant recipients are given expanded authority over their budget during the execution of 
a program during its respective budget period. This expanded authority allows for recipient to 
reallocate funding withing their approved budget across budget categories in the amount up to 
$250,000, or 10% of their approved budget, whichever is less.
 



In the event a grant recipient needs to reallocate funding more than this threshold, the Office of 
Head Start requires that each grantee generate a formal Post Award Budget Revision amendment. 
In the event this occurs, the amendment needs to be approved by the Grantee’s Policy Council.
 

ISSUE:

Rules and regulations for the Head Start, Early Head Start, and Early Start-Child Care Partnership 
grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) require the Head 
Start Policy Council to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key responsibilities.

 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund as a result of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance with 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services rules and regulations for Head Start, Early Head 
Start, and Early Head Start- Child Care Partnership programs.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the HSPC Committee. Staff 
recommends review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



Approval of Budget 
Amendment for the 

2023-2024 Head Start 
and Early Head Start 

Budget 



FEDERAL 

CATEGORY/CLASS APPROVED BUDGET DECREASE  INCREASE  REVISED BUDGET 

PERSONNEL $5,557,604.00 $0.00  $105,847.00 1 $5,663,451.00 

FRINGE BENEFITS $2,296,648.00 $0.00  $23,964.00 2 $2,320,612.00 

TRAVEL $32,447.00 $0.00    $32,447.00 

EQUIPMENT $75,000.00 ($33,200.00) 3   $41,800.00 

SUPPLIES $78,194.00 $0.00  $47,010.00 4 $125,204.00 

CONTRACTUAL $22,180,619.00 ($200,000.00) 5   $21,980,619.00 

FACILITIES/CONSTRUCTION $0.00 $0.00    $0.00 
OTHER $522,724.00 $0.00  $56,379.00 6 $579,103.00 
 $30,743,236.00 ($233,200.00)  $233,200.00  $30,743,236.00 

 

The City of San Antonio's City Council voted to approve the City's Fiscal Year 2024 Annual Budget on September 14, 2023, included in this 
budget was an across-the-board increase of 4% to all City employees. Additionally, the City of San Antonio included a "Compression 
Adjustment", in the prior Fiscal Year, all City Positions received pay increases to be more in line with rates in our market and were increased to at 
least the new range minimum. This adjustment resulted in compression, or a situation where employees with different levels of tenure or 
experience were earning the same salary. In 2024, the City of San Antonio has begun the process of addressing this issue by reviewing 50% of all 
job titles and positions, and adjusting individual salaries based on relevant experience in their current job title. 

 
This impacted our Head Start program significantly, during the current grant year even though we have had a couple of vacancies, but the cost 
savings realized from those vacancies is not enough to offset this increase. 

 

Increase in Fringe Benefits associated with the FY24 Salary Increase and "Compression Adjustment", additionally there are minor increases in 
Health Insurance premiums and the City's portion of employee's retirement program. 

 

For 06CH018021-05, our original budget had allocated $75,000 for the purchase of a Cargo Truck, due to production lines focusing on vehicles 
for retail sales instead of government or commercial fleets, our program has had difficulty identify a viable vehicle that meets our needs that can 
be procured this program year.  

 
Our partner, San Antonio Independent School District, is requesting the purchase of five "WA SPOT VISION SCREENERS", each item valued 
at $8,360 per unit. The sum of these items totals $41,800. 

 
This will result in a net decrease of $33,200 from Equipment. 

 

Program has identified an increased need for office supplies and misc. computer accessories, materials, and resources to be utilized for parent 
training events, Governance items, teacher appreciation, disinfectant supplies / tissues, and books and school supplies. 

 

Our partner, San Antonio Independent School District has identified cost savings resulting from position vacancies. In discussion with the City of 
San Antonio, $200,000 will be reallocated from the original allocation to the City of San Antonio to help offset the increase in personnel costs. 

 

Binding and Printing, related to the creation of Recruitment kits for community partners to include flyers, brochures, brochure stands, and stand-
up signs. Items related to program governance and guidelines, ERSEA. Items also include minor facility maintenance, and bus passes, and food 
for HS/EHS Parent Meetings. 

1 PERSONNEL $105,847.00 

2 FRINGE BENEFITS $23,964.00 

3 EQUIPMENT ($33,200.00) 

4 SUPPLIES $47,010.00 

5 CONTRACTUAL ($200,000.00) 

6 OTHER $56,379.00 



The City of San Antonio’s Department of Human Services Head Start 
Division is requesting approval to submit a budget revision to 
accomplish the following items: 
 

 
- Reallocate funds previously allocated for the purchase of a Vehicle in the amount of 

$75,000. 
 

o Item is designated as Equipment, any adjustments to equipment require formal 
approval from Policy Council and the Office of Head Start. 

o Our Vendor has indicated the vehicles are on extended backorder and will not be 
available for purchase this program year. 
 

- Reallocate funds previously allocated to the San Antonio Independent School District in 
the amount of $200,000. 
 

o SAISD has informed Head Start of a significant variance of funds because of 
vacancies in their staff over the past couple of months.  

o SAISD has requested these funds be reallocated to be utilized to purchase 
materials and supplies, as well as provide retention incentives to personnel. 

o SAISD has also agreed to relinquish $200,000 of these funds back to COSA Head 
Start for utilization by the City.  
 

- Reallocation of these funds will primarily be utilized to offset increased personnel costs 
incurred by the City of San Antonio for Head Start Staff. 
 

o At the start of FY24, City Council had authorized an across-the-board increase of 
4% for all salaries, additionally the City has begun an attempt to correct 
compression of staff salaries by reviewing individual positions and titles, and 
adjusting their compensation within their positions pay range based on 
cumulative experience in that position. This adjustment has increased salaries 
significantly for several our Head Start staff.  

o Additionally, Fringe Benefits have increased as well, with an increase in Health 
Premiums and Retirement. 

o Reallocation of these funds will help offset the increase incurred this program 
year.  

 
- Seek approval to purchase Spot Vision Machines for SAISD 

 
o Items have an individual value more than $5,000 per unit, prior approval from the 

Office of Head Start is required. 
o Each item is valued at around $8,000 per unit, SAISD is requesting to purchase six 

units. 

137072
Stamp

137072
Stamp



City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195716

Agenda Item Number: 8

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Review of Head Start Beginning of the Year (BOY) Student Outcome Data

SUMMARY:

This item presents the following from the Department of Human Services (DHS) Head Start, Early 
Head Start, and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership programs for action by the Head Start 
Policy Council.

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Head Start Program Performance Standards 1301.2 (b)(2) requires the program to share 
ongoing monitoring results, data on school readiness goals, other information described in 
1302.102, and information described in the Head Start Act Section 642(d)(2) to conduct 



responsibilities required.
 

ISSUE:

Rules and regulations for the Head Start, Early Head Start, and Early Start-Child Care Partnership 
grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) require the Head 
Start Policy Council to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key responsibilities.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund as a result of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance with 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services rules and regulations for Head Start, Early Head 
Start, and Early Head Start- Child Care Partnership programs.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the HSPC Committee. Staff 
recommends review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



Review of Head Start 
Beginning of the Year 

(BOY) Student 
Outcome Data



Student Outcome Data  

  

1 11/2023 

 

The Office of Head Start requires programs to conduct standardized and structured assessments for each 
child that provide ongoing information to evaluate the child’s developmental level and progress across 
outcomes aligned to the goals described in the Head Start Early Learning Child Outcomes Framework 
(HSELOF): Ages Birth to Five. Such assessments must result in usable information for teachers, program 
staff, and parents and conducted with sufficient frequency to allow for individualization within the 
program year. 
 
The City of San Antonio Department of Human Services (DHS) Head Start Program utilizes the CIRCLE 
Progress Monitoring System Pre-K (CIRCLE), a standardized, criterion-referenced measure that relates 
well to established standardized tests and is sensitive to growth in children’s skills over time for children 
ages 3-5 years old. The results of CIRCLE are used to generate a detailed picture of each child's growth 
and development across 15 areas so that individualized, developmentally appropriate activities can be 
planned and implemented. The 15 areas are listed below in Table 1. Students are assessed three times 
during the program year, Beginning of the Year (BOY), Middle of the Year (MOY), and End of the Year 
(EOY). 
 
Table 1: CIRCLE Dimensions 

Assessment Areas 

Rapid Letter Naming (RLN) Book & Print Knowledge Speech Production &  
Sentence Skills 

Rapid Vocabulary Naming Story Retell & Comprehension Motivation to Read 

Phonological Awareness (PA) Science Early Writing 

Mathematics (Math) Social Studies Approaches to Learning 

Letter-Sound Correspondence Social & Emotional 
Development 

Physical Health & 
Development 

 
 
Proficiency  
The CIRCLE Progress Monitoring System provides a score for each area assessed.  Children are described 
as PROFICIENT if they score at or above the cut point, or threshold, listed in accordance with their age, 
and indicates if the child is on track and has a developed understanding of the measure.  Children are 
described as NOT PROFICIENT if they score below the cut point, or threshold, listed in accordance with 
their age and indicates an underdeveloped understanding of the measure and a need for more skill 
development or intensive intervention. The threshold, or cut point, increases at each assessment.  
Children may be described as OUT OF RANGE if they are not within the specified age range for the 
measure, or if there are no established cut points or thresholds for the area assessed.   
 
Student Outcome Results 
The tables below provide student outcome data for CIRCLE for the 2023-2024 school year.  The three 
tables show the percentage of children identified as PROFICIENT in each assessment area.  Table 2 
provides data for all children enrolled in the program.   Table 3 provides data for non-transitioning 
three-year-olds.  Table 4 provides data for four-year-old children transitioning into kindergarten. The 
percentage of students identified as OUT OF RANGE are not included in percentage.   
 



Student Outcome Data  

  

2 11/2023 

 

Table 2: All Children enrolled in the program - Percentage identified as PROFICIENT 
 

 
 
  Table 3: Non-Transitioning three-year olds - Percentage identified as PROFICIENT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOY MOY EOY BOY MOY EOY BOY MOY EOY

RLN 32% 53% 68% 35% 63% 77% 43%

Rapid Vocabulary  53% 68% 69% 48% 66% 70% 52%

PA 60% 65% 70% 59% 74% 77% 65%

Math 74% 77% 73% 69% 79% 81% 76%

Letter-Sound Correspondence NA 81% 82% NA 86% 87% N/A

Story Retell & Comp. 51% 75% 83% 47% 86% 81% 51%

Book & Print Knowledge  79% 77% 71% 74% 71% 74% 79%

Science  83% 84% 79% 57% 83% 82% 83%

Social Studies  85% 80% 77% 79% 80% 77% 80%

Social & Emotional Dev. 98% 90% 85% 95% 89% 84% 92%

Early Writing  93% 85% 85% 87% 85% 84% 94%

Approaches To Learning  92% 88% 85% 88% 88% 85% 92%

Physical Health & Dev. 88% 87% 85% 84% 86% 84% 90%

Speech Production & Sentence Skills 89% 86% 85% 86% 85% 84% 91%

Motivation to Read 93% 87% 90% 91% 87% 88% 89%

Percentage of children PROFICIENT

CIRCLE Assessment Areas 
2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024

BOY MOY EOY BOY MOY EOY BOY MOY EOY

RLN 20% 53% 70% 20% 63% 75% 23%

Rapid Vocabulary  60% 76% 77% 55% 80% 63% 56%

PA 53% 65% 69% 56% 67% 76% 55%

Math 69% 74% 71% 65% 77% 83% 64%

Letter-Sound Correspondance NA 96% 100% NA 100% 100% N/A

Story Retell & Comp.  47% 74% 83% 42% 65% 84% 42%

Book & Print Knowledge  77% 78% 71% 73% 75% 77% 73%

Science  81% 81% 79% 74% 83% 84% 77%

Social Studies  86% 78% 76% 80% 79% 76% 79%

Social & Emotional Dev. 98% 89% 86% 95% 90% 84% 94%

Early Writing  92% 87% 87% 89% 86% 83% 88%

Approaches To Learning 90% 88% 84% 88% 83% 88% 85%

Physical Health & Dev. 84% 87% 84% 89% 85% 85% 80%

Speech Production & Sentence Skills 91% 86% 82% 89% 84% 87% 89%

Motivation to Read 93% 90% 91% 92% 87% 89% 89%

CIRCLE Assessment Areas 
2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024

Non-Transitioning three year old children        

Percentage of children PROFICIENT



Student Outcome Data  

  

3 11/2023 

 

 
Table 4: Transitioning four-year olds - Percentage identified as PROFICIENT 
                                          

 

 
Data Analysis  
The DHS Head Start Program began using the CIRCLE Progress Monitoring System Pre-K during the 2020-
2021 school year.  The information provided below includes program outcomes for BOY for the 2023-2024 
program year.   
 
At the Beginning of the Year (BOY), the percentage of children assessed that were identified as PROFICIENT 
is lowest for Rapid Letter Naming (RLN) for non-transitioning three-year olds and Rapid Vocabulary for 
transitioning four-year-olds. The percentage of children identified as PROFICIENT is highest for Social & 
Emotional Development for both non-transitioning three-year olds and transitioning four-year-olds. There 
is not an established BOY cut-point, or threshold, for Letter-Sound Correspondence for BOY. San Antonio 
ISD does not require teachers to complete the Social Studies Assessment.   
 
Additionally, fidelity to the assessment and assessment protocols to ensure all children receive an 
assessment continue to be areas of focus for the program.   

BOY MOY EOY BOY MOY EOY BOY MOY EOY

RLN 38% 53% 66% 43% 63% 79% 50%

Rapid Vocabulary  49% 50% 61% 43% 63% 77% 43%

PA 66% 65% 72% 66% 76% 77% 79%

Math 79% 80% 76% 76% 79% 79% 68%

Letter-Sound Correspondence NA 52% 72% NA 84% 81% N/A

Story Retell & Comp. 54% 76% 83% 53% 72% 78% 54%

Book & Print Knowledge  81% 77% 71% 76% 80% 71% 77%

Science  85% 86% 79% 80% 83% 79% 81%

Social Studies  84% 81% 78% 81% 80% 75% 80%

Social & Emotional Dev. 98% 91% 84% 97% 89% 84% 96%

Early Writing  94% 83% 83% 92% 85% 85% 91%

Approaches To Learning  93% 88% 86% 92% 88% 82% 90%

Physical Health & Dev. 92% 87% 87% 90% 86% 84% 91%

Speech Production & Sentence Skills 87% 86% 88% 87% 85% 81% 86%

Motivation to Read 93% 88% 88% 91% 87% 87% 89%

Percentage of children PROFICIENT

Transitioning four year old children        

CIRCLE Assessment Areas 
2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024



City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195717

Agenda Item Number: 9

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Review of Head Start, Early Head Start (EHS), and Early Head Start- Child Care Partnership 
(EHS-CCP) Fiscal Report

SUMMARY:

This item presents the following from the Department of Human Services (DHS) Head Start, Early 
Head Start, and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership programs for action by the Head Start 
Policy Council.
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Head Start Act 642(d)(2)(A-E) requires the program share accurate and regular information 
with the governing body and in accordance with the Head Start Act Sec 642(c)(1)(E). The report 
includes a fiscal briefing for the month of October 2023.



ISSUE:

Rules and regulations for the Head Start, Early Head Start, and Early Start-Child Care Partnership 
grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) require the Head 
Start Policy Council to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key responsibilities.

 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund as a result of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance with 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services rules and regulations for Head Start, Early Head 
Start, and Early Head Start- Child Care Partnership programs.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the HSPC Committee. Staff 
recommends review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



 

Review of Head Start, Early
Head Start (EHS), and Early

Head Start-Child Care
Partnership (EHS-CCP) Fiscal

Report



 

EHS/Head Start



 

EHS/HS Fiscal Reports GY 23-24 as of October 31, 2023
BUDGET BY CATEGORY

TOTAL BUDGET
$5,536,979

YTD BUDGET
$4,182,918

YTD ACTUAL
$4,115,952

Variance
$66,966

Var %
1.6%PERSONNEL

FRINGE $2,297,435

$32,447

$1,623,765

$14,721

$1,559,720

$12,899

$64,045

$1,822

3.9%

TRAVEL 12.4%

SUPPLIES $76,694
$75,000

$56,767
$0

$62,000
$0

($5,233)
$0

-9.2%
0.0%EQUIPMENT

CONTRACTUAL $22,267,095 $11,224,090 $10,757,490 $466,600 4.2%
COSA
Edgewood
San Antonio ISD
SAMH
FACILITIES/CONSTRUCTION

$393,885
$6,837,218

$14,762,252
$273,740

$0

$143,104
$3,392,159
$7,541,129

$147,698
$0

$153,368
$3,336,555
$7,144,636

$122,931
$0

($10,263)
$55,604

$396,493
$24,767

$0

-7.2%
1.6%
5.3%

16.8%
0.0%

OTHER $457,586
$30,743,236

$0

$338,736
$17,440,997

$0

$359,428
$16,867,488

$0

($20,691)
$573,509

$0

-6.1%
3.3%
0.0%
3.3%

TOTAL FEDERAL BUDGET
Non Federal/In Kind
TOTAL BUDGET* $30,743,236 $17,440,997 $16,867,488 $573,509

Variance Explanations:
Personnel Salaries
Fringe Benefits

Fiscal revised our personnel projection methodology, current balance reflects a surplus, but this is anticipated to reduce as a result
of the FY24 Salary increases, this increase will result in a deficit to this category, but COSA is in discussions with ISD partners to
reallocate cost savings to offest future expenses.

Travel
$1,822 YTD savings are a placeholder for possible postponed Travel in succeeding months.

Supplies ($5.2k) Purchase of 6 printers, 10 laptops, and computer chips/equipment totaling $11,749.32 in June.

Contractual
($10.3k) Prior month billings for NTA/UIW above projections, to be offset in subsequent months. *UIW Previously reported under
SAMH/UIW, current year PO includes this expense under COSA Contractual Misc.

COSA

EISD $55.6k YTD Actual overinflated by $11.5k. This is associated with a minor billing error corrected in November. *T&TA Expenses
listed under COSA Contractual, tracked separately from the direct funds.

SAISD $396.5K Savings reflected YTD for SAISD. COSA is in discussions with ISD partners to reallocate these cost savings to offset future

expenses for personnel and fringe. *T&TA Expenses listed under COSA Contractual, tracked separately from the direct funds.
SAMH $24.8k Savings due to SAMHD billing COSA for August services late. More accurate variance to be reflected in November business.

Other ($20.1K) Expenses more than expected. Driven primarily by Binding & Printing and Education Classes overages.

Non Federal/In Kind

TRACKED COSTS TOTAL BUDGET
$4,611,485

YTD ALLOWED
$2,530,123

YTD ACTUAL
$1,510,808Administrative Cost

(may not exceed 15% of Actual Expenditure)
TRACKED COSTS

HS Training and Technical Assistance**
EHS Training and Technical Assistance**

TOTAL BUDGET
$268,682

YTD BUDGET
$109,243

$19,471

YTD ACTUAL
$159,806

$16,955

VARIANCE
-$50,562

$2,516

%
-46.28%

$45,632 12.92%
**Earmarked Costs - $11,193 T&TA allocated to Edgewood ISD and $32,311 T&TA allocated to San Antonio ISD.

11/07/2023



 

Early Head Start/Head Start GY 2023‐2024

GRANT SUMMARY TOTAL

BUDGET

YEAR TO DATE

Variance $Budget Actual Variance %
3.29%Description GL $ 30,743,236 $ 17,440,997 $ 16,866,837 $ 574,161

Regular Salaries
Temporary Salaries
Overtime Salaries
Shift Differential

5101010
5101015
5101020
5101040
5101070

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

5,534,964
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

4,182,817
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

4,105,170
3,985.28

41.39
(15,649.95)
22,404.52
4,115,952

18,250

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

77,647
(3,985.28)

59.40
15,649.95

(22,404.52)
66,966

483

1.86%
0.00%

58.93%
0.00%
0.00%
1.60%
2.58%
2.35%
0.00%
7.42%
0.00%
1.76%
6.33%
3.94%

12.38%
12.38%

2,000.00
15.00

100.79
-

Retiree Payout Sal - -
Personnel Services
Language Skill Pay
FICA & Medicare Exp
Temp FICA & Medicare
Life Insurance
Pers Leave Buy Back
Retirement Exp
Civln Actv Healthcr
Fringe Benefits

5,536,979
31,560

424,081
-

4,182,918
18,733

314,029
-

5101050
5103005
5103007
5103010
5103035
5105010
5170040

306,646
315.59

2,884

7,383
(315.59)

231902 3,115
-124,508

768,341
948,043

2,297,435
32,447
32,447

- -
552,355
735,533

1,623,765
14,721
14,721

542,628
688,996

1,559,720
12,899

9,727
46,537
64,045

1,822Travel-Official 5207010
Travel-Official 12,899 1,822
Fees to Prof Contr.
Contractual Services
Contractual - Subrecipients
EISD
SAISD
UIW
SAMH
Direct

5201040
5202020
5202040
5202040
5202040
5202020
6102100
5202020
5202020
5202040
5202020
5202025

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

108,334.00
242,047.00

21,642,974.00
6,837,218.00

14,762,252.00
79,480.00

273,740.00
49,300.00

113,267.00
43,504.00

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

70,893.43
69,911.00

10,935,587.82
3,392,159.10
7,541,128.72

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

60,142.97
90,241.55

10,483,491.09
3,336,555.35
7,144,635.74

27,294.15
122,930.56

14,290.08
48,657.32

2,300.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

10,750.46
(20,330.55)
452,096.73

55,603.75
396,492.98
(27,294.15)
24,767.10

6,963.60
-

15.16%
-29.08%
4.13%
1.64%
5.26%
0.00%
16.77%
32.76%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

147,697.66
21,253.68
48,657.32

2,300.00
-

TTA
TTA -
Direct - EHS
Other Contract Srvcs

651.40
31.96

(651.40)
(31.96)- -

Contractual $
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

22,267,095.00
39,947

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

11,224,089.91
16,125

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

10,756,838.13
14,675
119.99
18,034
29,164

7

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

467,251.78
1,450

(119.99)
(6,430)

(132)
(2)

4.16%
8.99%
0.00%

-55.41%
-0.45%

-31.14%
0.00%

Office Supplies 5302010
5304075
5304080
5501000
5501055
5501065

Computer Software
Other Commodities
Cap<5000 - Comp Equ.
Cap<5000 - M&E Other
Cap<5000 - Furn &Fix
Supplies

22,096
9,651
2,500

11,604
29,033

5
2,500 - - -

76,694
75,000.00
75,000.00

78,633
62,443
31,000

1,000
8,669
1,067

21,898
76,031

1,800

56,767
-

62,000
-

(5,233)
-

-9.22%
0.00%M&E Auto(BudgetOnly)

Equipment
5709090

- - - 0.00%
Education - Classes
Adv and Publications
Binding & Printing
Subs to Publications
Transportation Fees
Maint & Rep - Cmrcl
Maint - Buildings
Cleaning Services
Maint.- Repair Auto
Mail and Parcel Post
Rental Office Equip.
Alarm and Sec. Serv.
M&R Parts Automotive
Food
Cell Phone Services
Wireless Data Comm.
Motor Fuel and Lub.
Software Licenses
Gas and Electricity
Water and Sewer
DW Other

5201025
5203040
5203060
5203070
5203090
5204020
5204050
5204060
5204090
5205010
5205020
5208530
5301020
5304010
5403040
5403510
5403545
5404520
5404530
5404540
5407032
5203080
5407060

67,608
47

60,696
565

11,555
317

13,787
49,673

28

75,556
47

73,494
1,140

10,843
218

12,159
48,752

70

(7,948)
0

(12,798)
(575)
712

99
1,628

921
(42)
(16)

(740)
-

(6)

-11.76%
0.00%

-21.09%
-101.84%

6.16%
31.32%
11.80%
1.85%

-153.05%
0.00%1,500

10,000
2,080

- 16
6,872

-
6,132

-
51

-12.07%
0.00%

1,500 57 -12.55%
-7.26%

-16.87%
-7.03%

-13.56%
0.00%

16.24%
5.24%
2.82%

12,700
32,051
12,451

2,600
335.00
30,271

3,104
3,000

58,453
5,000

16,999
17,669

8,577
1,173

152.63
18,963

1,599
555

18,234
20,649

9,181
1,332

152.63
15,883

1,516
539

(1,235)
(2,980)

(603)
(159)

-
3,080

84
16

(127)
-

Subs - Comp. Serv
Relocation Expenses

59,465
3,126

59,592
3,126

-0.21%
0.00%

Other
Total

$
$

457,586 $
$

338,736 $
$

359,428 $
$

(20,691)
574,161

-6.11%
3.29%30,743,236 17,440,997 16,866,837

Page 1 of 1



 

Procurement Card Transaction Log
For the Period Ending: October 31, 2023

Date IO GL Vendor Purpose Amount

$0.00Monthly Total:

IO GL Account Name Amount
$165.00
$126.00
$72.00
$36.00
$18.00
$18.00
$31.96

$2,155.40
$18.00
$18.00

138000003502
138000003502
138000003502
138000003502
138000003503
138000003502
138000003502
138000003502
138000003520
138000003502
138000003502
138000003502

5201025
5201040
5201040
5201040
5201040
5201040
5202025
5304010
5201040
5201040
5201040
5201040

Education ‐ Classes
Fees to Prof Contr.
Fees to Prof Contr.
Fees to Prof Contr.
Fees to Prof Contr.
Fees to Prof Contr.
Fees to Prof Contr.
Rusty Bucket
FBI.gov
FBI.gov
FBI.gov
FBI.gov

$18.00
$18.00

Year to Date Total: $2,694.36



 

Edgewood Independent School District GY23‐24‐HS
Description

Federal Totals
YTD EXPENSES

2,106,228.51
26,766.01

150,924.60
194,759.92

37,723.07
5,567.11
3,641.84
4,131.98
2,166.52

‐

Non‐Federal Totals
BUDGET

4,150,083.00
58,751.00

364,914.00
349,155.00

44,966.00
23,000.00

4,000.00
2,500.00
2,500.00
2,000.00
6,000.00
5,000.00

12,000.00
38,901.00

6,191.00
600.00

BALANCE Total w/ Revisions YTD Expenses YTD Balance
Personnel Salaries & Wages
FICA

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,043,854.49
31,984.99

213,989.40
154,395.08

7,242.93

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,354,388.00 $
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

571,351.52
8,826.07

38,567.40
25,937.50

6,246.36

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

783,036.48
(8,826.07)

(38,567.40)
(25,937.50)

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Health Insurance
Retirement
Worker's Compensation
Classroom Supplies

(6,246.36)
17,432.89

358.16
(1,631.98) $

333.48
2,000.00

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Office Supplies
Medical and Dental Supplies
Janitorial Supplies $

$Cap <5000 - Computers
Cap <5000 - Furniture & Fixtures
CPR TTA

12,937.92
1,300.00
6,000.00

‐
1,000.00
3,381.43

‐

(6,937.92) $
3,700.00
6,000.00

38,901.00
5,191.00

(2,781.43) $
1,500.00

(383.37) $
836.61

(6,101.75) $
20,466.25

(209.44) $

$
$
$
$

Contracted services for PASEO
Contracted Services for Mental Wellness
Staff Development/Training/Seminars/Class-TTA
Food and Snacks for meetings
Adverstising and Publications
Binding Printing and Reproduction
Transportation Fees-Staff Mileage
Mail and Postage

‐
‐
‐

1,500.00
500.00

$ ‐
‐883.37

1,000.00
1,000.00

33,875.00
25,000.00

3,565.00

163.39 $ ‐
‐
‐
‐

7,101.75
13,408.75
25,209.44

‐

Food for Children(Not reimbursed by USDA)
Gas and Electricity

$

Water and Sewer 3,565.00 $ ‐
Total: $ 5,137,001.00 2,603,295.61 2,533,705.39 $ 1,354,388.00 $ 650,928.85 $ 703,459.15



 

Edgewood Independent School District GY23‐24 EHS
Description

Federal Totals
YTD Expenses

585,598.44
7,582.30

Non‐Federal Totals
Total w/ Revisions YTD Balance BUDGET YTD EXPENSES BALANCE

43,411.26Total Salaries $
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,325,462.00
18,825.00

101,237.00
136,518.00

14,366.00
500.00

$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

739,863.56 $
$
$
$

63,688.00 $
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

20,276.74 $
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

FICA 11,242.70
59,971.82
79,586.96

923.00 296.40 626.60
Health Insurance $

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

41,265.18
56,931.04
15,926.32

20,759.00
7,006.00

848.45
877.16
367.96

19,910.55
6,128.84Retirement

Worker's Compensation
Official Travel (out of town)
Equipment >$5,000 per unit cost, enter specific data
Classroom and Program Supplies
Office Supplies

(1,560.32) $ 710.00 342.04
‐ 500.00

6,500.00
31,376.69

1,336.90
1,217.23

626.77
2,297.45
6,643.63
2,500.00

‐

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

6,500.00
45,000.00

2,500.00
3,000.00
1,500.00
2,500.00

10,000.00
2,500.00

‐

‐
13,623.31

1,163.10
1,782.77

873.23
202.55

3,356.37
‐

Medical and Dental Supplies
Janitorial Supplies
Cap <5000 - Computers
Cap <5000 - Furniture & Fixtures
CPR ‐ ‐
In-Kind Facility use inclding maintenance and repair of fac $ ‐ 299,436.00 299,436.00
(Specify) 1 $

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

‐ 4,650.00
65.00

‐

(4,650.00) $ ‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Staff Development/Training/Seminars-Class CDA
Advertising and Publications
Subscriptions

15,000.00
3,000.00

500.00

14,935.00
3,000.00

500.00
80.00

500.00
756.96

2,529.04
4,814.00
2,155.82
3,557.84

‐

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

‐
Binding and Printing
Mail and Postage

500.00
500.00

420.00
‐

Food for Staff Training
Transportation Fees Staff Mileage
Food For Adults

1,500.00
3,000.00

16,000.00
3,000.00
4,000.00

‐

743.04
470.96

11,186.00
844.18
442.16

‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

Parent Activites
Misc Fee
Volunteer Hours -Inkind
Donations-Inkind

1,600.00
1,600.00

970,282.05 $ 395,722.00

1,600.00
1,600.00

373,055.29
‐ ‐ ‐

Total: $ 1,717,408.00 $ 747,125.95 $ 22,666.71



 

San Antonio Independent School District GY23‐24
Description

Federal Totals
YTD EXPENSES

Non‐Federal Totals
BUDGET

$ 10,872,851.00
BALANCE
5,442,659.40

395,607.46
514,742.94
459,794.97

63,790.62
15,000.00
15,016.00

105,550.00
62,578.00
45,380.00
15,200.00

150,000.00
185,296.87

32,311.00
127,000.00

20,000.00
‐

Total w/ Revisions YTD Expenses YTD Balance
1,242,519.21Personnel Salaries & Wages

FICA
$ 5,430,191.60 $

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

3,656,689.00
300,000.00
550,000.00
100,000.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,414,169.79
153,139.23
322,943.92

48,518.23

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

749,052.00
1,159,372.00
1,040,493.00

84,760.00
15,000.00
15,016.00

105,550.00
62,578.00
45,380.00
15,200.00

150,000.00
300,000.00

32,311.00
127,000.00

20,000.00
‐

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

353,444.54
644,629.06
580,698.03

20,969.38

146,860.77
227,056.08

51,481.77
24,820.31

Health Insurance
Retirement
Worker's Compensation 33,442.00 8,621.69
1.Equipment >$5,000 per unit cost, Storage Sheds
2.Equipment >$5,000 per unit cost, Canopies
Classroom Supplies

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Office Supplies
Medical and Dental Supplies
Janitorial Supplies
Cap <5000 - Furniture & Fixtures
Consulting Services -Communities in School- PACE
TTA

114,703.13
‐
‐
‐
‐

Lead Testing & Inspection & Mold Testing
Contracted Maintenance & Repairs(Patchwork, Gravel/So $
Staff Development/Training/Seminars
Maintenance - Buildings & Improvement

$
$ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

Total: $ 14,794,563.00 7,144,635.74 7,649,927.26 4,640,131.00 2,947,392.86 1,692,738.14



 

San Antonio Metropolitan Health District GY23‐24
Description

Federal Totals Non‐Federal Totals
BUDGET YTD EXPENSES BALANCE Total w/ Revisions YTD Expenses YTD Balance

Personnel Salaries & Wages
FICA & Medicare Expense

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

180,444.00
13,803.00

179.00
23,602.00
30,548.00

9,591.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

83,128.77
6,277.96

66.43
10,870.42
14,395.45

3,150.81
1,228.48
3,812.24

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

97,315.23
7,525.04

112.57
12,731.58
16,152.55

6,440.19

$
$
$
$
$
$

38,445.00
2,941.00

38.00
5,029.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

24,885.39
1,860.41

16.15
2,919.40

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

13,559.61
1,080.59

21.85
2,109.60

Life Insurance
Retirement Expense Civilian TMRS
Civilian Active Healthcare Assessment
Other Commodities

7,122.00 4,247.89 2,874.11
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

Office Supplies ‐ (1,228.48) $
8,760.76Medical and Dental Supplies

In Kind Fees to Professional Contractors
Education

12,573.00 $
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

‐ ‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐ 11,933.00 987.50 10,945.50
2,000.00
1,000.00

2,000.00
1,000.00

‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐Binding Printing and Reproduction

Wireless Data Communications
In-Kind Wireless Data Communications
In-Kind Cell Phone Service

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
750.00

1,037.00
‐

‐
750.00

1,037.00
‐In-Kind Gas & Electricity

In-Kind Water & Sewer ‐ ‐
In Kind Binding, Printing & Reproduction
In Kind Maintenance and Repair Automotive
In-Kind Maintenance & Repair Building
In Kind Motor Fuel and Lubricants

3,942.00
75.00

‐
123.00

71,435.00 $

2,145.00
53.53

‐
70.10

37,185.37 $

1,797.00
21.47

‐
52.90

34,249.63Total: $ 273,740.00 $ 122,930.56 $ 150,809.44 $



 

Early Head Start-Child Care
Partnership (EHS-CCP)



 

Early Head Start - CCP Fiscal Reports GY 22-23 as of October 31, 2023

BUDGET BY CATEGORY
TOTAL BUDGET

803,706
YTD BUDGET

803,706
YTD ACTUAL

841,891
Var ($)

(38,185)
Var ( %)

-4.8%PERSONNEL

FRINGE

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

308,716

9,913

-

308,716

9,913

-

321,016

8,390

-

(12,300)

1,523

-

-4.0%

15.4%

0.0%

TRAVEL

EQUIPMENT

SUPPLIES 74,767 74,767 33,689 41,078 54.9%

CONTRACTUAL
COSA

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,850,885
64,782

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,850,885
64,782

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,825,958
40,605

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

24,927 1.3%
37.3%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.3%
0.0%
0.0%

24,177
Blessed Sacrament
Ella Austin

363,835
396,912
529,215
231,532

99,229

363,835
396,912
529,215
231,532

99,229

363,835
396,813
529,215
230,881

99,229

-
99

Healy Murphy
Inman Christian
Seton Home
YWCA

-
651
-
-165,380 165,380 165,380

OTHER
TOTAL FED BUDGET

$
$

54,353 $
$

54,353 $
$

71,395 $
$

(17,042)
-

-31.4%
0.0%3,102,340 3,102,340 3,102,340

NON FED SHARE/IN KIND

TOTAL BUDGET

$

$

754,459 $

$

754,459 $

$

754,459 $

$

-

-

0.0%

0.0%3,856,799 3,856,799 3,856,799

Variance Explanations: *Actuals may not inclue all items that will post in October 2023, earlier scheduled PC Meeting due to Thanksgiving holiday.
($50K) Due to FY23 Salary Adjustment applied City Wide. Personnel costs increased roughly 7%; Portion of overage to
be transferred to General Fund close to grant close, will balance Federal portionPersonnel Services and Fringe Benefits

Travel $1.5K Less travel than expected, savings used to offset negative balance in personnel services.

Supplies $41K Less expenses than expected, savings used to offset negative balance in personnel services.

Contractual
-COSA

$24K Positive variance used to offset Other; Quarter 3 & Quarter 1 Scorecard $188 disallowance for Inman. Quarter 2
Socrecard $99 disallowance for Ella.
($17K) Overspent in Education - Classes (TXAEYC & Regents University Conference/Registration fee) & Building (cleaning
& maintenance).Other

Non Federal Share/In Kind

TRACKED COSTS YTD ALLOWED YTD ACTUAL
Administrative Cost $578,520 $154,076

*may not exceed 15% of Actual Expenditure; If all Federal and Nonfederal spent the maximum allowable is $ 564,510

TRACKED COSTS TOTAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL Var %
Training and Technical Assistance $64,800 $64,800 $64,800 $0 0.0%
(Earmarked costs)

11/07/2023



 

EHS-CCP 2022-2023
Grant Summary

TOTAL
BUDGET

YEAR TO DATE
Budget

3,856,799.00
793,497.00

576.00

Actual Variance $
$

Variance %
0.00%

Encumbrance
Description GL $

$
$
$
$

3,856,799.00 $
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$

3,856,799.00
831,681.17

576.27

- $
$
$
$
$

-
-
-
-
-

Regular Salaries 5101010
5101015
5101020
5101070

793,497.00
576.00

$
$
$
$

(38,184.17)
(0.27)

-4.81%
Temporary Salaries
Overtime Salaries
Retiree Payout Sal

-0.05%
2.00 2.00 1.76 0.24 12.00%

-0.01%9,631.00 9,631.00 9,632.09 (1.09)
Personnel Services
Language Skill Pay
FICA & Medicare Exp
Temp FICA & Medicare
Life Insurance

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

803,706.00
2,200.00

60,765.00
49.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

803,706.00
2,200.00

60,765.00
49.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

841,891.29
2,350.00

62,324.24
49.35

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(38,185.29)
(150.00)

(1,559.24)
(0.35)

-4.75%
-6.82%
-2.57%
-0.71%
32.97%
0.00%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

5101050
5103005
5103007
5103010
5103035
5105010
5170040

651.00 651.00 436.79 214.81
Pers Leave Buy Back
Retirement Exp
Civln Actv Healthcr

12,762.00
106,432.00
125,857.00

12,762.00
106,432.00
125,857.00

12,762.05
110,638.59
132,454.97

(0.05)
(4,206.59)
(6,597.97)

-3.95%
-5.24%

Fringe Benefits
Travel-Official

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

308,716.00
9,913.00
9,913.00

56,782.00
1,794,103.00

363,835.00
396,912.00
529,215.00
231,532.00

99,229.00
165,380.00

8,000.00
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

308,716.00
9,913.00
9,913.00

56,782.00
1,794,103.00

363,835.00
396,912.00
529,215.00
231,532.00

99,229.00
165,380.00

8,000.00
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

321,015.99
8,390.39
8,390.39

23,699.39
1,802,258.18

363,835.00
396,812.77
529,215.00
230,880.82

99,229.00
165,380.00

6,962.28
13.80

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(12,299.99)
1,522.61
1,522.61

33,082.61
(8,155.18)

-

-3.98%
15.36%
15.36%
58.26%
-0.45%
0.00%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

5207010
Travel-Official
Fees to Prof Contr.
Contractual Services

5201040
5202020

BSA 5202020
Ella Austin 5202020

Healy 5202020
Inman 5202020

Seton Home 5202020
YWCA 5202020
Direct 5202020
Admin 5202020

TTA 5202020

99.23 0.03%
- 0.00%

651.18 0.28%
- 0.00%
- 0.00%

1,037.72
(13.80)

(9,929.51)
24,927.43
14,924.10

448.00

12.97%
0.00%
0.00%- - 9,929.51

1,825,957.57
2,933.90

-

Contractual 1,850,885.00
17,858.00

448.00

1,850,885.00
17,858.00

448.00

1.35%
Office Supplies 5302010

5304075
5304050
5304080
5501000
5501055
5501065

83.57%
100.00%

0.00%
Computer Software
Tools & Apparatus
Other Commodities
Cap<5000 - Comp Equ.
Cap<5000 - M&E Other
Cap<5000 - Furn &Fix
Supplies

- - 54.69 (54.69)
22,857.08

6,409.51
(4,696.64)
1,190.20

41,077.56
(15,884.23)

1,262.98
4,187.77

(3,069.00)
608.82

38,840.00
12,365.00

-

38,840.00
12,365.00

-

15,982.92
5,955.49
4,696.64
4,065.80

33,689.44
28,801.23

273.02

58.85%
51.84%
0.00%
22.64%
54.94%

-122.97%
82.23%
41.88%
0.00%

5,256.00
74,767.00
12,917.00

1,536.00
10,000.00

-

5,256.00
74,767.00
12,917.00

1,536.00
10,000.00

-

Education - Classes
Adv and Publications
Binding & Printing
Subs to Publications
Transportation Fees
Maint - Buildings
Cleaning Services
Rental of Equipment
Maint. - M&E

5201025
5203040
5203060
5203070
5203090
5204050
5204060
5204070
5204080
5205020
5206010
5208530
5304010
5304040
5403040
5403510
5404530
5404540
5407032
5203080

5,812.23
3,069.00
2,190.18
2,674.86
9,590.61

-

2,799.00
4,233.00
4,130.00

-

2,799.00
4,233.00
4,130.00

-

21.75%
36.81%

-132.22%
0.00%

1,558.14
(5,460.61)

-
- - 44.45 (44.45)

(581.05)
(308.11)

66.20

0.00%
Rental Office Equip.
Rental of Facilities
Alarm and Sec. Serv.
Food

230.00 230.00 811.05 -252.63%
0.00%- - 308.11

2,820.00
3,000.00

-

2,820.00
3,000.00

-

2,753.80
1,679.06

178.70

2.35%
1,320.94
(178.70)
(337.71)

33.95

44.03%
0.00%Chems Meds & Drugs

Cell Phone Services
Wireless Data Comm.
Gas and Electricity
Water and Sewer
DW Other

4,000.00
2,000.00
4,499.00

599.00

4,000.00
2,000.00
4,499.00

599.00

4,337.71
1,966.05
4,528.53

404.96

-8.44%
1.70%

(29.53)
194.04

-0.66%
32.39%
-50.82%
21.43%

1,000.00
590.00

1,000.00
590.00

1,508.20
463.57

(508.20)
126.43Subs - Comp. Serv

Other $
$
$
$

54,353.00
754,459.00
754,459.00

3,856,799.00

$
$
$
$

54,353.00
754,459.00
754,459.00

3,856,799.00

$
$
$
$

71,395.32
754,459.00
754,459.00

3,856,799.00

$
$
$
$

(17,042.32) -31.35%
15.81%
0.00%

$
$
$
$

-
-
-
-

In Kind Other Contrc
In Kind

6602025 -
-
-Total 0.00%



 

Procurement Card Transaction Log
YTD For the Period Ending: October 31, 2023

Date IO GL Vendor Purpose Amount

No Additional P‐Card Purchases in October 2023

Monthly Total: $0.00

AmountIO GL GL Name
138000003456
138000003454
138000003456

5207010
5201040
5201025

Travel‐Official ‐ NHSA Hotel Room Reservation for Priscilla G.
FBI Fingerprint background check for EHS‐CCP FSW
Recertification of 1 CCP Car Seat Safety Tech.

$
$
$

1,440.84
18.00
55.00

Year to Date Total: $1,513.84



 

Early Head Start - CCP Fiscal Reports GY 23-24 as of October 31, 2023

BUDGET BY CATEGORY
TOTAL BUDGET

829,847
YTD BUDGET

196,207
YTD ACTUAL

219,360
Var ($)

(23,154)
Var ( %)
-11.8%PERSONNEL

FRINGE

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

324,687

9,330

-

78,162 79,926 (1,764) -2.3%

0.0%TRAVEL -

-

-

-

-

-EQUIPMENT

SUPPLIES

0.0%

126,243 4,675 1,586 3,089 66.1%

CONTRACTUAL
COSA

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,017,337
78,294

359,082
430,898
574,531
251,358
143,633
179,541

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

487,757
2,993

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

486,474
1,710

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,283 0.3%
42.9%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

1,283
Blessed Sacrament
Ella Austin

89,772
107,724
143,634

62,841
35,907
44,886

-

89,772
107,724
143,634

62,841
35,907
44,886

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Healy Murphy
Inman Christian
Seton Home
YWCA
Support Services

OTHER
TOTAL FED BUDGET

$ 56,077 $ 7,068 $ 10,061 $ (2,993) -42.3%
-3.0%$ 3,363,521 $ 773,869 $ 797,406 $ (23,537)

NON FED SHARE/IN KIND

TOTAL BUDGET
$ 775,585 $ 3,052 $ 2,689 $ 363 11.9%

-3.0%$ 4,139,106 $ 776,921 $ 800,095 $ (23,174)

Variance Explanations: *Actuals may not inclue all items that will post in October 2023, earlier scheduled PC Meeting due to Thanksgiving holiday.
Personnel Services and Fringe Benefits ($24.9K) Associated with increase in FY23 salaries and EHS/HS personnel cost allocating their time to the CCP Program.

Additionally, COSA increased Salaries for FY24 starting 10/23, Fiscal in process of reviewing and adjusting accordingly

Travel
Supplies $3K Lower expenses than expected for Office Supplies and Other Commodities.

$1.1K Pending invoices from NTA, FSA and PyramidContractual
-COSA
Other ($2.9K) Expense for Kaplan Early Learning Co. LAP score Asst & Archived Licenses

$363 Pending In-Kind for OctNon Federal Share/In Kind

TRACKED COSTS YTD ALLOWED YTD ACTUAL
Administrative Cost $120,014 $20,386

*may not exceed 15% of Actual Expenditure; If all Federal and Nonfederal spent the maximum allowable is $ 564,510
TRACKED COSTS TOTAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL Var %

Training and Technical Assistance $64,800 $7,152 $9,178 ($2,026) -28.3%
(Earmarked costs)

11/07/2023



 

EHS-CCP 2023-2024
Grant Summary

TOTAL
BUDGET

YEAR TO DATE
Variance $Budget Actual Variance %

-2.98%
Encumbrance

Description GL $
$
$
$
$

4,139,106.00 $
$
$
$
$

776,920.95 $
$
$
$
$

800,095.34 $
$
$
$
$

(23,174.39) $
$
$
$
$

1,492,583.33
Regular Salaries
Temporary Salaries
Overtime Salaries
Retiree Payout Sal

5101010
5101015
5101020
5101070

829,847.00 196,206.54 219,360.21 (23,153.67) -11.80%
0.00%

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

0.00%
0.00%

Personnel Services
Language Skill Pay
FICA & Medicare Exp
Temp FICA & Medicare
Life Insurance

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

829,847.00
1,800.00

68,639.00
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

196,206.54
300.00

14,778.00
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

219,360.21
300.00

16,103.43
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(23,153.67)
-

(1,325.43)
-

-11.80%
0.00%
-8.97%
0.00%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

5101050
5103005
5103007
5103010
5103035
5105010
5170040

832.00 172.41 155.08
-

17.33 10.05%
100.00%
-11.43%

2.86%

Pers Leave Buy Back
Retirement Exp
Civln Actv Healthcr

8,311.00
108,889.00
136,216.00

1,549.00
26,304.00
35,059.00

1,549.00
(3,005.97)
1,001.40

29,309.97
34,057.60

Fringe Benefits
Travel-Official

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

324,687.00
9,330.00
9,330.00

30,794.00
1,986,543.00

359,082.00
430,898.00
574,531.00
251,358.00
143,633.00
179,541.00

47,500.00
2,017,337.00

18,263.00
2,160.00

85,662.00
17,254.00

2,904.00
126,243.00

11,439.00
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

78,162.41
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

79,926.08
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(1,763.67) -2.26%
0.00%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

-
5207010 - -

Travel-Official - - - 0.00% -
Fees to Prof Contr.
Contractual Services

5201040
5202020

2,993.00
484,764.00

89,772.00
107,724.00
143,634.00

62,841.00
35,907.00
44,886.00

-

1,709.67
484,764.00

89,772.00
107,724.00
143,634.00

62,841.00
35,907.00
44,886.00

-

1,283.33 42.88%
0.00%

28,913.68
- 1,462,279.00

BSA 5202020 - 0.00% 270,912.00
Ella Austin 5202020

Healy 5202020
Inman 5202020

Seton Home 5202020
YWCA 5202020
Direct 5202020

- 0.00% 325,096.00
-
-

0.00% 481,338.00
0.00% 189,638.00

- 0.00% 108,366.00
-
-

0.00%
0.00%

135,456.00
-

Contractual 487,757.00
2,139.00

-

486,473.67
238.84

-

1,283.33
1,900.16

-

0.26% 1,491,192.68
Office Supplies 5302010

5304075
5304080
5501000
5501065

88.83%
0.00%

110.37
Computer Software
Other Commodities
Cap<5000 - Comp Equ.
Cap<5000 - Furn &Fix
Supplies

-
2,536.00

-
1,346.81

-
1,189.19

-
46.89%
0.00%
0.00%

190.45
-
-- - -

4,675.00
1,799.00

-

1,585.65
3,122.00

3.21

3,089.35
(1,323.00)

(3.21)
-

66.08%
-73.54%
0.00%

313.63
Education - Classes
Adv and Publications
Binding & Printing
Subs to Publications
Transportation Fees
Maint - Buildings
Cleaning Services
Rental Office Equip.
Alarm and Sec. Serv.
Food

5201025
5203040
5203060
5203070
5203090
5204050
5204060
5205020
5208530
5304010
5403040
5403510
5404520
5404530
5404540
5407032
5203080

-
-

7,559.00
-

- - 0.00% -
- 3,601.34

412.01
188.40
926.67

-

(3,601.34)
61.99

(53.40)
1,100.33

150.00
6.00

0.00% -
2,000.00

184.00
474.00
135.00

2,027.00
150.00

6.00

13.08%
-39.56%
54.28%

100.00%
100.00%
30.18%

-60.74%
46.90%
0.00%

-
412.11

12,063.00
1,586.00

72.00

-
-

- -
6,000.00
2,530.00
1,500.00
2,100.00
4,936.00

433.00

545.00
450.00
250.00

-

380.52
723.34
132.74

-

164.48
(273.34)
117.26

-

477.41
Cell Phone Services
Wireless Data Comm.
Software Licenses
Gas and Electricity
Water and Sewer
DW Other

-
-
-

943.00
69.00

492.57
57.41
11.79

8.72

450.43
11.59

0.21

47.77%
16.80%
1.75%

-
-
-1,085.00

2,590.00
12.00

208.00Subs - Comp. Serv 199.28 95.81% 77.00
Other $

$
$
$

56,077.00
775,585.00
775,585.00

4,139,106.00

$
$
$
$

7,068.00
3,052.00

$
$
$
$

10,060.72
2,689.01

$
$
$
$

(2,992.72)
362.99

-42.34%
11.89%
11.89%
-2.98%

$
$
$
$

1,077.02
In Kind Other Contrc
In Kind

6602025 -
3,052.00 2,689.01 362.99 -

Total 776,920.95 800,095.34 (23,174.39) 1,492,583.33



 

Procurement Card Transaction Log
YTD For the Period Ending: October 31, 2023

Date IO GL Vendor Purpose Amount

No P‐Card Expenses in October

Monthly Total: $0.00

AmountIO GL GL Name
138000003522 5201040 Fees to Prof Contr. $ 36.00

Year to Date Total: $36.00



City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195718

Agenda Item Number: 10

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Review of Head Start, EHS, and EHS-CCP Monthly Program Report

SUMMARY:

This item presents the following from the Department of Human Services (DHS) Head Start, Early 
Head Start, and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership programs for action by the Head Start 
Policy Council.
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Head Start Act 642(d)(2)(A-E) requires the program share accurate and regular information 
with the governing body and in accordance with the Head Start Act Sec 642(c)(1)(E). The report 
includes a status on the monthly program report, activities for the programs for the month of 
October 2023. 



ISSUE:

Rules and regulations for the Head Start, Early Head Start, and Early Start-Child Care Partnership 
grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) require the Head 
Start Policy Council to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key responsibilities.

 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund as a result of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance with 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services rules and regulations for Head Start, Early Head 
Start, and Early Head Start- Child Care Partnership programs.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the HSPC Committee. Staff 
recommends review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



Review of Head Start, EHS, 
and EHS-CCP Monthly 

Program Report



Head Start



Indicators EISD SAISD Program Total

Funded Enrollment 777 2,243 3,020

End of Month as reported to the Office of Head Start 689 2,175 2,864

YTD Enrollment 764 2,206 2,970

Enrollment Turnover 2.0% 2.2% 2.2%

Number of Days to Fill a Vacancy 15 17 18

Waiting List 29 83 112

Income Eligible <100% 37% 25% 28%

Over Income 101-130% 10% 8% 8%

Over Income 131% + 8% 8% 8%

Foster 1% 1% 1%

Homeless 4% 14% 11%

Public Assistance (TANF, SSI, SNAP) 40% 44% 43%

Average Daily Attendance 89% 91% 91%

Percent (#) of enrolled children with a disability (funded enrollment) 11.58% 11.23% 11.32%

Meals Served 28,958 65,071 94,029

Snacks Served 10,164 31,651 41,815

Special Diets 37 114 151

1st Home Visit                  (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-10/6/23; SAISD-10/14/23) 97% 93% 94%

2nd Home Visit                 (Benchmark Due Date: 3/28/2024) 0% 0% 0%

1st Parent Conference     (Benchmark Due Date: 12/15/2023) 100% 73% 54%

2nd Parent Conference    (Benchmark Due Date: 5/24/2024) 0% 0% 0%

Family Assessments BOY           (Benchmark Due Date: 12/15/2023) 74% 73% 73%

Family Assessments EOY           (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-5/30/24; SAISD-5/30/24) 0% 0% 0%

Family Meeting Home Visits     (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-8/7/23; SAISD-8/15/23) 99% 99% 99%

Mental health consultation was provided (by a mental health professional) 33 159 192

Mental health consultation was provided (by a licensed mental health professional) 2 16 18

ASQ - 3 Developmental  (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-9/20/23; SAISD-9/28/23)                         96% 88% 90%

ASQ - SE Behavioral        (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-9/20/23; SAISD-9/28/23)                  96% 88% 90%

Nutrition Assessment 99% 99% 99%

TB Questionnaire 99% 99% 99%

Hearing Screening 97% 94% 95%

Vision Screening 97% 95% 95%

Blood Pressure 95% 87% 89%

Growth Assessment 96% 88% 90%

Lead Test 47% 37% 40%

Physical Exams 92% 82% 85%

Dental Exams 93% 90% 90%

Mental Health Services - Complete

Education Screenings - Complete

Health Screenings - Complete

Head Start                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

Monthly Report to Policy Council                                                                                                                                                                           

October 2023

Enrollment

Disability Enrollment

Food Reports 

Education Services - Complete

Family Engagement Services - Complete



Early Head Start



Indicators

Center 

Based Home Based TOTAL

Funded Enrollment 116 12 128

End of Month as reported to the Office of Head Start 91 8 99

YTD Enrollment 94 9 103

Enrollment Turnover 3% 11% 7%

Number of Days to fill a vacancy 0 0 0

Waiting List 56 0 56

Income Eligible <100% 36% 22% 35%

Over Income 101-130% 5% 22% 7%

Over Income 131% + 2% 0% 2%

Foster 0% 0% 0%

Homeless 21% 0% 19%

Public Assistance 35% 56% 37%

Average Daily Attendance (TANF, SSI, SNAP) 82% N/A 82%

Percent (#) of enrolled children with a disability 14% 0% 9%

Meals Served 10,084 0 10,084

Snacks Served 4745 0 4,745

Special Diets 8 0 8

1st Home Visit                 (Benchmark Due Date: 09/25/2023) 95% N/A 95%

2nd Home Visit                (Benchmark Due Date: 03/25/2024) 0% 0% 0%

1st Parent Conference    (Benchmark Due Date: 1/5/2024) 0% 0% 0%

2nd Parent Conference   (Benchmark Due Date: 05/31/2024) 0% 0% 0%

Family Assessments BOY  (Benchmark Due Date: Center-based 11/30/23; Home-based 10/13/23) 72% 100% 78%

Family Assessments EOY (Benchmark Due Date: Center-based 5/31/24); Home-based 5/31/24 0% 0% 0%

Family Meeting Home Visit 100% 100% 100%

Mental health Consultation (provided by licensed mental health professional) 60 0 60

Wellness Services Support (Referral/ Resource) 2 0 2

ASQ - 3 Developmental (Benchmark Due Date: Center-based 9/20/23; Home-based 8/30/23) 99% 100% 99%

ASQ - SE2 Behavioral (Benchmark Due Date: Center-based 9/20/23; Home-based 8/30/23) 99% 100% 99%

Health History 98% 100% 98%

Nutrition Assessment 98% 100% 98%

TB Questionnaire 100% 100% 100%

Hearing Screening 99% 75% 97%

Vision Screening 99% 88% 98%

Hemoglobin Test 24% 38% 24%

Lead Test 36% 38% 36%

Well-Child Exams (90-day requirement) 100% 100% 100%

Well-Child Exams 58% 25% 55%

Dental Exams 48% 50% 48%

Mental Health Services- Complete 

Education Screenings- Complete

Health Screenings- Complete

             Early Head Start Monthly Report                                                                                                                                                        

October 2023

Enrollment

Disability Enrollment 

Food Reports

Education Services- Complete

Family Engagement Services- Complete



Early Head Start-Child Care 
Partnership (EHS-CCP)



Indicators BSA 

Ella 

Austin

Healy 

Murphy Inman

Seton 

Home YWCA TOTAL

Funded Enrollment 40 48 64 28 16 20 216

End of Month as reported to the Office of Head Start 40 48 64 28 16 20 216

YTD Enrollment 41 50 67 29 18 21 226

Enrollment Turnover 2% 4% 4% 3% 11% 5% 4%

Number of Days to fill a vacancy 0 0 0 12 4 0 8

Waiting List 53 58 60 73 0 75 319

Income Eligible <100% 29% 26% 19% 21% 17% 23% 23%

Over Income 101-130% 7% 8% 6% 3% 0% 5% 5%

Over Income 131% + 2% 0% 4% 0% 0% 3% 3%

Foster 0% 0% 6% 0% 0% 2% 2%

Homeless 24% 14% 19% 34% 72% 26% 26%

Public Assistance (TANF, SSI, SNAP) 37% 52% 45% 41% 11% 41% 41%

Average Daily Attendance 93% 89% 79% 82% 84% 88% 85%

Percent (#) of enrolled children with a disability 18% 6% 11% 4% 0% 25% 11%

Meals Served 1,442 1,683 2,076 946 348 720 7,215

Snacks Served 721 765 1,010 461 152 360 3,469

Special Diets 10 8 25 7 7 7 64

1st Home Visit                  (Benchmark Due Date: 9/25/2023) 97% 98% 97% 92% 93% 100% 96%

2nd Home Visit                  (Benchmark Due Date: 3/25/2024) 0%

1st Parent Conference      (Benchmark Due Date: 1/5/2024) 0%

2nd Parent Conference     (Benchmark Due Date: 6/21/2024) 0%

Family Assessments BOY (Benchmark Due Date: 11/30/2023) 97% 74% 79% 80% 85% 80% 81%

Family Assessments EOY (Benchmark Due Date: 5/31/2024) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Family Meeting Home Visit 100% 100% 97% 100% 100% 100% 99%

Mental health consultation was provided (by a mental health professional) 4 4 1 11 1 4 25

Mental health consultation was provided (by a licensed mental health professional) 21 14 11 42 15 11 114

ASQ - 3 Developmental 97% 98% 97% 100% 93% 100% 98%

ASQ - SE2 Behavioral 97% 98% 97% 100% 93% 100% 98%

Health History 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Nutrition Assessment 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

TB Questionnaire 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Hearing Screening 100% 100% 98% 100% 93% 100% 99%

Vision Screening 100% 100% 98% 100% 93% 100% 99%

Hemoglobin Test 70% 40% 45% 38% 43% 55% 49%

Lead Test 95% 90% 78% 50% 86% 95% 83%

Well-Child Exams (90-day requirement) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Well-Child Exams 83% 44% 75% 69% 71% 90% 70%

Dental Exams 75% 56% 53% 58% 43% 55% 58%

Mental Health Services- Complete 

Education Screenings- Complete

Health Screenings- Complete

Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership                                                                                                                                                               

Monthly Report to Policy Council                                                                                                                                                                         

October 2023

                                                                                      Enrollment

Disability Enrollment 

Food Reports

Education Services- Complete

Family Engagement Services- Complete



City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195719

Agenda Item Number: 11

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Review of Head Start Quality Assurance Report

SUMMARY:

This item presents the following from the Department of Human Services (DHS) Head Start, Early 
Head Start, and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership programs for action by the Head Start 
Policy Council.
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Head Start Act 641A requires the program to provide ongoing monitoring and continuous 
improvement information on the Head Start Program. The systems highlight the importance of 
using ongoing monitoring to ensure programs are making the necessary adjustments to realize their 
goals and objectives. The expectation is that programs share their ongoing monitoring data with 



staff, Policy Councils, and governing bodies to engage them in all aspects of the program planning 
process. 

ISSUE:

Rules and regulations for the Head Start, Early Head Start, and Early Start-Child Care Partnership 
grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) require the Head 
Start Policy Council to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key responsibilities.

 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund as a result of these actions.
 

ALTERNATIVES:

The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance with 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services rules and regulations for Head Start, Early Head 
Start, and Early Head Start- Child Care Partnership programs.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the HSPC Committee. Staff 
recommends review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



Review of Head Start 
Quality Assurance 

Report



   

 

   

 

 

Quality Assurance Report  
October 2023 

 
Conducted (Project is either still in progress OR has ended, but report has not yet been 
officially submitted to providers): 

• Disabilities Review 

• 45-Day Education Screening 

• 45-Day Health Screening 

• Critical Health Concerns Review 

• Nutrition Review 
 

Completed (Project ended and report was officially submitted to providers):  

• Health & Safety Screening – Classroom Safety 

• Health & Safety Screening – Transportation 
 

 

Health & Safety Screening – Classroom Safety Review: 

Areas of Non-Compliance There were several areas of non-
compliance identified during this review: 

• Curtains made from plastic table 
covers were accessible to 
children and posed risk of 
suffocation. 

• Sign-in logs missing required 
information/criteria: 

o Missing visual checks 
o Did not specify date range 
o Children not signed in 

• Toxic chemicals stored in 
unlocked cabinet were 
accessible to children. Corrected 
on site. 

• Insect bait stations under 
handwashing sink accessible to 
children. Corrected on site. 

Areas of Concern 
 

There were several concerns noted: 

• Stained ceiling tiles 



   

 

   

 

 
 
 

• AC vents with accumulated dust 
and debris 

• Daily Safety checklists were not 
completed. 

• Uncovered outlets on a power 
strip were accessible to children. 

• Teacher’s personal backpack on 
floor was accessible to children. 

• Emergency numbers were not 
visibly posted in classroom. 

Follow-Up Activities: 

The CoSA Quality Assurance (QA) Team will work with the ISD compliance team to 
ensure that all non-compliances and safety concerns are corrected and addressed. 
Most non-compliances have been corrected on-site; however, via the Corrective 
Action Plan (CAP), additional action steps will be taken to prevent future 
reoccurrences. Additional monitoring as well as ongoing training and technical 
assistance will be provided by the ISD compliance team through the Fall months. 
The CoSA QA and/or Content Teams are available if assistance is needed.  

 
 

Health & Safety Screening – Transportation Review: 

Area of Concern There was one concern noted during 
this review: 

• One (1) fire extinguisher was 
observed on the bus with: 

o Expired inspection 
o Not fully charged 

 

Follow-Up Activities: 

This concern was immediately addressed and corrected on site. The CoSA QA 
and/or Content Teams are available if assistance is needed 

 
 
 
For more detailed information:  
Cassandra.Bentley@sanantonio.gov  
 

mailto:Cassandra.Bentley@sanantonio.gov


City of San Antonio

Agenda Memorandum

File Number: 
23-195723

Agenda Item Number: 12

Agenda Date: November 30, 2023

In Control: Community Action Advisory Board Meeting

DEPARTMENT:  Department of Human Services

DEPARTMENT HEAD:  Melody Woosley

COUNCIL DISTRICTS IMPACTED:  Citywide

SUBJECT:

Review of EHS and EHS-CCP Quality Assurance Report

SUMMARY:

This item presents the following from the Department of Human Services (DHS) Head Start, Early 
Head Start, and Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership programs for action by the Head Start 
Policy Council.
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Head Start Act 641A requires the program to provide ongoing monitoring and continuous 
improvement information on the Early Head Start and EHS-CCP Program. The systems highlight 
the importance of using ongoing monitoring to ensure programs are making the necessary 
adjustments to realize their goals and objectives. The expectation is that programs share their 



ongoing monitoring data with staff, Policy Councils, and governing bodies to engage them in all 
aspects of the program planning process. 

ISSUE:

Rules and regulations for the Head Start, Early Head Start, and Early Start-Child Care Partnership 
grants as set forth by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) require the Head 
Start Policy Council to review programmatic actions to oversee certain key responsibilities.
 

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no anticipated impact to the general fund as a result of these actions.

 

ALTERNATIVES:

The review of the items included in this memorandum are required for program compliance with 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services rules and regulations for Head Start, Early Head 
Start, and Early Head Start- Child Care Partnership programs.

 

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff will present a briefing on this item subject to possible action by the HSPC Committee. Staff 
recommends review and approval of the items included in this memorandum.
 



Review of EHS and 
EHS-CCP Quality 
Assurance Report



   

 

   

 

 

Quality Assurance Report October 2023 
 
 
Conducted: Transportation/Pedestrian Safety Review October 2-14, 2023 

• Child File Review 

• Classroom Lesson Plans 
 
 
Conducted: Unannounced Safe Environments Visits October 17- 19, 2023 

• Healy Murphy Child Development Center 

• Seton Home Child Care Center 

• YWCA Olga Madrid Child Care Center 
 
 
Completed: October 20, 2023 
 

Transportation/Pedestrian Safety Review 
Area of non-compliance • There were no non-compliances 

 
Areas of concern File did not have:  

• Evidence of Parent Handbook form attached 
in ChildPlus but was not marked as 
reviewed with parent 

• Evidence of Family Meeting/Home Visit form 
not attached into ChildPlus 

• Evidence of transportation and pedestrian 
safety education training for children was 
not included on classroom lesson plans by 
the benchmark due date 

 
Follow-up Activities 

Service area requested an extension due to the updated internal monitoring 
ChildPlus online data system. Corrections are pending review. 
 

 
 
 

Unannounced Safe Environments Visits 



   

 

   

 

Area of non-compliance • There was one non-compliance for required 
training certificates not available for review. 
 

Areas of concern  

• Classroom outlet missing electrical cover 

• Diaper Changing Procedure was not 
followed 

• Daily Classroom Checklist not completed 

• Toothbrush process not followed 
 

Follow-up Activities 
Due to updated internal monitoring ChildPlus online data system training and 
technical support is ongoing.  Corrections are pending review. 
 

 
 
For more detailed information:  
 Wanda.McMillan@sanantonio.gov  or  Dianne.mendez@sanantonio.gov  
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:Wanda.McMillan@sanantonio.gov
mailto:Dianne.mendez@sanantonio.gov

	CAAB Meeting Minutes  Oct 19-2023
	Committee Memo
	2023 CSBG Supportive State Report - October23
	Committee Memo
	Committee Memo
	Selection of representatives of Private Groups and Organizations flier 2023
	Committee Memo
	2024 CAAb Calendar
	Committee Memo
	01.  Approval of 2023 Community Assessment
	Committee Memo
	2.  Approval of Budget Amendment for the 2023-2024 Head Start & EHS Budget
	Committee Memo
	3.  Review of Head Start BOY Student Outcome Data
	Committee Memo
	4.  Review of Head Start, EHS and EHS-CCP Fiscal Report
	Committee Memo
	5.  Review of Head Start, EHS & EHS-CCP Monthly Program Report
	Committee Memo
	6.  Review of Head Start Quality Assurance Report
	Committee Memo
	7.  Review of EHS & EHS-CCP Quality Assurance Report

